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It has been an exciting year for The J.G. Wentworth Company.™ Looking 
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OUR STRATEGIC PILLARS

Growing Our Core
Our core structured settlement payment purchasing business is our number-one 

strategic priority. We are laser focused on leveraging our marketing and emerging 

information management capabilities in order to implement and optimize initiatives that 

will continue to fuel that growth.

Becoming an Information & Analytics Company 

We will continue to capitalize on the investments we’re making in our information 

management capabilities. As our diversification accelerates, our information and data 

management capabilities will be a competitive differentiator and source for unlocking 

new opportunities across the portfolio.

Diversifying Our Enterprise

As we continue to diversify the company, we will take a build-partner-acquire approach 

to enter new lines of business. To that end, we are building a new prepaid product set, 

partnering with a leading lender to address the personal lending needs of our current and 

future customers and have announced plans to acquire WestStar Mortgage, Inc. to enter 

and compete in the mortgage lending market.

The J.G. Wentworth Company™ is changing. As an established leader in 

a niche market, market awareness and acknowledgement of consumers’ 

growing appetite for a broader financial product suite is driving our 

rapid, scalable expansion. In 2014, we embarked upon this journey of 

transformation and laid the groundwork for success. 
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

For more than 20 years, The J.G. Wentworth Company™ and its subsidiaries have 

enabled customers to get access to “Cash Now.” At the outset, we purchased 

future payments from structured settlements that resolved personal injury 

claims. Later it expanded to help people with funds from annuities and lottery 

winnings. 

Along the way, we built a powerful national brand—with 72% aided brand 

awareness. The strength of our brand is backed by our significant direct response 

expertise, garnering more than 60,000 inbound inquiries each month; robust operational capabilities and a 

streamlined, scalable infrastructure supporting our comprehensive back-office capabilities; experience with large 

and complex transactions; and access to capital markets. All this has led us to where we are today: on a journey 

that is transforming The J.G. Wentworth Company™ from a monoline pioneer in a niche market into a diversified 

consumer financial services leader.
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In order to leverage our strengths to expand the organization, we first assessed and defined our strategic 

pillars. These pillars are the foundation of our growth strategy and guide our decision-making every day. 

Growing our core business is our number-one strategic priority. As leaders in structured settlement and 

annuity payment purchasing, we strive to increase our competitive edge and fuel growth by enhancing our 

marketing, information management and digital capabilities to uncover true business intelligence. 

Developing our information and digital capabilities is the second strategic pillar. This is critical not only for 

strengthening our core, but also for serving as a competitive differentiator and source for unlocking new 

opportunities across the portfolio as our diversification accelerates. We look to be a leader in this category 

and will soon be recognized as such.

Our third and final pillar is to diversify. To realize this pillar, we began a build-partner-acquire approach, and 

it is already bearing fruit. We are building a new comprehensive product set in prepaid cards, have partnered 

with a leading lender to address the personal lending needs of our current and future customers and most 

recently, announced the execution of our agreement to acquire WestStar Mortgage, Inc. in order to enter the 

mortgage lending market and compete to gain share. 

Growing Our Core Business

As leaders in structured settlement and annuity payment purchasing, we have opportunities for growth, 

whether through optimizing the products and processes in place to serve our current customers or by 

uncovering natural extensions to our business and creatively answering our customers’ needs. 

In 2014, we built tools to better understand and ultimately more successfully answer the needs of our 

customers. In just a short time, we are transforming many of our internal information-driven processes and 

reporting to be dashboard based, and we are piloting several data initiatives to grow the core business. 



In addition to enhancing our information capabilities, we have introduced four key initiatives: i) instituted 

pay-for-performance on the purchasing floor; ii) expanded hours of operation to include weekends; iii) 

enhanced segmentation of our customer databases; and iv) initiated outbound customer engagement to 

source new business.

Of course, the above is in addition to the national marketing campaigns, extensive direct mail programs 

and a stable of ongoing lead-generation activities that have led us to become the leaders we are today. 

The core business is paramount to our future success, and we will continue to focus on growing it. We 

are proud of our heritage in structured settlements and look forward to seeing the fruits of all our new 

initiatives going forward.

Using Information and Analytics: Making the Company Fit-to-Grow

With more than 60,000 inbound inquiries each month, we will leverage our customer and prospect 

databases to drive business. They provide a solid foundation for building scalable, data-driven 

management tools that will pave the way for growth and support future expansion. 

In 2014, we appointed a new Executive Vice President and Chief Information Officer, Greg Schneider, 

who is leading the transformation of the information and digital infrastructure into insightful, actionable 

intelligence. Our proprietary suite of tools includes: IntelReporter, a reporting platform that hosts an 

executive dashboard, and also provides a Rep Scorecard with real-time updates on key performance 

indicators (KPIs); InfoScout, a data-mining solution that is revealing opportunities for reaching the right 

customer at the right time with the right product; and MarketNow, a lead-management product that 

facilitates dialogue with our customers and accelerates the customer-acquisition process. 

Real actionable data that translates information into actionable processes is the goal. As data becomes 

information, it quickly needs to translate into increased lead generation, higher conversion rates, 

enhanced service standards, higher retention rates, cross-sell opportunities and profitable transactions. 

We are currently migrating jgwentworth.com to a dynamic, transactional website, enabling a more 

targeted and personalized digital customer acquisition process. Linking each customer visit to internal 

and external data in as close to real time as possible is the goal. As customers contact us, either by phone 

or web, customized content appears. As prospects become customers, the focus switches to service, 

retention and cross-sell opportunities.

It goes without saying that we are now in the execution phase of our strategy, and ensuring we are “fit-to-

grow” is paramount. As we take steps to grow the core and diversify into new markets, we look to leverage 

our strengths, build new competencies and become a multi-product player.
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Delivering More Cash Now: A Build-Partner-Acquire Approach 

Through our fit-to-grow strategy, we have laid a foundation for growth, both across our core structured 

settlement payment purchasing business and our diversification efforts, which will enable us to meet the 

needs of our customers and deliver “cash now.” 

Currently, we have three major initiatives—prepaid cards, personal lending and mortgage. Both prepaid 

cards and lending are natural extensions of our business, providing us with an opportunity to address the 

unmet needs of the respondents to our campaign and simultaneously opening up opportunities to reach 

even more customers seeking personal financial solutions from an established national brand. 

Initially, we will launch our prepaid cards and personal loans to current customers and inquiries. Shortly 

thereafter, these businesses will extend far outside our walls and build their own competitive advantage. 

The exciting component is that we can launch two new categories utilizing our strengths at a fraction of 

the cost it would require as a stand-alone business.

The acquisition of WestStar Mortgage, Inc. is particularly exciting. By combining our strong national 

brand, competitive call center expertise and underwriting and back-office capabilities with WestStar’s 

already successful model, “J.G. Wentworth Home Lending” represents the opportunity to access a new 

base of customers, quickly and with great impact. As we provide our assets to this already successful 

franchise, we are encouraged by the opportunities that may be created.

When we think about these three new initiatives, I like to ask: “Could these new businesses be as big 

as our current business?” That is the threshold we put on the table, and it is what we are focused on 

delivering. 

As we expand through our build-partner-acquire approach, we will maintain our approach to balance-

sheet risk. Think of us as a front-end originator that markets a number of consumer financial services 

products at a healthy profit margin and prudently manages our balance sheet and risk on the back end.

Our build-partner-acquire strategy has driven our ability to identify the most powerful ways to make an 

impact and rapidly become a leader in new areas. That is what is fueling our evolution from a structured 

settlement purchasing company to a diversified consumer financial services provider. 



STEWART A. STOCKDALE   
Chief Executive Officer and Director

“Do the Right Thing”

I have always strived to set a culture of “Do the Right Thing.” This isn’t always easy to define, but it is 

clear when you see it. “Do the Right Thing”—from developing our culture and talent to maintaining the 

highest levels of accountability, transparency, governance and adherence to applicable laws—is critical 

to our success. 

The customer is key for us, and we must always work towards enhancing the customer experience, 

product offering and servicing. As we expand our organization, we will further advocate for increased 

accountability and transparency and take a leadership role in establishing how employees treat 

customers, fellow employees, providers and all constituencies.

We are aiming to make The J.G. Wentworth Company™ an employer of choice by actively listening 

to our employees’ needs and aspirations and responding to them with tools and opportunities 

to accelerate their careers and professional development. In December, we launched our annual 

Excellence Awards to acknowledge, celebrate and foster a true culture of excellence throughout the 

organization. 

Together, these initiatives will help us champion a workforce and a culture that will be better 

positioned to take advantage of significant growth opportunities.

A New Era for The J.G. Wentworth Company™ — Building a Consumer Financial  

Services Juggernaut

The J.G. Wentworth Company™ is transforming. 

The strategies, infrastructure and processes established in 2014 are already bearing fruit, making 2015 

a year of change for our organization. 

Through the definition and implementation of our strategic pillars and our fit-to-grow and build-

partner-acquire strategies, we are setting the foundation to become a diversified consumer financial 

services juggernaut.

After a few months of building the strategy, creating the framework and establishing the team, it’s time 

to execute.  

           Cheers,
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Access to capital markets and securitization expertise is a significant 

competitive advantage for The J.G. Wentworth Company™ and will 

serve us well as we expand our product offerings.

We continue to see consistent interest and demand from institutional 

investors for both classes of our bonds.
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We are focused on driving profitable operations while managing our risk profile. As we 

expand into new markets, we plan to leverage our key strengths and to leverage the 

expertise of our business partners. 

Similar to our core business, the “J.G. Wentworth Home Lending” business will rely on 

financing from lending partners and then sell or securitize its assets to third parties.

For consumer lending, we have initially partnered with Avant to deliver loans to our 

customers. 

We will serve as program manager for J.G. Wentworth® prepaid cards that will be 

issued by a national bank, and we will partner with a leading third party for processing 

of prepaid transactions. 
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EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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1TRB is the total of undiscounted payments purchased from customers during the period.

2A reconciliation of net income to Adjusted Net Income for the year ended December 31, 2014, can be found on page A28.

3 Market Capitalization is calculated by multiplying the number of outstanding shares of Class A common stock (assuming 

the conversion of all Common Interest in The J.G. Wentworth Company, LLC) by the share price on December 31.
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2014 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Our financial performance was the result of consistent TRB purchases and 

a lower cost of funds driven by our best-in-class securitization platform. 

As of December 31, 2014, we had $41.6 million of cash and equivalents on hand.

Subsequent to the year-end, we closed the pre-funding component of our 2014-3 

securitization and had over $96 million of cash and receivables to be financed at that time. 

The fair value of the company’s retained interest and finance receivables was $331.4 million 

at December 31, 2014, as compared to $239.6 million at December 31, 2013.

We are pleased with 2014 and look forward to further diversifying our business in 2015.



STOCK PERFORMANCE

We have presented below the cumulative total return to our stockholders 

during the period from November 8, 2013 (the date our Class A common 

stock commenced trading on the NYSE), through December 31, 2014, in 

comparison to the NYSE Composite Index and the iShares U.S. Financial 

Services ETF. All values assume a $100 initial investment at the IPO price 

for JGW shares, and data for the NYSE Composite Index and iShares 

U.S. Financial Services ETF assume reinvestment of dividends. The 

comparisons are based on historical data and are not indicative of 

nor intended to forecast the future performance of our common stock. 
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The information under “Stock Performance Graph” is not deemed to be “soliciting material” or “filed” with the SEC or subject to 

Regulation 14A or 14C, or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, and is not to be incorporated by reference in any filing of 

The J.G. Wentworth CompanyTM under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, whether made before or after the date of this Annual 

Report and irrespective of any general incorporation language in those filings. 
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SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF MARKETING OFFICER
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We continue to make progress in preparing our company to be a world-

class financial services provider focused on meeting the ever-changing 

needs of our diverse customer segments. Both J.G. Wentworth® and 

Peachtree Financial Solutions® have been market leaders in providing 

liquidity to customers over the past few decades, and it is our goal to 

provide appropriate solutions at relevant times in their lives.

We have spent considerable effort to create brand differentiation and have relaunched the 

digital presence for both brands in the past year. We will continue to update our online and 

mobile presence to provide transparent and relevant content to our customers, ultimately 

enabling them to conduct business through the new products we offer through direct and 

online channels.

The J.G. Wentworth® brand has 72% aided brand awareness as a financial services provider, 

and we are evolving the brand as we expand our offerings to new products and new 

customers. As we enter mortgage, personal lending and prepaid categories, we fully expect 

“J.G. Wentworth Home Lending,” “J.G. Wentworth Personal Lending” and “J.G. Wentworth 

Prepaid Cards” will become well-known household names as well-recognized as our core 

business is today. As the company evolves, we will utilize the power of the J.G. Wentworth® 

brand as the umbrella brand for new product offerings.

We have provided a valuable service to our customers over the years, and we take our 

responsibility to ensure superior customer service seriously. We will continue to work to earn 

the trust of our current customers and future customers as we help to navigate the financial 

aspects of their changing life situations.
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J.G. Wentworth® is the most recognized name in the structured settlement 

payment purchasing industry. Brand recognition, operational efficiency and 

commitment to customer service are key parts of the brand’s success.

ADVERTISING

We are currently migrating 

JGWentworth.com to a dynamic 

transactional website, enabling a 

more targeted and personalized 

digital customer acquisition process. 

We continue to leverage our position as a 

powerhouse in direct mail while simultaneously 

making strides to further refine our approach to 

segmentation to drive maximum effectiveness 

in this important marketing channel. 

Source:  Data reflects 2H’14 J.G. Wentworth direct mail response 
rates indexed against 2014 industry results. 2015 DMA Response 
Rate Benchmark Study, DMA & Demand Metric, March 2015.

Our successful national advertising campaigns generate 

thousands of inbound inquiries each month.
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In 2014, we reintroduced the Peachtree brand to more powerfully 

communicate that the Peachtree Financial Solutions® brand stands 

for a strong commitment to illuminating opportunity. The new brand 

reiterates the message that Peachtree is an approachable, inviting 

and service-oriented financial solutions provider.

“The Peachtree Promise™” is our customer service promise, ensuring our culture and 

commitment to: respect for customers; clarity in communications; and collaboration 

on identifying the appropriate financial solutions. 

We treat people right.  

�������������� 

We speak clearly. 

We provide options. 

We work with you. 

���������������������

THE PEACHTREE PROMISE™ 

Peachtreefinancial.com
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Founded in 1992, we are the leader in purchasing structured settlement 

payments, annuities, lottery winnings and other future payment streams. 

In 2014, we purchased over $1 billion of future payment streams.
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Critical to our success is our direct response capabilities—garnering over 60,000 inbound 

inquiries per month—as well as our in-house processing, underwriting and research acumen. 

Our core business varies somewhat quarter-to-quarter, related to the size and timing of the 

pipeline of potential deals and the impact of changing interest rates. In 2014, we built the 

analytical tools to better understand and ultimately more successfully answer the needs  

of our customers.

Representative of this strength is our pay-for-performance initiative. Launched in the fourth 

quarter of 2014, it led to December being the highest month of unit fundings since July of 2013.

We are continuing to increase our competitive edge and fuel our growth by enhancing our 

information management capabilities to create actionable segmentation strategies. 

These capabilities include clear operating performance metrics that we launched earlier this 

year throughout the purchasing floor and are based on the pay-for-performance promotion 

learnings. Concurrently, we extended hours of operation to include weekends to meet the  

needs of our customers.  

In addition, we’ve extended efforts in our wholesale business, focusing on purchasing 

receivables. We’ve seen substantial demand in the marketplace and are capitalizing on the 

need, while ensuring that any assets purchased are put through our standard underwriting 

process and meet all of our financing requirements.
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RANDY R. PARKER  
PRESIDENT, ANNUITY AND STRUCTURED SETTLEMENT PAYMENTS
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EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER
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Our company is fundamentally shifting the way we do business by 

enhancing our use of data and information to improve the consumer 

experience and drive business decisions. This new approach is based on 

three guiding principles: data accuracy and completeness, information 

transparency and agile development. Our data-first strategy impacts the 

full spectrum of consumer interaction from awareness to conversion and 

influences everything from online content to back-end reporting.

Business owners need quick visibility into accurate information for strategic planning and daily 

tracking. IntelReporter provides tiered access to vital information through online dashboards, 

giving users an in-depth view into the state of the business. Executive dashboards highlight key 

performance indicators with drilldown capabilities that enable senior leadership and middle 

management to drive the business. At a more tactical level, the Rep Scorecard provides the 

Purchasing teams near real-time access to individual performance and identifies inefficiencies 

throughout the Purchasing funnel. Providing individuals with insight into their commissions 

is a huge motivator; Commission Hub gives individuals visibility to both realized and potential 

commissions so they can see the impact of their daily activities.

Being able to target our customer base on the right channel, at the right time and with the right 

message yields big returns. Recently launched, MarketNow is a marketing automation tool that 

uses customer intelligence and third party data to identify market segments and determine when, 

how and what product to market to our customers. MarketNow also offers visibility to the size, 

volatility and vitality of our customer and prospect database. Account pool trending and deep 

dives into the analytics of how we interact with our customers are key features of MarketNow.

An automated customer information management tool across the enterprise leveraging over 800 

data variables on the U.S. population at large, InfoScout will soon provide us with the capability to 

quickly and efficiently optimize our lead management by scoring and ranking each customer or 

potential customer.

With a better understanding of the customer base, the lead-generation pipeline and the 

dashboards, the company can employ a broader suite of products to capitalize on opportunities 

uncovered by its information-based initiatives. Partnerships and acquisitions will supply even 

more resources to our growing list of business intelligence tools.

IntelReporter 

MarketNow

InfoScout
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We recently announced a partnership with Visa Inc. to offer prepaid cards to our customers. 

This expansion into the prepaid category will help us expand and grow our core business 

by improving upon the customer experience while simultaneously opening opportunities 

for current and new customers. 

Initially, J.G. Wentworth® prepaid Visa cards will be 

offered to certain existing customers in place of 

paper checks. By loading funds directly onto prepaid 

cards, customers will have speedier, more efficient 

and more convenient access to funds, as well as the 

added benefit of purchase and fraud protection and 

the option for payroll direct deposit. 

Looking ahead, we are planning to launch an innovative gift account product and general-

purpose reloadable card with major prepaid card distributors. For the general-purpose 

reloadable product, this initiative will enable us to capitalize on our brand awareness, 

providing an important financial tool to people who cannot obtain or do not want a 

traditional bank account and debit card.

We are successfully expanding into other areas of consumer 

financial services and positioning ourselves as true financial services 

leaders through the introduction of new products that utilize the 

power of the J.G. Wentworth® brand. 
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BUILD — J.G. WENTWORTH® PREPAID PROGRAM 

SUITE OF PRODUCTS
Existing

Structured 
Settlement

Prepaid 
Program

Annuity 
Purchasing

Personal 
Lending

Home 
Lending

New

Lottery 
Purchasing



The J.G. Wentworth Company’s strong brand affinity has led many consumers to contact 

the company through the “877 Cash Now” campaign, seeking personal loans to meet their 

changing life needs. Repeated requests for these loans led us to implement a program to 

satisfy this demand.

Through an initial partnership with Avant, our customers can now be connected with 

a reputable lender to meet their borrowing needs. Avant provides access to personal 

installment loans through its online lending platform. Loan decisions are based upon a 

host of variables, to include income and credit score.

The lending platform can be accessed through the J.G. 

Wentworth® website. Real-time approval makes the 

process easy and transparent—a perfect fit for our brand.  

As we continue to build a marketplace for personal 

lending and add partners, we will scale the business as 

we drive current customer inquiries and future demand 

to our website and call center.

Expected to close in Q3 2015, the acquisition of WestStar Mortgage, Inc. demonstrates 

our commitment and desire to enter a large market where we believe we can gain share.

 Licensed to operate in 40 states, WestStar closed 

$1.5 billion in new loan originations in 2014.

By combining our strong national brand, 

competitive call center expertise, underwriting and 

back-office capabilities with WestStar’s already 

successful model, “J.G. Wentworth Home Lending” 

represents the opportunity to access a new base of 

customers, quickly and with great impact. 

Further fueling growth are plans for expansion into 

additional affinity partnerships and increased focus 

on the direct-to-consumer model.

PARTNER — J.G. WENTWORTH® PERSONAL LENDING 

 ACQUIRE — J.G. WENTWORTH® HOME LENDING

Personal lending complements  

our core business and provides an 

opportunity for customers who do 

not have a structured settlement 

to get cash now.  

We believe that the transaction will 

be accretive to adjusted net income 

by 15%-20% on an ongoing basis.

HOME
LENDING

�	
��/&&1/2�*%-�*#  |  /�




“Do the Right Thing,” from developing our culture to maintaining the 

highest levels of accountability, transparency, governance and adherence 

to applicable laws, is critical to our business.

 

We firmly believe that each customer should have a complete 

understanding of what to expect so they can decide if our financial 

products and solutions are in their best interest. At every step of our 

process, our representatives provide disclosure regarding costs associated 

with the transaction, the expected time period for the transaction to be 

completed and their option to cancel the transaction at any time.
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We have taken a leadership role in establishing guidelines for how the industry should 

operate in the best interests of the consumer.

In addition to maintaining practices that are in the best interests of our customers, we 

are actively engaged in advocacy to raise accountability and transparency throughout 

the industry.

We have supported the evolution of state-level statutes, including the disclosure of 

previous transactions and in-person court appearance.

As we expand our opportunities, products and the company, we will continue to 

advocate for increased accountability and transparency and take a leadership role in 

establishing guidelines and best practices across consumer financial services.

A LEADING ROLE
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STEPHEN A. KIRKWOOD 
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, GENERAL COUNSEL AND CORPORATE SECRETARY



We are working to make The J.G. Wentworth Company™ a career 

�������������'����������������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������������������������������������������#�����

����������������������������������������������!�����������������������

�����������������������[%����!������+������\

WILLIAM A. SCHWARTZ 
CHIEF HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICER



6�+17%8��&9�#/2%&#�8%=%2�-,%&#
In 2014 we launched an “Employer of Choice” initiative. We are continuously 

reviewing our employee policies and benefits so that we can successfully 

attract, develop and retain the very best talent.   

To cultivate a true culture of excellence, we are extending the power of 

the brand to our offices. Investments in the look and feel of the workplace 

don’t just help brighten moods and bolster morale, they also encourage 

collaboration and cooperation and further foster our commitment to 

delivering an exceptional level of service to our customers. 

By focusing on retaining, attracting and developing talent, we will be better 

positioned to take advantage of significant growth opportunities.

We have taken steps to align our benefits with the current employee demographic in order 

to make us a premier “Employer of Choice.” Through the upcoming acquisition of WestStar 

Mortgage, Inc., we are also expanding our footprint, which, among other things, will enable 

prospective staff to envision a dynamic career trajectory.

Recognize performers 
We are reviewing our incentive plans for 

producers to ensure that we are encouraging 

a superior level of performance by adequately 

rewarding their efforts. 

Develop expertise 
We have launched initiatives to meet the 

professional development needs of our team. 

We are identifying high-performers and giving 

them the opportunity to truly leverage the 

resources of the company and grow their careers 

with us. 

We anticipate nearly doubling the 

employee base in 2015. 

EMPLOYEE GROWTH 2014

400+ 
EMPLOYEES

2015

700+ 
EMPLOYEES

BECOMING A CAREER DESTINATION
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We are actively listening to our 

employees and are making changes 

to our offerings in order to provide the 

benefits that best-in-class talent are 

seeking.

Internal development 
We have launched multiple forums to 

foster mentoring, development and 

leadership among different groups 

across the organization.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements which reflect management’s expectations  
regarding our future growth, results of operations, operational and financial performance and business prospects and opportunities. 
These forward looking statements are within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Section 21E 
of  the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements, 
other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. You can identify such statements because they contain 
words such as ‘‘plans,’’ ‘‘expects’’ or ‘‘does expect,’’ ‘‘budget,’’ ‘‘forecasts,’’ ‘‘anticipates’’ or ‘‘does not anticipate,’’ ‘‘believes,’’ 
‘‘intends,’’ and similar expressions or statements that certain actions, events or results ‘‘may,’’ ‘‘could,’’ ‘‘would,’’ ‘‘might,’’ or 
‘‘will,’’ be taken, occur or be achieved. Although the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K 
reflect  management’s current beliefs based upon information currently available to management and upon assumptions which 
management believes to be reasonable, actual results may differ materially from those stated in or implied by these forward-
looking statements.

Forward-looking statements necessarily involve significant known and unknown risks, assumptions and uncertainties 
that may cause our actual results, performance and opportunities in future periods to differ materially from those expressed or 
implied by such forward-looking statements. Although we have attempted to identify important risk factors that could cause actual 
actions, events or results to differ materially from those described in or implied by our forward-looking statements, a number of 
factors could cause actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from the results expressed or implied in the 
forward-looking statements. We cannot assure you that forward-looking statements will prove to be accurate, as actual actions, 
results and future events could differ materially from those anticipated or implied by such statements.

 
These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and except for our ongoing 

obligations to disclose material information under the federal securities laws, we undertake no obligation to publicly revise any 
forward-looking statements to reflect circumstances or events after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, or to reflect the 
occurrence of unanticipated events. These factors should be considered carefully and readers should not place undue reliance on 
forward-looking statements. You should, however, review the factors and risks we describe in the reports we file from time to time 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. As set forth more fully under 
“Part 1, Item 1A. ‘Risk Factors’” in this Annual Report, these risks and uncertainties include, among other things:

 
• our ability to implement our business strategy;

• our ability to continue to purchase structured settlement payments and other assets;

• the compression of the yield spread between the price we pay for and the price at which we sell assets due 
to changes in interest rates and/or other factors;

• changes in tax or accounting policies or changes in interpretation of those policies as applicable to our business;

• changes in current tax law relating to the tax treatment of structured settlements;

• our ability to complete future securitizations or other financings on beneficial terms;

• our dependence on the opinions of certain rating agencies;

• our dependence on outside parties to conduct our transactions including the court system, insurance
companies, outside counsel, delivery services and notaries;

• our ability to remain in compliance with the terms of our substantial indebtedness;

• changes in existing state laws governing the transfer of structured settlement payments or the interpretation
thereof;

• availability of or increases in the cost of our financing sources relative to our purchase discount rate;

• changes to state or federal, licensing and regulatory regimes;

• unfavorable press reports about our business model;
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• our dependence on the effectiveness of our direct response marketing;

• adverse judicial developments;

• our ability to successfully enter new lines of business and broaden the scope of our business;

• potential litigation and regulatory proceedings;

• changes in our expectations regarding the likelihood, timing or terms of any potential acquisitions described
herein;

• the lack of an established market for the subordinated interest in the receivables that we retain after a
securitization is executed;

• the impact of the March 2014 Consumer Financial Protection Bureau inquiry and any findings or regulations
it issues as related to us, our industries, or products in general;

• our dependence on a small number of key personnel;

• our exposure to underwriting risk;

• our access to personally identifiable confidential information of current and prospective customers and the
improper use or failure to protect that information;

• our computer systems being subject to security and privacy breaches;

• the public disclosure of the identities of structured settlement holders;

• our business model being susceptible to litigation;

• the insolvency of a material number of structured settlement issuers; and

• infringement of our trademarks or service marks.
 

PART I
 

EXPLANATORY NOTE
 

On September 30, 2014, JGWPT Holdings, Inc. changed its name to The J.G. Wentworth Company and on October 8, 
2014, JGWPT Holdings, LLC changed its name to The J.G. Wentworth Company, LLC (“JGW LLC”). Unless otherwise stated 
or the context otherwise requires, references to “we,” “us,” “our,” the “Company,” and similar references in this Annual Report 
on Form 10-K refer: (i) following the consummation of our initial public offering (the “IPO”) and related concurrent transactions 
on November 14, 2013, collectively, to The J.G. Wentworth Company  and, unless otherwise stated, all of its subsidiaries, and (ii) 
prior to the completion of our IPO and related concurrent transactions on November 14, 2013, collectively, to J.G. Wentworth, 
LLC  and, unless otherwise stated, all of its subsidiaries.

As previously reported, on November 14, 2013, the Company consummated the IPO whereby 11,212,500 shares of its 
Class A common stock (the “Class A common stock”), par value $0.00001 per share, were sold to the public. The aggregate net 
proceeds received from the IPO were $141.3 million and were used to purchase 11,212,500 common membership interests (the 
“Common Interests” and the holders of such Common Interests, the “Common Interestholders”), of the newly formed JGW LLC 
representing 37.9% of the then outstanding Common Interests of JGW LLC. Concurrently with the consummation of the IPO, (i) 
the operating agreement of JGW LLC was amended and restated such that, among other things, The J.G. Wentworth Company 
became the sole managing member of JGW LLC and (ii) related reorganization transactions were consummated. Accordingly, as 
of and subsequent to November 14, 2013, The J.G. Wentworth Company consolidates the financial results of JGW LLC with its 
own and reflects the proportional interest in JGW LLC not held by it as a non-controlling interest in its consolidated financial 
statements.

Item 1.         Business
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Our Company
 

We are a leading direct response marketer that provides liquidity to our customers by purchasing structured settlement, 
annuity and lottery payment streams, as well as interests in the proceeds of legal claims, in the United States. We securitize, sell 
or otherwise finance the payment streams that we purchase in transactions that are structured to generate cash proceeds to us that 
exceed the purchase price we paid for those payment streams. We have developed our leading position as a purchaser of structured 
settlement payments through our highly recognizable brands and multi-channel direct response marketing platform.

 
Structured settlements are financial tools used by insurance companies to settle claims on behalf of their customers. They 

are contractual arrangements under which an insurance company agrees to make periodic payments to an individual as compensation 
for a claim typically arising out of a personal injury. The structured settlement payments we purchase have long average lives of 
more than ten years and cannot be prepaid.

 
We serve the liquidity needs of structured settlement payment holders by providing our customers with cash in exchange 

for a certain number of fixed scheduled future payments. Customers desire liquidity for a variety of reasons, including debt 
reduction, housing, automotive, business opportunities, education and healthcare costs. 

 
We act as an intermediary that identifies, underwrites and purchases individual payment streams from our customers, 

aggregates the payment streams and then finances them in the institutional market at financing rates that are below our cost to 
purchase the payment streams. We purchase future payment streams from our customers for a single up-front cash payment. Such 
payment is based upon a discount rate that is negotiated with each of our customers. We fund our purchases of payment streams 
with short and long-term non-recourse financing. We initially fund our purchase of structured settlement payments and annuities 
through committed warehouse lines. Our guaranteed structured settlement and annuity warehouse facilities totaled $750.0 million 
at December 31, 2014. We intend to undertake a sale or securitization of these assets approximately three times per year, subject 
to our discretion, in transactions that generate excess cash proceeds over the purchase price we paid for those assets and the amount 
of warehouse financing used to fund that purchase price. We finance the purchase of other payment streams using a combination 
of other committed financing sources and our operating cash flow.

 
Because our purchase and financing of periodic payment streams is undertaken on a positive cash flow basis, we view 

our ability to purchase payment streams as key to our business model. We continuously monitor the efficiency of marketing 
expenses and the hiring and training of personnel engaged in the purchasing process. Another key feature of our business model 
is our ability to aggregate payment streams from many individuals and from a well-diversified base of payment counterparties. 

 
 We operate two leading and highly recognizable brands, J.G. Wentworth and Peachtree, each of which generates a 
significant volume of inbound inquiries. 

 
We currently provide liquidity to our customers through the following products:
 

• Structured Settlements are contractual agreements to settle a tort claim involving physical injury or illness 
whereby a claimant is compensated for damages through a series of payments over time rather than by a single 
upfront payment. These payments fall into two categories: guaranteed structured settlement payments, which 
are paid out until maturity regardless of the status of the beneficiary, and life contingent structured settlement 
payments, which cease upon the death of the beneficiary. We purchase all or part of these structured settlement 
payments at a discount to the aggregate face amount of the future payments in exchange for a single up-front 
payment. These future structured settlement payments are generally disbursed to us directly by an insurance 
company. Since the enactment of the federal Tax Relief Act in 2002, every one of our structured settlement 
payment stream purchases has been reviewed and approved by a judge. Based on information provided by the 
National Association of Settlement Purchasers, we believe we are the largest purchaser of structured settlement 
payments in the United States. 

• Annuities are insurance products purchased by individuals from insurance companies entitling the beneficiary 
to receive a pre-determined stream of periodic payments. We purchase all or part of the annuity payments at a 
discount to the aggregate face amount of future payments in exchange for a single up-front payment. 

• Lotteries are prizes that generally have periodic payments and are typically backed by state lottery commission 
obligations or insurance company annuities. We purchase all or part of the lottery receivables at a discount to 
the aggregate face amount of future payments in exchange for a single up-front payment to the lottery winners. 



4

As in the case of structured settlement payments, every one of our purchases of lottery receivables is reviewed 
and approved by a judge. 

• Pre-settlement funding is a transaction with a plaintiff that has a pending personal injury claim to provide 
liquidity while awaiting settlement. These are not loans; rather, we are assigned an interest in the settlement 
proceeds of the claim and, if and when a settlement occurs, payment is made to us directly via the claim payment 
waterfall, not from the claimant. If the plaintiff’s claim is unsuccessful, the purchase price and accrual of fees 
thereon are written off. 

 
 For more detail information on our business, please refer to "Part II, Item 7 'Management's Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations'" in this Annual Report.

Industry Overview
 
Structured Settlements
 

The use of structured settlements was established in 1982 when Congress passed the Periodic Payment Settlement Act 
of 1982, or the Settlement Act, which allows periodic payments made as compensation for a personal injury to be free of all federal 
taxation to the payee, provided certain conditions are met. By contrast, the investment earnings on a single up-front payment are 
generally taxable, leading structured settlements to proliferate as a means of settling lawsuits. Following the emergence of structured 
settlements, a secondary market developed in response to the changing financial needs of the holders of structured settlements 
over time, with many requiring short-term liquidity for a variety of reasons. Purchasers in the structured settlement secondary 
market provide upfront cash payment in exchange for an agreed-upon stream of periodic payments from a holder of a structured 
settlement. Each purchased structured settlement payment stream requires local court approval by a judge, who must rule that the 
transfer of the structured settlement payments and its terms are in the best interests of the payee, taking into account the welfare 
of the payee and the payee’s dependents.

 
A portion of structured settlements may have a life contingent component. Life contingent structured settlements are 

similar to guaranteed structured settlements, however, unlike guaranteed structured settlements, which pay out until maturity 
regardless of the status of the beneficiary, life contingent structured settlement payments cease upon death of the beneficiary. We 
have developed a proprietary financing model that allows us to purchase these life contingent structured settlement payments 
without assuming any mortality risk.

 
Annuities
 

Annuities are most often purchased to provide a reliable cash flow or a financial cushion for unexpected expenses during 
retirement or received by individuals via inheritance. The secondary market for annuities provides liquidity to holders, regardless 
of how they obtained their annuity. The purchasing and underwriting process for annuities is substantially similar to that for 
structured settlements. However, purchases of annuities do not require court approval. 

 
Lotteries
 

According to the North American Association of State and Provincial Lotteries, or NASPL, 43 states and the District of 
Columbia currently offer government-operated lotteries. For those lottery winners that have either elected or have been required 
to receive their lottery prize payout in the form of periodic payments, the secondary market provides liquidity and payment 
flexibility not otherwise provided by their current payment schedule. 26 states have enacted statutes that permit lottery winners 
to voluntarily assign all or a portion of their future lottery prize payments. Similar to structured settlements, the voluntary assignment 
of a lottery prize requires a court order. 

Pre-settlement Funding
 

Pre-settlement funding provides the plaintiff with immediate cash, which can be used by the plaintiff to fund out of pocket 
expenses, allowing the plaintiff to continue the suit and to reject inadequate settlement offers. The regulatory framework for pre-
settlement funding is in its early stages, and we expect that many states that do not currently have a regulatory framework for pre-
settlement transactions will enact laws that may or may not enable us to conduct business in such states.

 
Government Regulation
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We are subject to federal, state and, in some cases, local regulation in the jurisdictions in which we operate. These 
regulations govern and/or affect many aspects of our business.

 
Structured Settlements
 

Each structured settlement transaction requires a court order approving the transaction. These “transfer petitions,” as they 
are known, are brought pursuant to specific, state structured settlement protection acts, or SSPAs.  Typically, a seller does not sell 
the entire amount of his settlement in one transaction. Once an order approving the sale is issued, the payments from the annuity 
provider are made directly to the purchaser of the structured settlement payments pursuant to the terms of the order.

 
The National Association of Settlement Purchasers, representing some of the secondary market participants, and the 

National Structured Settlements Trade Association, representing primary market participants, are the principal trade organizations 
which have developed and promoted model legislation regarding transfers of settlement payments, referred to as the Structured 
Settlement Model Act. While most SSPAs are similar to the Structured Settlement Model Act, any SSPA may place fewer or 
additional affirmative obligations (such as notice or additional disclosure requirements) on the purchaser, require more extensive 
or less extensive findings on the part of the court issuing the transfer order, contain additional prohibitions on the actions of the 
purchaser or the provisions of a settlement purchase agreement, have different effective dates, require shorter or longer notice 
periods and otherwise vary in substance from the Model Act.

 
Most of the settlement agreements giving rise to the structured settlement receivables that we purchase contain anti-

assignment provisions that purport to proscribe assignments or encumbrances of structured settlement payments due thereunder. 
Anti-assignment provisions give rise to the risk that a claimant or a payor could invoke the anti-assignment provision in a settlement 
agreement to invalidate a claimant’s transfer of structured settlement payments to the purchaser, or force the purchaser to pay 
damages. In addition, at least one appellate court in Illinois has determined that the SSPA does not apply to certain transfers where 
an anti-assignment provision is applicable. Under certain circumstances, interested parties other than the related claimant or payor 
could also challenge, and potentially invalidate, an assignment of structured settlement payments made in violation of an anti-
assignment provision. Whether the presence of an anti-assignment provision in a settlement agreement could be used to invalidate 
a prior transfer depends on various aspects of state and federal law, including case law and the form of Article 9 of the Uniform 
Commercial Code adopted in the applicable state, and in each transfer petition a judge makes a decision on whether the anti-
assignment provision is enforceable or not.

 
Federal Tax Relief Act
 

Section 5891 of the Internal Revenue Code, or the Code, as amended by the Tax Relief Act, levies an excise tax upon 
those people or entities that acquire structured settlement payments from a seller on or after February 22, 2002, unless certain 
conditions are satisfied. Such tax equals 40% of the discount imposed by the purchaser of the structured settlement payments. 
However, no such tax is levied if the transfer of such structured settlement payments is approved in a qualified court order. A 
qualified court order under the Tax Relief Act means a final order, judgment or decree that finds that the transfer does not contravene 
any federal or state law or the order of any court or administrative authority and is in the best interest of the payee, taking into 
account the welfare and support of the payee’s dependents. The order must be issued under the authority of an applicable state 
statute of the state in which the seller is domiciled, or, if there is no such statute, under the authority of an applicable state statute 
of the state in which the seller or annuity provider is domiciled, by a court of such state or the state of the seller’s domicile, or by 
the responsible administrative authority (if any) that has exclusive jurisdiction over the underlying action or proceeding.
 

The Internal Revenue Service, or IRS,  completed audits of J.G. Wentworth and Peachtree in which it reviewed compliance 
with Section 5891 of the Code in 2008 and 2011, respectively. Based on the findings of these audits, the IRS assessed us immaterial 
excise tax liability. 

 
Transfer Statutes
 

To protect the interest of individuals who wish to sell their rights to receive structured settlements payments, the state 
and federal governments have instituted laws and regulations governing the transferability of these interests. Currently, the 
assignment of structured settlement payments from one party to another is subject to federal and, in most cases, state statutory 
and regulatory requirements. Most states have adopted transfer statutes to provide certainty as to whom structured settlement 
payments are to be made and to ensure that individuals who wish to sell structured settlement payments are treated fairly. Under 
these transfer statutes, an individual who wishes to sell their right to receive payment must receive court approval that the transfer 
is in their best interest before a transfer can take place. Under federal guidelines, if court approval is not granted, the acquirer of 
the structured settlement payments is subject to a significant excise tax on the transaction. To comply with these regulations, there 
are a significant number of compliance items that must be completed before a transfer of a settlement can take place.
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While structured settlement transfer statutes vary from state to state, a transfer statute typically sets forth, at a minimum, 

the following requirements that must be satisfied before a court will issue a transfer order approving a sale of structured settlement 
payments: (i) the court must find that the sale of the structured settlement payments is in the seller’s best interest, taking into 
account the welfare and support of the seller’s dependents; (ii) the settlement purchaser must have given notice of the proposed 
sale and related court hearing to the related obligor and insurer and certain other interested parties, if any; and (iii) the settlement 
purchaser must have provided to the seller a disclosure statement setting forth, among other things, the discounted present value 
of the purchaser to the structured settlement payments in question and any expenses or other amounts to be deducted from the 
purchase price received by the seller, and advising the seller to obtain or at least consider obtaining independent legal, tax and 
accounting advice in connection with the proposed transaction. Any transfer statute may place additional affirmative obligations 
on the settlement purchaser, require more extensive findings on the part of the court issuing the transfer order, contain additional 
prohibitions on the actions of the purchaser or the provisions of a settlement purchase agreement, require shorter or longer notice 
periods, or impose other restrictions or duties on settlement purchasers. In particular, many transfer statutes specify that, if a 
transfer of structured settlement payments contravenes the terms of the underlying settlement contract, the settlement purchaser 
will be liable for any taxes, and in some cases, other costs, incurred by the related seller in connection with such transfer. Also, 
transfer statutes vary as to whether a transfer order issued under the statute constitutes definitive evidence that the related assignment 
complies with the terms of the applicable transfer statute. While many transfer statutes require a court to issue a finding at the 
time of the issuance of a transfer order that the related assignment complies with the terms of the applicable transfer statute, under 
several transfer statutes the issuance of a transfer order is only one of several factors used to determine compliance with the 
applicable transfer statute.

 
Many states have enacted transfer statutes with respect to lottery payments. While certain differences may exist as between 

the various lottery prize transfer statutes, the following requirements generally must be satisfied before a court will issue a transfer 
order approving a sale of lottery prize payments by a lottery winner: (i) the assignment must be in writing and state that the lottery 
winner has a statutorily specified number of business days within which to cancel the assignment; (ii) the lottery winner must be 
provided with a written disclosure statement setting forth, among other things, (a) the payments being assigned, by amounts and 
payment dates, (b) the purchase price being paid, (c) the discount rate applied by the purchaser to the lottery prize payments in 
question and (d) the amount of any origination or closing fees to be charged to the lottery winner; (iii) written notice of the proposed 
assignment and any court hearing concerning the assignment must be provided to the applicable lottery commission’s counsel 
prior to the date of any court hearing; and (iv) the lottery winner must provide a sworn affidavit attesting that (a) he is of sound 
mind, in full command of his faculties and is not acting under duress and (b) has been advised regarding the assignment by his 
own independent legal counsel. A lottery prize transfer statute may place additional affirmative obligations on the lottery receivable 
purchaser, contain additional prohibitions on the actions of the lottery originator or its assignors or the provisions of the lottery 
purchase agreement, require shorter or longer periods or impose other restrictions or duties on lottery prize purchasers. In addition, 
in most states, the applicable state’s lottery commission will acknowledge in writing the transfer order, either by means of a written 
acknowledgement, counter-execution of the transfer order or an affidavit of compliance with the to-be-issued transfer order.

 
The failure on the part of a structured settlement payments purchaser to comply with the terms of a structured settlement 

transfer statute with respect to the assignment of a structured settlement receivable could have several adverse consequences, 
including that such purchaser’s purported purchase of such structured settlement receivable is rendered invalid and unenforceable 
and the IRS may seek to impose an excise tax.

 
The failure on the part of a lottery purchaser to comply with the terms of a lottery prize transfer statute with respect to 

the assignment of a lottery receivable could have several adverse consequences, including that the purchaser’s purported purchase 
of such lottery receivable is rendered invalid and unenforceable.

 
Pre-Settlement Funding
 

There are currently only five states with statutes specifically relating to pre-settlement transactions: Maine, Nebraska, 
Ohio, Oklahoma, and Tennesee. The requirements imposed by such statutes (which vary by state) on pre-settlement funding 
transactions include certain rescission periods, mandated contract provisions, restrictions on funder activities, restrictions on 
advertising, prohibitions of attorney referral fees, mandated disclosures, acknowledgements by the attorney representing the litigant 
and prohibitions on the funder making any decisions with respect to the underlying legal claim. In addition to these statutes and 
registration requirements, common law concepts of champerty and maintenance as well as local court interpretation of the nature 
of the transaction structure (interpretation as a loan or a sale) impacts how the pre-settlement business is conducted in a particular 
state. 

 
Annuities
 



7

Annuity contracts are usually assignable by the annuitant pursuant to the terms of the underlying annuity contract. 
Providers of annuities will acknowledge in writing an annuitant’s sale of an annuity to a purchaser and redirect payments under 
such annuity to such purchaser. Under the law of many states, annuities are excluded from the scope of Article 9 of the UCC and 
therefore the UCC concept of “perfection” may not apply with respect to such assignments although a precautionary UCC-1 
financing statement can be filed against the annuitant. Additionally, the procurement of an annuity contract with the intent to assign 
it is restricted under the law of many states. In light of such regulations, it is often necessary to wait to purchase annuity payments 
streams for at least six months after the issuance of the related annuity contract or seek satisfactory documentation confirming 
that the annuitant (or, if applicable, its predecessor in interest) did not procure the annuity contract with the intention to assign it. 
In addition, under the law of certain states, contestability or rescission periods apply to the assignment of annuities.
 
Federal Regulations
 

Title X of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, or Dodd-Frank, or the Dodd-Frank 
Act establishes the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, or CFPB, which has regulatory, supervisory and enforcement powers 
over providers of consumer financial products and services. Included in the powers afforded to the CFPB is the authority to adopt 
rules identifying specified acts and practices as being “unfair,” “deceptive” or “abusive,” and hence unlawful. The CFPB could 
adopt rules imposing new and potentially burdensome requirements and limitations with respect to our lines of business.

 
In addition to Dodd-Frank’s grant of regulatory powers to the CFPB, Dodd-Frank gives the CFPB authority to pursue 

administrative proceedings or litigation for violations of federal consumer financial laws. In these proceedings, the CFPB can 
obtain cease and desist orders (which can include orders for restitution, reformation or rescission of contracts, payment of damages, 
refund or disgorgement, as well as other kinds of affirmative relief) and civil monetary penalties ranging from $5,000 per day for 
violations of federal consumer financial laws (including the CFPB’s own rules) to $25,000 per day for reckless violations and $1 
million per day for knowing violations. Also, where a company has violated Title X of Dodd-Frank or CFPB regulations under 
Title X, Dodd-Frank empowers state attorneys general and state regulators to bring civil actions for the kind of cease and desist 
orders available to the CFPB. In March 2014, the Company and certain of its affiliates were served with Civil Investigative 
Demands, or CIDs, from the CFPB. The CIDs requested various information and documents for the purpose of determining the 
Company’s compliance with Sections 1031 and 1036 of the Consumer Financial Protection Act of 2010, 12 U.S.C. §§ 5531, 5536; 
the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1601 et seq., or its implementing regulations, and other Federal-consumer financial laws.  
The CIDs were designed to broadly solicit general information about the Company and its business. We believe that the Company’s 
practices are fully compliant with applicable law, and we have cooperated with the CFPB.

On March 29, 2011, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the Treasury, the Board of Governors of the Federal 
Reserve System, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Federal Housing 
Finance Agency and Department of Housing and Urban Development issued a joint notice of proposed rulemaking proposing 
rules to implement the credit risk retention requirements of section 15G of the Exchange Act, as amended by Section 941 of the 
Dodd-Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act provides that the sponsor or an affiliate of the sponsor must retain at least 5% of the credit 
risk of any asset pool that is securitized. These federal regulators jointly re-proposed this rule on August 28, 2013. It remains 
unclear what requirements will be included in the final rule.

Federal anti-money-laundering laws make it a criminal offense to own or operate a money transmitting business without 
the appropriate state licenses and registration with the U.S. Department of the Treasury’s Financial Crimes Enforcement Network 
or FinCEN. In addition, the USA PATRIOT Act of 2001 and the Treasury Department’s implementing federal regulations requires 
“financial institutions” to establish and maintain an anti-money-laundering program. Such a program must include: (i) internal 
policies, procedures and controls designed to identify and report money laundering; (ii) a designated compliance officer; (iii) an 
ongoing employee-training program; and (iv) an independent audit function to test the program. Because of our compliance with 
other federal regulations having essentially a similar purpose, we do not believe compliance with these requirements has had or 
will have any material impact on our operations.

 
In addition, federal regulations require us to report suspicious transactions involving at least $2,000 to FinCEN. The 

regulations generally describe three classes of reportable suspicious transactions — one or more related transactions that the money 
services business knows, suspects, or has reason to suspect (i) involve funds derived from illegal activity or are intended to hide 
or disguise such funds, (ii) are designed to evade the requirements of the Bank Secrecy Act, or (iii) appear to serve no business 
or lawful purpose.

 
In connection with its administration and enforcement of economic and trade sanctions based on U.S. foreign policy and 

national security goals, the Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Assets Control, or OFAC, publishes a list of individuals and 
companies owned or controlled by, or acting for or on behalf of, targeted countries. It also lists individuals, groups, and entities, 
such as terrorists and narcotics traffickers, designated under programs that are not country-specific. Collectively, such individuals 
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and companies are called “Specially Designated Nationals,” or SDNs. Assets of SDNs are blocked and we are generally prohibited 
from dealing with them. In addition, OFAC administers a number of comprehensive sanctions and embargoes that target certain
countries, governments and geographic regions. We are generally prohibited from engaging in transactions involving any country, 
region or government that is subject to such comprehensive sanctions.
 

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 and its implementing federal regulations require us generally to protect the 
confidentiality of our customers’ nonpublic personal information and to disclose to our customers our privacy policy and practices, 
including those regarding sharing the customers’ nonpublic personal information with third parties. That disclosure must be made 
to customers at the time the customer relationship is established and at least annually thereafter.

 
Our Customers

The substantial majority of our current customers, and our revenues, are from structured settlement payment purchasing. 
We serve the liquidity needs of our structured settlement customers by providing them with cash in exchange for assigning us the 
right to receive future payments. Customers desire liquidity for a variety of reasons, including debt reduction, housing, automotive, 
business opportunities, education and healthcare costs. Our structured settlement customers are typically young, lower-middle 
income individuals. We believe that the majority of our structured settlement payments customers are under the age of 45 and are 
split almost evenly between genders.

Competition

 We operate in a highly fragmented industry. The various market participants generally consist of small competitors focused 
on the purchase of structured settlement payment, annuities and lottery payment streams. Competition in structured settlement 
payments purchasing is primarily based upon marketing, referrals, price and quality of customer service. Our main competitors 
in structured settlement and annuities payments purchasing are Stone Street, DRB Capital, Novation, Seneca One, Woodbridge, 
Symetra Financial and Client First. Our principal competitors in lotteries receivable payments purchasing are Stone Street, Seneca 
One, Advanced Funding, Client First and Nu Point Funding.

The competitive landscape for pre-settlement funding is highly fragmented with significant variation in business practices. 
The few competitors with comparable volume include Oasis Legal Finance, Law Cash, US Claims and Global Financial. Beyond 
these competitors, the industry is characterized by small players and ad hoc fundings, such as attorneys funding colleagues’ clients.

Employees
 

Our headquarters are located in Radnor, PA and as of December 31, 2014, we had a total of 410 full-time employees. We 
believe that our relations with our employees are good. None of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements 
or represented by an employee union.

Intellectual Property
 
 We own or have rights to trademarks, service marks or trade names that we use in connection with the operation of our 
business. In addition, our names, logos and website names and addresses are our service marks or trademarks. Some of the 
trademarks we own or have the right to use include “J.G. Wentworth” and “Peachtree Financial Solutions.” Many of our trademarks 
are highly recognizable and important to our multi-channel direct response marketing platform. 

Corporate Information
 

Our principal executive offices are located at 201 King of Prussia Road, Suite 501, Radnor, Pennsylvania 19087-5148 
and our telephone number at that address is (484) 434-2300. The J.G. Wentworth Company's website is located at http://
www.jgw.com. The content on our website is available for information purposes only. It should not be relied upon for investment 
purposes, nor is it incorporated by reference into this Annual Report, unless expressly noted. We file reports with the U.S. Securities 
and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, which we make available on the Investor Relations section of our website free of charge. 
These reports include our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K, 
each of which is provided on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such materials with or 
furnish them to the SEC. We also make available through our website other reports filed with, or furnished them to, the SEC under 
the Exchange Act, including our Proxy Statements and reports filed by officers and directors under Section 16(a) of that Act.
 
Implications of being an Emerging Growth Company
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We qualify as an “emerging growth company” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or JOBS 
Act.  As a result, we are permitted to, and have opted to, rely on exemptions from certain disclosure requirements that are applicable 
to other companies that are not emerging growth companies. 

 We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest of one of the following occur:

• our reporting of $1 billion or more in annual gross revenues;
• our issuance, in a three year period, of more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt;
• the end of the fiscal year in which the market value of our common stock held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 

million on the last business day of our second fiscal quarter; or
• the end of fiscal 2018.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
 

You should carefully consider each of the following risk factors and all of the other information set forth in this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K. The risk factors generally have been separated into five groups: (1) risks related to our business operations; 
(2) risks related to our financial position; (3) risks related to our legal and regulatory environment; (4) risks related to our 
organizational structure; and (5) risks related to ownership of our Class A common stock. Based on the information currently 
known to us, we believe that the following information identifies the most significant risk factors affecting us and our Class A 
common stock. However, the risks and uncertainties are not limited to those set forth in the risk factors described below. In addition, 
past financial performance may not be a reliable indicator of future performance and historical trends should not be used to 
anticipate results or trends in future periods.

 
Risks Related To Our Business Operations
 
Failure to implement our business strategy could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows.
 

Our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows depend on our management’s ability to execute 
our business strategy. Key factors involved in the execution of our business strategy include:

 
• our continued investment in and the effectiveness of our direct response marketing programs;
• maintaining our profit margins through changing economic cycles and interest rate environments;
• increases in the volumes of structured settlement payments purchased;
• growth in our existing and new business lines;
• increased penetration of our existing markets and penetration of complementary markets; and
• our ability to continue to access our financing platform on favorable terms.
 
Our failure or inability to execute any element of our business strategy could have a material adverse impact on us.

Annuity providers and other payors could change their payment practices for assignments of structured settlement, annuity 
and lottery payment streams, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows in future periods.
 

We currently have established relationships and experience with various insurance companies as well as state lottery 
commissions and other payors. Purchases of structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams require that the payors of 
such payment streams redirect payments from the initial payee and change the payee records within their operational and information 
technology systems in order to direct the purchased payment streams to us. Often, when we purchase less than all payment streams 
related to a receivable, the insurance company or other payor directs all of the payments streams to us, and we then take on the 
administrative responsibility to direct un-purchased payments to the seller or other payees. Moreover, if we complete more than 
one purchase transaction with a seller, the payor of the payment stream may be required to make further changes in their operational 
and information technology systems to cover such additional purchase and to allow us to assume additional administrative payment 
responsibility in order to direct multiple payment streams to different payees. Often, insurance companies or other payors are paid 
a fee by us in consideration for their costs and expenses in redirecting payments and updating their operational and information 
technology systems.

 
If, however, in the future, one or more of such insurance companies, lottery commissions or other payors were to no 

longer be willing to redirect payments to new payees, or allow us to assume administrative responsibility for directing payment, 



10

it could become more expensive or no longer possible to purchase structured settlement payments or other receivables paid by 
such payors, or we could incur significant legal expenses associated with compelling a payor to redirect payment to us, which 
could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows in future periods.

We depend on a number of third parties for the successful and timely implementation of our business strategy and the failure 
of any of those parties to meet certain deadlines could adversely impact our ability to generate revenue.
 

Our ability to purchase structured settlement payments and lottery receivables depends on the entry of related court orders. 
Our ability to complete a securitization and operate our business depends on a number of third parties, including rating agencies, 
notaries, outside counsel, insurance companies, investment banks, the court system, servicers, sub-servicers, collateral custodians 
and entities that participate in the capital markets to buy the related debt. We do not control these third parties and a failure to 
perform according to our requirements or acts of fraud by such parties could materially impact our business. For example, there 
have in the past and may be in the future deficiencies in court orders obtained on our behalf by third parties that result in those 
court orders being invalid, including as a result of failures to perform according to our requirements and acts of fraud, in which 
case we would need to take additional steps to attempt to cure the deficiencies. We may or may not be successful in curing these 
deficiencies and, if successful, there may nonetheless be a delay in our receipt of payment streams pursuant to the court orders 
and if unsuccessful, we may have to repurchase such payment streams from our securitization facilities. Any delay in the receipt 
of, or the invalidation of, a significant number of court orders or any delay in the closing of a securitization would significantly 
and adversely affect our earnings.

Competition may limit our ability to acquire structured settlement, annuity or lottery payment streams and could also affect 
the pricing of those payment streams.
 

Our profitability depends, in large part, on our ability to acquire structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams 
and purchase them at attractive discount rates. In acquiring these assets, we compete with other purchasers of those payment 
streams. In the future, it is possible that some competitors may have a lower cost of funds or access to funding sources that may 
not be available to us. In addition, some of our competitors may have higher risk tolerances or different risk assessments, which 
could allow them to consider a wider variety of asset purchases and establish more relationships with other competitors rather 
than only us. Furthermore, competition for purchases of structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams may lead to 
the price of such assets increasing, which may further limit our ability to generate desired returns. The competitive pressures we 
face may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
Unfavorable press reports about our business model may reduce our access to securitization markets or make prospective 
customers less willing to sell structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams to us or to accept pre-settlement funding 
from us.
 

The industry in which we operate is periodically the subject of negative press reports from the media and consumer 
advocacy groups. Our industry is relatively new and is susceptible to confusion about the role of purchasers of structured settlement, 
annuity and lottery payment streams and other alternative financial assets. We depend upon direct response marketing and our 
reputation to attract prospective customers and maintain existing customers. A sustained campaign of negative press reports could 
adversely affect our access to securitization markets or the public’s perception of us and our industry as a whole. If people are 
reluctant to sell structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams and other assets to us, our revenue would decline.

We are heavily dependent on direct response marketing and if we are unable to reach prospective customers in a cost-effective 
manner, it would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
 

We use direct response marketing to generate the inbound communications from prospective customers that are the basis 
of our purchasing activities. As a result, we have spent considerable money and resources on advertising to reach holders of 
structured settlements and similar products and intend to continue to do so. Our marketing efforts may not be successful or cost-
effective and if we are unable to reach prospective customers in a cost-effective manner, it would have a material adverse effect 
on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, we are heavily dependent on television and 
Internet advertising and a change in television viewing habits or Internet usage patterns could adversely impact our business. For 
example, the use of digital video recorders that allow viewers to skip commercials reduces the efficacy of our television marketing. 
There has also been a recent proliferation of new marketing platforms, including cellphones and tablets, as well as an increasing 
use of social media. If we are unable to adapt to these new marketing platforms, this may reduce the success and/or cost-effectiveness 
of our marketing efforts and have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows. Further, an event that reduces or eliminates our ability to reach potential customers or interrupts our telephone system could 
substantially impair our ability to generate revenue.
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We may not successfully enter new lines of business and broaden the scope of our current businesses.
 

We are growing our existing core business, we are developing strategies to leverage our highly recognizable brands, 
direct marketing capabilities, operational and underwriting capabilities, and low cost of capital to enter into new lines of business 
that are logical extensions to our core business, thus allowing us to become a diversified consumer financial services provider. 
For example, on March 6, 2015, we entered into a stock purchase agreement to acquire WestStar Mortgage, Inc. (“WestStar”), a 
residential mortgage company specializing in conforming mortgage lending (the “WestStar Acquisition”). While we anticipate 
that the WestStar Acquisition will close in the third quarter  of 2015, the transaction is subject to customary closing conditions 
and regulatory approvals, and we cannot assure you when, or if, it will be completed. The WestStar Acquisition represents our 
entry into the mortgage business. We may not achieve our expected growth if we do not successfully enter these new lines of 
business and broaden the scope of our current businesses. In addition, entering new lines of business and broadening the scope of 
our current businesses may require significant upfront expenditures that we may not be able to recoup in the future. These efforts 
may also divert management’s attention and expose us to new risks and regulations. As a result, entering new lines of business 
and broadening the scope of our current businesses may have material adverse effects on our business, financial condition, results 
of operations and cash flows.

We may pursue acquisitions or strategic alliances that we may not successfully integrate or that may divert our management’s 
attention and resources.
 

On March 6, 2015, we entered into a stock purchase agreement to acquire WestStar. While we anticipate that the WestStar 
Acquisition will close in the third quarter of 2015, the transaction is subject to customary closing conditions and regulatory 
approvals, and we cannot assure you when, or if, it will be completed. In addition, we are currently in discussions with parties 
regarding potential acquisition opportunities and we may pursue other acquisitions, joint ventures or strategic alliances in the 
future. However, we may not be able to identify and secure suitable opportunities. Our ability to consummate and integrate 
effectively the WestStar Acquisition or any future acquisitions or enter into strategic alliances on terms that are favorable to us 
may be limited by a number of factors, such as competition for attractive targets and, to the extent necessary for larger acquisitions, 
our ability to obtain financing on satisfactory terms, if at all.

 
In addition, if a potential candidate is identified, we may fail to enter into a definitive agreement for the candidate on 

commercially reasonable terms or at all. The negotiation and completion of potential acquisitions, joint ventures or strategic 
alliances, whether or not ultimately consummated, could also require significant diversion of management’s time and resources 
and potential disruption of our existing business. Further, the expected synergies from future acquisitions or strategic alliances 
may not be realized and we may not achieve the expected results. Any merger, acquisition or strategic partnership we undertake 
will entail certain risks, which may materially and adversely affect our results of operations. If we experience greater than anticipated 
costs to integrate acquired businesses into our existing operations or are not able to achieve the anticipated benefits of any merger, 
acquisition or strategic partnership, including cost savings and other synergies, our business could be negatively affected. In 
addition, it is possible that the ongoing integration processes could result in the loss of key employees, errors or delays in systems 
implementation, the disruption of our ongoing businesses or inconsistencies in standards, controls, procedures and policies that 
adversely affect our ability to maintain relationships with partners, clients, customers, depositors and employees or to achieve the 
anticipated benefits of any merger, acquisition or strategic partnership. Integration efforts also may divert management attention 
and resources. These integration matters may have an adverse effect on us during any transition period.

We may also have to incur significant charges in connection with future acquisitions. Future acquisitions or strategic 
alliances could also potentially result in the incurrence of additional indebtedness, costs and contingent liabilities. We may also 
have to obtain approvals and licenses from the relevant government authorities for the acquisitions and to comply with any 
applicable laws and regulations, which could result in increased costs and delay. Future strategic alliances or acquisitions may 
also expose us to potential risks, including risks associated with:

 
• failing to successfully integrate new operations, products and personnel;
• unforeseen or hidden liabilities;
• the diversion of financial or other resources from our existing businesses;
• our inability to generate sufficient revenue to recover costs and expenses of the strategic alliances or acquisitions; and
• potential loss of, or harm to, relationships with employees and customers.
 
Any of the above risks could significantly impair our ability to manage our business and materially and adversely affect our 

business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We are dependent on a small number of individuals, and if we lose these key personnel, our business will be adversely affected.
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Many of the key responsibilities of our business have been assigned to a relatively small number of individuals. Our 
future success depends to a considerable degree on the skills, experience and effort of our senior management. We may add 
additional senior personnel in the future. If we lose the services of any of our key employees, it could have an adverse effect on 
our business. We do not carry “key man” insurance for any of our management executives. Competition to hire personnel possessing 
the skills and experience we require could contribute to an increase in our employee turnover rate. Our business model depends 
heavily on staffing our call center with highly trained personnel. High turnover or an inability to attract and retain qualified 
replacement personnel could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We have access to personally identifiable confidential information of current and prospective customers and the improper use 
of or failure to protect that information could adversely affect our business and reputation. Furthermore, any significant 
security breach of our software applications or technology that contains personally identifiable confidential information of 
current customers could adversely affect our business and reputation.
 

Our business often requires that we handle personally identifiable confidential information, the use and disclosure of 
which is significantly restricted under federal and state privacy laws. As part of our normal operations, we rely on secure processing, 
storage, and transmission of confidential customer information through computer software systems and networks. Our information 
technology infrastructure is potentially vulnerable to security breaches, and a party able to circumvent our security measures could 
misappropriate private customer information. We maintain and rely on external and internal cybersecurity solutions as part of our 
internal controls that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that unauthorized access to our customer’s confidential data is 
prevented or detected in a timely manner. However, although we have not had any occurrences of a breach of our cybersecurity 
solutions, these internal controls may not continue to prevent unauthorized access to our software systems and networks.

In addition, our employees, vendors and business partners may have access to such confidential information. It is not 
always possible to deter misconduct by our employees, vendors and business partners, and the precautions we take to prevent 
disclosure of confidential information by our employees, vendors and business partners may not be effective in all cases. If our 
employees, vendors or business partners improperly use or disclose such confidential information, we could be subject to legal 
proceedings or regulatory sanctions.

Loss or misappropriation of confidential information of our customers may result in a loss of confidence in our transactions, 
may greatly harm our reputation, may adversely affect or ability to maintain current or potential customer relationships, and may 
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and cash flows. We maintain insurance 
coverage for certain losses associated with a cybersecurity breach, but we cannot guarantee that our insurance policies will fully 
protect us against all such losses and liabilities.

If the identities of structured settlement or annuity holders or of current litigants become readily available, it could have an 
adverse effect on our structured settlement or annuity payment purchasing or pre-settlement funding business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows.
 

We expect to continue to build and enhance our databases of holders of structured settlements and annuities and of current 
litigants through a combination of commercial and Internet advertising campaigns, social media activities and targeted marketing 
efforts. If the identities of structured settlement or annuity holders or of current litigants in our databases were to become readily 
available to our competitors or to the general public, including through the physical or cyber theft of our databases, we could face 
increased competition and the value of our proprietary databases would be diminished, which would have a negative effect on our 
structured settlement and annuity payment purchasing and pre-settlement funding businesses, financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows.

If we are unable to integrate our operational and financial information systems or expand, train, manage and motivate our 
workforce, our business may be adversely affected.
 

The success of our business strategy depends in part on our ability to expand our operations in the future. Our growth 
has placed, and will continue to place, increased demands on our information systems and other resources and further expansion 
of our operations will require substantial financial resources. To accommodate our past and anticipated future growth and to 
compete effectively, we will need to continue to integrate our financial information systems and expand, train, manage and motivate 
our workforce. Furthermore, focusing our financial resources on the expansion of our operations may negatively impact our 
financial results. Any failure to integrate our operational and financial information systems, or to expand, train, manage or motivate 
our workforce, may adversely affect our business.
 
Problems with the technologies and third-party technology service providers that we rely upon may diminish our ability to 
manage essential business functions.
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The computer networks and third-party technology services upon which our operations are based are complex and may 

contain undetected errors or suffer unexpected failures. We are exposed to the risk of failure of our proprietary computer systems 
and back-up systems, some of which are deployed, operated, monitored and supported by third parties whom we do not control. 
We also rely on third-party service providers for software development and system support. Any failure of our systems and any 
loss of data could damage our reputation and increase our costs or reduce our revenue.

 
We depend on uninterrupted computer access and the reliable operation of our information technology systems; any prolonged 
delays due to data interruptions or revocation of our software licenses could adversely affect our ability to operate our business 
and cause our customers to seek alternative service providers.
 

Many aspects of our business are dependent upon our ability to store, retrieve, process and manage data and to maintain 
and upgrade our data processing capabilities. Our success is dependent on high-quality and uninterrupted access to our computer 
systems, requiring us to protect our computer equipment, software and the information stored in servers against damage by fire, 
natural disaster, power loss, telecommunications failures, unauthorized intrusion and other catastrophic events. Interruption of 
data processing capabilities for any extended length of time, loss of stored data, programming errors or other technological problems 
could impair our ability to provide certain products. A system failure, if prolonged, could result in reduced revenues, loss of 
customers and damage to our reputation, any of which could cause our business to materially suffer. In addition, due to the highly 
automated environment in which we operate our computer systems, any undetected error in the operation of our business processes 
or computer software may cause us to lose revenues or subject us to liabilities for third party claims. While we carry property and 
business interruption insurance to cover operations, the coverage may not be adequate to compensate us for losses that may occur.

Use of social media may adversely impact our reputation or subject us to fines or other penalties. 

There has been a substantial increase in the use of social media platforms, including blogs, social media websites, and 
other forms of Internet-based communications, which allow individuals access to a broad audience of consumers and other interested 
persons. Negative commentary regarding us or our brands may be posted on social media platforms and similar devices at any 
time and may be adverse to our reputation or business. Consumers value readily available information and often act on such 
information without further investigation and without regard to its accuracy. The harm may be immediate without affording us an 
opportunity for redress or correction. In addition, social media platforms provide users with access to such a broad audience that 
collective action, such as boycotts, can be more easily organized. If such actions were organized against us, we could suffer damage 
to our reputation, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
 We also use social media platforms as marketing tools. For example, our brands maintain Facebook and Twitter accounts. 
As laws and regulations rapidly evolve to govern the use of these platforms and devices, the failure by us, our employees or third 
parties acting at our direction to abide by applicable laws and regulations in the use of these platforms and devices could adversely 
impact our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows or subject us to fines or other penalties.

Our business may suffer if our trademarks, service marks or domain names are infringed.
 

We rely on trademarks, service marks and domain names to protect our brands. Many of these trademarks, service marks 
and domain names have been a key part of establishing our business. We believe these trademarks, service marks and domain 
names have significant value and are important to the marketing of our products. We cannot assure you that the steps we have 
taken or will take to protect our proprietary rights will be adequate to prevent misappropriation of our rights or the use by others 
of features based upon, or otherwise similar to, ours. In addition, although we believe we have the right to use our trademarks, 
service marks and domain names, we cannot assure you that our trademarks, service marks and domain names do not or will not 
violate the proprietary rights of others, that our trademarks, service marks and domain names will be upheld if challenged, or that 
we will not be prevented from using our trademarks, service marks and domain names, any of which occurrences could harm our 
business.

We operate primarily at a facility in a single location, and any disruption at this facility could harm our business.

Our principal executive offices are located in Radnor, Pennsylvania.  All of our operations are conducted at this location, 
including customer and technical support and management and administrative functions. We take precautions to safeguard our 
facility, including acquiring insurance, employing back-up generators, adopting health and safety protocols and utilizing off-site 
storage of computer data. Notwithstanding these precautions, any disruptions to our operations at this facility, including from 
power outage, systems failure, vandalism, terrorism or a natural or other disaster, such as severe weather, hurricane, fire or flood, 
could significantly impair our operations for a substantial period of time, result in the loss of key information and cause us to incur 
additional expenses. Our insurance may not cover our losses in any particular case. Some, but not all, of our employees have the 
ability to work remotely and our ability to function without access to our facility would be limited. In addition, most of our 
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employees live in the area surrounding our principal executive offices, and any natural or other disaster in that area will likely 
also affect our employees, causing them to be unable to occupy our facility, work remotely or communicate with or travel to other 
locations. Such damage to our facility and operations may harm our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows. 

Risks Related To Our Financial Position
 
An increase in the cost of our financing sources, especially relative to the discount rate at which we purchase assets, may 
reduce our profitability.
 

Our ability to monetize our structured settlement, annuity, and lottery payment stream purchases and pre-settlement 
funding depends on our ability to obtain temporary and/or permanent financing at attractive rates, especially relative to our purchase 
discount rate. If the cost of our financing increases relative to the discount rate at which we are able to purchase assets, our profits 
will decline. A variety of factors can materially and adversely affect the cost of our financing, including, among others, an increase 
in interest rates or an increase in the credit spread on our financings relative to underlying benchmark rates. Similarly, a variety 
of factors can materially adversely affect our purchase discount rate including, among others, increased competition, regulatory 
and legislative changes, including the imposition of additional or lower rate caps to those currently in effect in certain states in 
which we operate, the views of the courts and other regulatory bodies and the efforts of consumer advocacy groups. For further 
detail regarding the effect of increases in the cost of our financing sources on our business, please refer to “Part II Item 7A 
'Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Quantitative and Qualitative 
Disclosures about Market Risk.'”

 
We are exposed to interest rate volatility risk as interest rates can fluctuate in the period between when we purchase payment 
streams and when we securitize such payment streams.
 

We purchase structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams at a discount rate based on, among other factors, 
our then estimates of the future interest rate environment. Once a critical mass of payment streams is achieved, those payment 
streams are then securitized or otherwise financed. The discount rate at which a securitization is sold to investors is based on the 
current interest rates as of the time of such securitization. Interest rates may fluctuate significantly during the period between the 
purchase and financing of payment streams, which can reduce the spread between the discount rate at which we purchased the 
payment streams and the discount rate at which we securitize such payment streams, which would reduce our revenues. Volatile 
interest rate environments can lead to volatility in our results of operations. If we are unable to finance the payment streams we 
purchase at a discount rate that is sufficiently lower than the discount rate at which we make such purchases, it could have a 
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
Our ability to continue to purchase structured settlement payments and other financial assets and to fund our business is 
dependent on the availability of credit from our financing resources.
 

We are currently highly dependent on obtaining financing to fund our purchases of structured settlement payments and 
other financial assets. We currently depend on our committed warehouse lines to finance our purchase of structured settlement, 
annuity, and lottery payment streams prior to their securitization. We are also dependent on a committed revolving credit facility 
for the financing of our pre-settlement funding and a permanent financing facility for our life contingent structured settlement 
payments and life contingent annuity payments purchases. In order to access these facilities we are required to meet certain 
conditions to borrow. In the future we may not be able to meet these conditions in which case we would be unable to borrow under 
one or all of our facilities. In addition, these warehouse lines and other financing facilities may not continue to be available to us 
beyond their current maturity dates at reasonable terms or at all. If we are unable to extend or replace any of our financing sources, 
we will have to limit our purchasing activities, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows.

 
If we are unable to complete future securitizations or other financings on favorable terms, then our business will be adversely 
affected.
 

Our business depends on our ability to aggregate and securitize many of the financial assets that we purchase, including 
structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams, in the form of privately offered asset-backed securities, private 
placements or other term financings. The availability of financing sources is dependent in part on factors outside of our control. 
For example, our results in 2008 and 2009 were impacted by the financial crisis, which resulted in a lack of purchasers of our 
asset-backed securitizations and a resultant lack of capital availability from our warehouse facilities. We were forced to limit 
transaction volume without access to the securitization market and with limited warehouse capacity. We significantly scaled back 
new transactions, resulting in insufficient cash flow relative to our leverage.  On March 31, 2009, J.G. Wentworth,  LLC failed to 
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make an interest payment on certain debt and on related interest rate swap contracts. On June 4, 2009, J.G. Wentworth, LLC and 
certain of its affiliates completed a reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, or the Bankruptcy 
Code, and emerged with a restructured balance sheet. In the future, we may not be able to continue to securitize our structured 
settlement payments at favorable rates or obtain financing through borrowings or other means on acceptable terms or at all, in 
which case we may be unable to satisfy our cash requirements. Our financings generate cash proceeds that allow us to repay 
amounts borrowed under our committed warehouse lines, finance the purchase of additional financial assets and pay our operating 
expenses. Changes in our asset-backed securities program could materially adversely affect our earnings and ability to purchase 
and securitize structured settlement, annuity, or lottery payment streams on a timely basis. These changes could include:
 

• a delay in the completion of a planned securitization;
• negative market perception of us;
• a change in rating agency criteria with regards our asset class;
• delays from rating agencies in providing ratings on our securitizations; and
• failure of the financial assets we intend to securitize to conform to rating agency requirements.

 We plan to continue to access the securitization market frequently. If for any reason we were not able to complete a 
securitization, it could negatively impact our cash flow during that period. If we are unable to consummate securitization transactions 
in the future or if there is an adverse change in the asset-backed securities market for structured settlement, annuity, or lottery 
payment streams generally, we may have to curtail our activities, which would have a material adverse effect on our business, 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
We have a substantial amount of indebtedness, which may adversely affect our cash flow and ability to operate or grow our 
business.
 

As of December 31, 2014, we had $450 million total indebtedness (not including indebtedness related to our warehouse 
facilities and asset-backed securitizations, which is recourse only to the VIE assets on our balance sheet). In addition, on the same 
basis, we would have had the ability to incur $20 million of additional indebtedness under our revolving credit facility. Our 
substantial indebtedness could have a number of important consequences. For example, our substantial indebtedness could:

 
• make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness or comply with the obligations 

of any of our debt instruments, including restrictive covenants and borrowing conditions, which could result in 
an event of default under one or more agreements governing our indebtedness;

• make us more vulnerable to adverse changes in the general economic, competitive and regulatory environment;
• require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our indebtedness, 

thereby reducing the cash available for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other general 
corporate purposes;

• limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we operate;
• place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that are less highly leveraged, as they may 

be able to take advantage of opportunities that our leverage prevents us from exploiting; and
• limit our ability to borrow additional amounts for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service 

requirements, execution of our business strategy or other purposes.

 Any of the above listed factors could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations 
and cash flows. Further, subject to compliance with our financing agreements, we have the ability to incur additional indebtedness, 
which would exacerbate the risks associated with our existing debt.

 
We are dependent on the opinions of certain rating agencies for the valuation of the credit quality of our assets to access the 
capital markets.
 

Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and A.M. Best evaluate some, but not all, of the insurance companies that are the payors 
on the structured settlement, annuity and certain lottery payment streams that we purchase. Similarly, Standard & Poor’s, 
Moody’s, A.M. Best and DBRS, Inc. evaluate some, but not all, of our securitizations of those assets. We may be negatively 
impacted if any of these rating agencies stop covering these insurance companies or decide to downgrade their ratings or change 
their methodology for rating insurance companies or our securitizations. A downgrade in the credit rating of the major insurance 
companies that write structured settlements could negatively affect our ability to access the capital or securitization markets. In 
addition, we may be negatively impacted if any of these rating agencies stop rating our securitizations, which would adversely 
affect our ability to sell our securitizations and the price that we receive for them. These events could have a material adverse 
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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Changes in tax or accounting policies applicable to our business could have a material adverse effect on our future profitability 
or presentation of our results.
 

Our GAAP income may be significantly higher than our taxable income due to current tax and accounting laws and 
policies. The tax rules applicable to our business are complex and we continue to evaluate our positions and processes. If these 
laws and policies were to change, we could owe significantly more in income taxes than the cash generated by our operations. If 
we were unable for any reason to continue purchasing structured settlement annuity or lottery payment streams or other products, 
as well as generate current operating and marketing expenses, we could generate significant tax liabilities without a corresponding 
cash flow to cover those liabilities. In addition, changes in tax or accounting policies applicable to our business could also have 
a material adverse effect on our future profitability or presentation of our results.

 
Residuals from prior securitizations represent a significant portion of our assets, but there is no established market for those 
residuals.
 

After a securitization is executed, we retain a subordinated interest in the receivables, referred to as the residuals, which 
we include within our balance sheet within the caption VIE and other finance receivables, at fair market value. We have financed 
certain of our residuals under a term facility. If under forced circumstances we are required to sell our residuals to pay down debt 
or to otherwise generate cash for operations, we may not be able to generate proceeds that reflect the value of those residuals on 
our books or that are sufficient to repay the related indebtedness. In addition, a sale of the residuals under those circumstances 
would likely generate taxable income without sufficient cash to pay those taxes. Changes in interest rates, credit spreads and the 
specific credit of the underlying assets may lead to unrealized losses that negatively affect our GAAP income.

 
Additionally, certain risk retention requirements promulgated under the Dodd-Frank Act and similar national and 

international laws could limit our ability to sell or finance our residual interests in the future and this could also have a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
We are exposed to underwriting risk, particularly with respect to our pre-settlement funding.
 

The profitability of our pre-settlement funding depends on our ability to accurately underwrite both the likelihood that 
a personal injury case will result in a settlement as well as the amount of the settlement that is reached. Although we attempt to 
deploy a conservative underwriting profile by funding only a small fraction of case types with consistent settlement values and 
having all cases evaluated by our experienced team of in-house attorneys and paralegals, significant differences between our 
expected and actual collections on pre-settlement funding could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows.

 
In addition, the profitability of our purchases of structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams depends on 

our selection of high quality counterparties and confirmation that there is no senior claim on the payment stream, such as child 
support or bankruptcy. In the event that one or more of our counterparties is unable or unwilling to make scheduled payments on 
a payment stream we have purchased, this may have a material adverse effect on our earnings and financial condition.

The senior management team has a great deal of discretion in determining the composition of our securitization program.

A substantial portion of our cash flow is generated on the closing of a securitization. Our senior management team decides 
how many securitizations we conduct per year and what asset types and amounts to include in our securitization program, based 
on numerous facts and circumstances. If our senior management does not accurately gauge the appropriate asset mix or timing 
for a securitization, this may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows.

 
Our business could be adversely affected if the Bankruptcy Code is changed or interpreted in a manner that affects our rights 
to scheduled payments with respect to a payment stream we have purchased.
 

If a holder of a structured settlement, annuity or lottery payment stream were to become a debtor in a case under the 
Bankruptcy Code, a court could hold that the scheduled payments transferred by the holder under the applicable purchase agreement 
do not constitute property of the estate of the claimant under the Bankruptcy Code. If, however, a trustee in bankruptcy or other 
receiver were to assert a contrary position, such as by requiring us, or any securitization vehicle, to establish our right to those 
payments under federal bankruptcy law or by persuading courts to recharacterize the transaction as secured loans, such result 
could have a material adverse effect on our business. If the rights to receive the scheduled payments are deemed to be property 
of the bankruptcy estate of the claimant, the trustee may be able to avoid assignment of the receivable to us.
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Furthermore, a general creditor or representative of the creditors, such as a trustee in bankruptcy, of a special purpose 
vehicle to which an insurance company assigns its obligations to make payments under a structured settlement, annuity or lottery 
payment stream could make the argument that the payments due from the annuity provider are the property of the estate of such 
special purpose vehicle (as the named owner thereof). To the extent that a court accepted this argument, the resulting delays or 
reductions in payments on our receivables could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows.

 
Also, many of our financing facilities are structured using “bankruptcy remote” special purpose entities to which structured 

settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams are sold in connection with such financing facilities. Under current case law, 
courts generally uphold such structures, the separateness of such entities and the sales of such assets if certain factors are met. If, 
however, a bankruptcy court were to find that such factors did not exist in the financing facilities or current case law was to change, 
there would be a risk that defaults would occur under the financing facilities. Moreover, certain subsidiaries may be consolidated 
upon a bankruptcy of one of our subsidiaries or the sales may not be upheld as true sales by a reviewing court. This could have a 
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
We have certain indemnification and repurchase obligations under our various financing facilities.
 

In the ordinary course of our financing activities, we provide customary indemnities to counterparties in certain financing 
and other transactions. No assurance can be given that these counterparties will not call upon us to discharge these obligations in 
the circumstances under which they are owed. In addition, in connection with financing transactions, in certain instances we retain 
customary repurchase obligations with respect to any assets sold into or financed under those transactions that fail to meet the 
represented objective eligibility criteria. Although we believe our origination practices are sufficient to assure material compliance 
with such criteria, certain instances have and may occur in which we are required to repurchase such assets.

 
Payor insolvency and similar events could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows.
 

In instances where insurance companies or other payors of the assets we purchase go bankrupt, become insolvent, or are 
otherwise unable to pay the purchased payment streams on time, we may not be able to collect all or any of the scheduled payments 
we have purchased. For example, on September 1, 2011, in the Matter of the Rehabilitation of Executive Life Company of New 
York, or ELNY, in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of Nassau, the Superintendent of Insurance of the State 
of New York filed an Agreement of Restructuring in connection with the liquidation of ELNY under Article 75 of the New York 
Insurance Laws. This restructuring plan was subsequently approved by the court. Under this plan, payment streams to be paid on 
certain receivables purchased by us were reduced. In the future, bankruptcies, additional insolvencies and other events may occur 
which limit the ability of payors to pay on time and in full, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
Risks Related To Our Legal And Regulatory Environment
 
Certain changes in current tax law could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations 
and cash flows.
 

The use of structured settlements is largely the result of their favorable federal income tax treatment. In 1979, the IRS 
issued revenue rulings that the income tax exclusion of personal injury settlements applied to related periodic payments. Thus, 
claimants receiving installment payments as compensation for a personal injury were exempt from all federal income taxation, 
provided certain conditions were met. This ruling, and its subsequent codification into federal tax law in 1982 with the passing of 
the Settlement Act, resulted in the proliferation of structured settlements as a means of settling personal injury lawsuits. Changes 
to tax policies that eliminate this exemption of structured settlements from federal taxation could have a material adverse effect 
on our future profitability. Congress has previously considered and may revisit legislation that could make our transactions less 
attractive to prospective customers, including legislation that would reduce or eliminate the benefits derived from the tax deferred 
nature of structured settlements and annuity products. If the tax treatment for structured settlements was changed adversely by a 
statutory change or a change in interpretation, the dollar volume of structured settlements issued could be reduced significantly, 
which would, in turn, reduce the addressable market of our structured settlements payment purchasing business. In addition, if 
there were a change in the Code or a change in interpretation that would result in adverse tax consequences for the assignment or 
transfer of structured settlement payments, such change could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows.

 
We could be assessed excise taxes that result from IRS audits of our subsidiaries’ compliance with Section 5891 of the Code 
which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations in future periods.
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Section 5891 of the Code, as amended by the Tax Relief Act, levies an excise tax upon those people or entities that acquire 

structured settlement payments from a seller on or after February 22, 2002, unless certain conditions are satisfied. Such tax equals 
40% of the discount obtained by the purchaser of the structured settlement payments. However, no such tax is levied if the transfer 
of such structured settlement payments is approved in a qualified court order. A qualified court order under the Tax Relief Act 
means a final order, judgment or decree that finds that the transfer does not contravene any federal or state law or the order of any 
court or administrative authority and is in the best interest of the payee, taking into account the welfare and support of the payee’s 
dependents. The order must be issued under the authority of an applicable state statute of the state in which the seller is domiciled, 
or, if there is no such statute, under the authority of an applicable state statute of the state in which the seller or annuity provider 
is domiciled, and issued by a court of such state or the state of the seller’s domicile, or by the responsible administrative authority 
(if any) that has exclusive jurisdiction over the underlying action or proceeding.

Changes in existing state laws governing the transfer of structured settlement or lottery payments or in the interpretation thereof 
may adversely impact our business or reduce our growth.
 

The structured settlement and lottery payments secondary markets are highly regulated and require court approval for 
each sale under applicable transfer statutes. These transfer statutes, as well as states’ uniform commercial codes, insurance laws 
and rules of civil procedure, help ensure the validity, enforceability and tax characteristics of the structured settlement payments 
and lottery receivables purchasing transactions in which we engage. States may amend their transfer statutes, uniform commercial 
codes and rules of civil procedure in a manner that inhibits our ability to conduct business, including by means of retroactive laws, 
which would adversely impact our business. In addition, courts may interpret transfer statutes in a manner that inhibits our ability 
to conduct business. Failing to comply with the terms of a transfer statute when purchasing payments could potentially result in 
forfeiture of both the right to receive the payments and any unrecovered portion of the purchase price we paid for the payments, 
which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
Changes to statutory, licensing and regulatory regimes governing structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams 
including the means by which we conduct such business, could have a material adverse effect on our activities and revenues.
 

The structured settlements, annuities and lottery payments industries are subject to extensive and evolving federal, state 
and local laws and regulations. As a purchaser of structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams, we are subject to 
extensive and increasing regulation by a number of governmental entities at the federal, state and local levels with respect to the 
above laws.

 
Changes to statutory, licensing and regulatory regimes could result in the enforcement of stricter compliance measures 

or adoption of additional measures on us or on the insurance companies and other payors that stand behind the structured settlement 
payments and other assets that we purchase, either of which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows. Any change to the regulatory regime covering the resale of any of such asset 
classes, including any change specifically applicable to our activities or to investor eligibility, could restrict our ability to finance, 
acquire or securitize such assets or could lead to significantly increased compliance costs.

 
In recent years, both federal and state government agencies have increased civil and criminal enforcement efforts relating 

to the specialty finance industry and how companies interact with potential customers. This heightened enforcement activity 
increases our potential exposure to damaging lawsuits, investigations and other enforcement actions. Any such investigation or 
action could force us to expend considerable resources to respond to or defend against such investigation or action and could 
adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
Our purchases of certain assets may be viewed as consumer lending, which could subject us to adverse regulatory limitations 
and litigation.
 

From time to time, we have been named as defendant in suits involving attempts to recharacterize the purchase of non-
court-ordered structured settlement payments or other assets as loan transactions. If a transaction is characterized as a loan rather 
than a sale, then various consumer lending laws apply, such as usury statutes, consumer credit statutes or truth-in-lending statutes. 
If a court finds any of our transactions are subject to consumer lending laws, we may not have complied in all respects with the 
requirements of the applicable statutes. The failure to comply could result in remedies including the rescission of the agreement 
under which we purchased the right to the stream of periodic payments and the repayment of amounts we received under that 
agreement.

 
Adverse judicial developments could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows.



19

 
Adverse judicial developments have occasionally occurred and could occur in the future in the industries in which we 

do business. In the structured settlement payment purchasing industry, adverse judicial developments have occurred with regard 
to anti-assignment concerns and issues associated with non-disclosure of material facts and associated misconduct. Most of the 
settlement agreements that give rise to the structured settlement receivables that we purchase contain anti-assignment provisions 
that purport to prohibit assignments or encumbrances of structured settlement payments due under the agreement. If anti-assignment 
provisions are included in an agreement, a claimant or a payor could attempt to invoke the anti-assignment provision to invalidate 
a claimant’s transfer of structured settlement payments to the purchaser, or to force the purchaser to pay damages. In addition, 
under certain circumstances, interested parties other than the related claimant or payor could challenge, and potentially invalidate, 
an assignment of structured settlement payments made in violation of an anti-assignment provision. Whether the presence of an 
anti-assignment provision in a settlement agreement can be used to invalidate a prior transfer depends on various aspects of state 
and federal law, including case law and the form of Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code adopted in the applicable state. 
Any adverse judicial developments calling into doubt laws and regulations related to structured settlements, annuities, lotteries 
and pre-settlements could materially and adversely affect our investments in such assets and our financing.

 
Potential litigation, regulatory proceedings or adverse federal or state tax rulings could have a material adverse impact on our 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows in future periods.
 

We are currently subject to lawsuits that could cause us to incur substantial expenditures and generate adverse publicity. 
Please refer to  "Part I Item 3 'Legal Proceedings'" in this Annual Report. We may also be subject to further litigation in the future, 
including potential class actions and/or trade practices litigation. We may also become subject to attempted class action or similar 
types of mass transaction review due to negative court rulings, such as those described in the preceding risk factor. In addition, 
we may be subject to litigation arising from our 2011 merger with Orchard Acquisition Company, LLC, or OAC Merger,  or other 
transactions we have undertaken, as well as possibly those engaged in by certain of our affiliates of former affiliates. 

 
The consequences of an adverse ruling in any current or future litigation could have a material adverse effect on our 

business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Defense of any lawsuit, even if successful, could require 
substantial time and attention of our senior management that would otherwise be spent on other aspects of our business and could 
require the expenditure of significant amounts for legal fees and other related costs. Settlement of lawsuits may also result in 
significant payments and modifications to our operations.

 
We are also subject to regulatory proceedings and other governmental investigations, and we could suffer monetary losses 

or restrictions on our operations from interpretations of state laws in those regulatory proceedings, even if we are not a party to 
those proceedings. In addition, any adverse federal or state tax rulings or proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
The Dodd-Frank Act, authorizes the CFPB to adopt rules that could potentially have a serious impact on our business, and it 
also empowers the CFPB and state officials to bring enforcement actions against companies that violate federal consumer 
financial laws.
 

Title X of the Dodd-Frank Act established the CFPB, which has regulatory, supervisory and enforcement powers over 
providers of consumer financial products and services. Included in the powers afforded the CFPB is the authority to adopt 
rules describing specified acts and practices as being “unfair,” “deceptive” or “abusive,” and hence unlawful. The CFPB could 
adopt rules imposing new and potentially burdensome requirements and limitations with respect to our lines of business. In addition 
to Dodd-Frank’s grant of regulatory powers to the CFPB, Dodd-Frank gives the CFPB authority to pursue administrative 
proceedings or litigation for violations of federal consumer financial laws.

 
In these proceedings, the CFPB can obtain cease and desist orders and civil monetary penalties. Also, where a company 

has violated Title X of Dodd-Frank or CFPB regulations under Title X, Dodd-Frank empowers state attorneys general and state 
regulators to bring civil actions for the kind of cease and desist orders available to the CFPB (but not for civil penalties). If the 
CFPB or one or more state officials believe we have violated the foregoing laws, they could exercise their enforcement powers 
in ways that would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

 
In March 2014, the Company and certain of its affiliates were served with Civil Investigative Demands, or CIDs, from 

the CFPB. The CIDs request various information and documents for the purpose of determining the Company’s compliance with 
Sections 1031 and 1036 of the Consumer Financial Protection Act of 2010, 12 U.S.C. §§ 5531, 5536; the Truth in Lending Act, 
15 U.S.C. §§ 1601 et seq., or its implementing regulations, and other Federal-consumer financial laws.  The CIDs appear to be 
designed to broadly solicit general information about the Company and its business. We believe that the Company’s practices are 
fully compliant with applicable law, and we have cooperated with the CFPB.
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Increased regulation of asset-backed securities offerings under the Dodd-Frank Act and other laws and regulations could have 
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
 

On March 29, 2011, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the Treasury, the Board of Governors of the Federal 
Reserve System, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Federal Housing 
Finance Agency and Department of Housing and Urban Development issued a joint notice of proposed rulemaking proposing 
rules to implement the credit risk retention requirements of section 15G of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or Exchange Act, 
as amended by Section 941 of the Dodd-Frank Act. The Dodd-Frank Act provides that the sponsor or an affiliate of the sponsor 
must retain at least 5% of the credit risk of any asset pool that is securitized. These federal regulators jointly re-proposed this rule 
on August 28, 2013. It remains unclear what requirements will be included in the final rule and what the ultimate impact of the 
final rule will be on the marketability of our asset-backed securities or our ability to structure and complete future asset-backed 
securitizations and other financings. Moreover, we cannot predict whether other similar rules and restrictions will be promulgated 
in the future, including, without limitation, revisions by the Securities and Exchange Commission to Regulation AB. Such 
regulations, rules and laws could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows.

The regulatory environment for pre-settlement funding, including the means by which we conduct such business, is uncertain, 
and changes to statutory, licensing and regulatory regimes governing pre-settlement funding could have a material adverse 
effect on our activities.
 

The regulatory framework for pre-settlement funding is still in its early stages and is evolving rapidly. Most states currently 
do not have any laws specifically addressing pre-settlement funding, and the regulatory framework is based on state-specific case 
laws. We expect that a consistent national regulatory framework will develop in the future, and while we are currently working 
with relevant trade organizations to draft a model act, there exists considerable uncertainty as to the form of this regulatory 
framework. This future regulation could force us to significantly alter our strategy or restrict our ability to provide pre-settlement 
funding.
 
Risks Related To Our Organizational Structure
 
As a holding company, we have no operations and our only material asset is our economic interest in JGW LLC, and we are 
accordingly dependent upon distributions from JGW LLC to pay our expenses, taxes and dividends (if and when declared by 
our board of directors).
 

We are a holding company and have no material direct operations or assets other than our ownership of Common Interests 
in JGW LLC. We have no independent means of generating revenue and as a result are dependent on loans, dividends and other 
payments from our subsidiaries to generate the funds necessary to meet our financial obligations and to pay dividends on our Class 
A common stock. We intend to cause JGW LLC to make distributions to us, as its managing member, in an amount sufficient to 
cover all expenses, applicable taxes payable and dividends, if any, declared by our board of directors. However, our subsidiaries 
are legally distinct from us and may be prohibited or restricted from paying dividends or otherwise making funds available to us 
under certain conditions. To the extent that we need funds and JGW LLC is restricted from making such distributions under 
applicable law or regulation or under any present or future debt covenants or is otherwise unable to provide such funds, it could 
materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

 
We are required to pay certain holders of Common Interests in JGW LLC for most of the benefits relating to any additional 
tax depreciation or amortization deductions we may claim as a result of any tax basis step-up we receive in connection with 
any future exchanges of such Common Interests and related transactions with JGW LLC.
 

Holders of Common Interests in JGW LLC other than us, or the Common Interestholders may in the future exchange 
Common Interests in JGW LLC for Class A common stock or, in the case of PGHI Corp., shares of our Class C common stock, 
par value $0.00001 per share, (the "Class C common stock”), on a one-for-one basis (or, at JGW LLC’s option, cash). JGW LLC 
is expected to have in effect an election under Section 754 of the Code, which may result in an adjustment to our share of the tax 
basis of the assets owned by JGW LLC at the time of such initial sale of and subsequent exchanges of Common Interests in JGW 
LLC. The sale and exchanges may result in increases in our share of the tax basis of the tangible and intangible assets of JGW 
LLC that otherwise would not have been available. Any such increases in tax basis are, in turn, anticipated to create incremental 
tax deductions that would reduce the amount of tax that we would otherwise be required to pay in the future.

 
In connection with our IPO, we entered into a tax receivable agreement with all Common Interestholders who hold in 

excess of approximately 1% of the Common Interests in JGW LLC outstanding immediately prior to our IPO requiring us to pay 
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them 85% of the amount of cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax that we actually realize in any tax year 
from increases in tax basis realized as a result of any future exchanges by Common Interestholders of their Common Interests in 
JGW LLC for shares of Class A common stock or shares of Class C common stock (or cash). We expect to benefit from the 
remaining 15% of cash savings, if any, in income tax that we actually realize during a covered tax year. The cash savings in income 
tax paid to any such Common Interestholders will reduce the cash that may otherwise be available to us for our operations and to 
make future distributions to holders of shares of Class A common stock.

 
For purposes of the tax receivable agreement, cash savings in income tax will be computed by comparing our actual 

income tax liability for a covered tax year to the amount of such taxes that we would have been required to pay for such covered 
tax year had there been no increase to our share of the tax basis of the tangible and intangible assets of JGW LLC as a result of 
such sale and any such exchanges and had we not entered into the tax receivable agreement. The tax receivable agreement continues 
until all such tax benefits have been utilized or expired, unless we exercise our right to terminate the tax receivable agreement 
upon a change of control for an amount based on the remaining payments expected to be made under the tax receivable agreement.

 
JLL Partners and its affiliates, collectively “JLL”, owns a portion of its investment through an existing corporation. On 

October 7, 2014, we executed a merger, the "Blocker Merger" where JLL received shares of newly issued Class A common stock, 
we acquired the entity, and we therefore, succeeded to certain tax attributes, if any, of said corporation. Please refer to Note 2 in 
"Part II Item 8 'Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.'" The tax receivable agreement requires us to pay the shareholders of 
such corporation for the use of any such attributes in the same manner as payments made for cash savings from increases in tax 
basis as described above.

 
The owners of PGHI Corp., including DLJ Merchant Banking Partners IV, L.P. and affiliates of Credit Suisse Group AG, 

own their investment through PGHI Corp. In the event we engage in a merger with such corporation in which the shareholders of 
that corporation receive the shares of Class C common stock directly, we will succeed to certain tax attributes, if any, of such 
corporation. The tax receivable agreement requires us to pay the shareholders of such corporation for the use of any such attributes 
above a specific amount in the same manner as payments made for cash savings from increases in tax basis as described above.

 
While the actual amount and timing of any payments under this agreement will vary depending upon a number of factors 

(including the timing of exchanges, the amount of gain recognized by an exchanging Common Interestholder, the amount and 
timing of our income and the tax rates in effect at the time any incremental tax deductions resulting from the increase in tax basis 
are utilized) we expect that the payments that we may make to the Common Interestholders that are parties to the tax receivable 
agreement could be substantial during the expected term of the tax receivable agreement. We will bear the costs of implementing 
the provisions of the tax receivable agreement. A tax authority may challenge all or part of the tax basis increases or the amount 
or availability of any tax attributes discussed above, as well as other related tax positions we take, and a court could sustain such 
a challenge. The Common Interestholders that are party to the tax receivable agreement will not reimburse us for any payments 
previously made to them in the event that, due to a successful challenge by the IRS or any other tax authority of the amount of 
any tax basis increase or the amount or availability of any tax attributes, our actual cash tax savings are less than the cash tax 
savings previously calculated and upon which prior payments under the tax receivables were based. As a result, in certain 
circumstances we could make payments under the tax receivable agreement to the Common Interestholders that are party thereto 
in excess of our cash tax savings. A successful challenge to our tax reporting positions could also adversely affect our other tax 
attributes and could materially increase our tax liabilities.

 
In certain cases, payments under the tax receivable agreement to the Common Interestholders may be accelerated and/

or significantly exceed the actual benefits we realize in respect of the tax attributes subject to the tax receivable agreement, and 
if the tax reporting positions we determine are not respected, our tax attributes could be adversely affected and the amount of our 
tax liabilities could materially increase.

 
The tax receivable agreement provides that upon certain changes of control, we will be required to pay the Common 

Interestholders amounts based on assumptions regarding the remaining payments expected to be made under the tax receivable 
agreement (at our option, these payments can be accelerated into a single payment at the time of the change of control). As a result, 
we could be required to make payments under the tax receivable agreement that are greater than or less than the specified percentage 
of the actual benefits we realize in respect of the tax attributes subject to the tax receivable agreement, and the upfront payment 
may be made years in advance of any actual realization of such future benefits. In these situations, our obligations under the tax 
receivable agreement could have a substantial negative impact on our liquidity, and there can be no assurance that we will be able 
to finance our obligations under the tax receivable agreement.

 
Payments under the tax receivable agreement will be based on the tax reporting positions that we determine, and we will 

not be reimbursed by the Common Interestholders for any payments previously made under the tax receivable agreement. As a 
result, in certain circumstances, payments we make under the tax receivable agreement could significantly exceed the cash tax or 
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other benefits, if any, that we actually realize. In addition, if the tax reporting positions we determine are not respected, our tax 
attributes could be adversely affected and the amount of our tax liabilities could materially increase.

 
Control by JLL of 76.3% of the combined voting power of our common stock and the fact that it is holding its economic interest 
through JGW LLC may give rise to conflicts of interest.
 

As of December 31, 2014, JLL controlled 76.3% of the combined voting power of our common stock. As a result, JLL 
is able to significantly influence the outcome of all matters requiring a stockholder vote, including: the election of directors; 
mergers, consolidations and acquisitions; the sale of all or substantially all of our assets and other decisions affecting our capital 
structure; the amendment of our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws; and our winding up and dissolution. This concentration 
of ownership may delay, deter or prevent acts that would be favored by our other stockholders or deprive holders of Class A 
common stock of an opportunity to receive a premium for their shares of Class A common stock as part of a sale of our business.

 
The interests of JLL may not always coincide with our interests or the interests of our other stockholders. JLL has 

significant relationships which it has developed over the years or may develop in the future and these relationships may affect 
who we work with to implement our strategy and could be influenced by motivations that may not directly benefit us, subject to 
applicable fiduciary or contractual duties. Also, JLL may seek to cause us to take courses of action that, in its judgment, could 
enhance its investment in us, but which might involve risks to our other stockholders or adversely affect us or our other stockholders. 
This concentration of ownership may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock because investors may perceive 
disadvantages in owning shares in a company with significant stockholders.

 
In addition, because much of JLL’s economic interests is held in JGW LLC directly, rather than through us, JLL may 

have conflicting interests with holders of shares of Class A common stock. For example, JLL will have different tax positions from 
the holders of shares of Class A common stock which could influence its decisions regarding whether and when to dispose of 
assets, and whether and when to incur new or refinance existing indebtedness, especially in light of the existence of the tax 
receivable agreement. In addition, the structuring of future transactions may take into consideration JLL’s tax considerations even 
where no similar benefit would accrue to us. Also, JGW LLC may sell additional Common Interests in JGW LLC to its current 
equity holders or to third parties, which could dilute the indirect aggregate economic interest of the holders of the Class A common 
stock in JGW LLC. Any such issuance would be subject to our approval as the managing member of JGW LLC.

 
The influence of JLL over our policies is further enhanced by the terms of the Director Designation Agreement that we 

entered into with JLL and PGHI Corp. in connection with the IPO, the Voting Agreement that JLL, PGHI Corp., and certain other 
Common Interestholders entered into in connection with the IPO and by the provisions of our certificate of incorporation. Under 
the terms of the Director Designation Agreement, JLL has the right to designate four director designees to our board of directors 
so long as JLL owns at least 934,488 Common Interests in JGW LLC and at least 20% of the aggregate number of Common 
Interests in JGW LLC held on such date by members of JGW LLC who were members of JGW LLC (or its predecessor of the 
same name) on July 12, 2011, and PGHI Corp. have the right to designate one director so long as PGHI Corp. (together with its 
then-current stockholders) or its assignee holds in the aggregate at least 436,104 Common Interests in JGW LLC. The parties to 
the Voting Agreement agree to vote all of their shares of Class A common stock (if any) and their shares of our Class B common 
stock, par value $0.0001 per share, (if any) in favor of the election to our board of directors of our Chief Executive Officer, four 
designees of JLL and one designee of PGHI Corp. Pursuant to our certificate of incorporation, the four directors designated by 
JLL are each entitled to cast two votes on each matter presented to our board of directors until the earlier to occur of such time as 
we cease to be a “controlled company” within the meaning of the New York Stock Exchange or NYSE corporate governance 
standards or such time as JLL ceases to hold, in the aggregate, at least 934,488 Common Interests in JGW LLC and at least 20% 
of the aggregate number of Common Interests in JGW LLC held on such date by members of JGW LLC who were members of 
JGW LLC (or its predecessor of the same name) on July 12, 2011. Because our board consists of fewer than twelve directors, the 
four directors designated by JLL are, for so long as such directors have the right to cast two votes, able to determine the outcome 
of all matters presented to the board for approval.
 
Our directors who are affiliated with JLL, DLJ Merchant Banking Partners IV, L.P., PGHI Corp. and their respective investment 
funds do not have any obligation to report corporate opportunities to us.
 

Alexander R. Castaldi, Kevin Hammond, Paul S. Levy, Robert N. Pomroy, and Francisco J. Rodriguez serve as our 
directors and also serve as partners, principals, directors, officers, members, managers, affiliates, service providers and/or 
employees of one or more of JLL, DLJ Merchant Banking Partners IV, L.P., PGHI Corp., and their respective affiliates and 
investment funds, which we refer to as the Corporate Opportunity Entities. Because the Corporate Opportunity Entities may engage 
in similar lines of business to those in which we engage, our certificate of incorporation allocates corporate opportunities between 
us and these entities. Specifically, none of the Corporate Opportunity Entities has any duty to refrain from engaging, directly or 
indirectly, in the same or similar business activities or lines of business as do we. In addition, if any of them acquires knowledge 
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of a potential transaction that may be a corporate opportunity for us and for the Corporate Opportunity Entities, subject to certain 
exceptions, we will not have any expectancy in such corporate opportunity, and they will not have any obligation to communicate 
such opportunity to us. Our stockholders are deemed to have notice of and to have consented to these provisions of our certificate 
of incorporation.

 
The above provision shall automatically, without any need for any action by us, be terminated and void at such time as 

the Corporate Opportunity Entities beneficially own less than 15% of our shares of common stock.
 

Risks Related To Ownership Of Our Class A Common Stock
 
As a controlled company, we are not subject to all of the corporate governance rules of the NYSE.
 

We are considered a “controlled company” under the rules of the NYSE. Controlled companies are exempt from the 
NYSE’s corporate governance rules requiring that listed companies have (i) a majority of the board of directors consist of 
“independent” directors under the listing standards of the NYSE, (ii) a nominating/corporate governance committee composed 
entirely of independent directors and a written nominating/corporate governance committee charter meeting the NYSE’s 
requirements, and (iii) a compensation committee composed entirely of independent directors and a written compensation 
committee charter meeting the requirements of the NYSE. As a result of relying on certain on these exemptions, we do not have 
a majority of independent directors, our nomination and corporate governance committee and compensation committee does not 
consist entirely of independent directors. Accordingly, you do not have the same protections afforded to shareholders of companies 
that are subject to all of the corporate governance requirements of the NYSE. 
 
The obligations associated with being a public company require significant resources and management attention, which may 
divert from our business operations.
 

As a result of our IPO, we became subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The Exchange Act requires that we file annual, quarterly and current reports with respect 
to our business and financial condition. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we establish and maintain 
effective internal controls and procedures for financial reporting. As a result, we will continue to incur significant legal, accounting 
and other expenses that we did not previously incur.
 

Furthermore, the need to establish the corporate infrastructure demanded of a public company may divert management’s 
attention from implementing our business strategy, which could prevent us from improving our business, financial condition, 
results of operations and cash flows. We have made, and will continue to make, changes to our internal controls, including IT 
controls, and procedures for financial reporting and accounting systems to meet our reporting obligations as a public company. 
However, the measures we take may not be sufficient to satisfy our obligations as a public company. If we do not continue to 
develop and implement the right processes and tools to manage our changing enterprise and maintain our culture, our ability to 
compete successfully and achieve our business objectives could be impaired, which could negatively impact our business, financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows. In addition, we cannot predict or estimate the amount of additional costs we may 
incur to comply with these requirements. We anticipate that these costs will continue to materially increase our general and 
administrative expenses.

 
For as long as we are an emerging growth company, we will not be required to comply with certain reporting requirements, 
including those relating to accounting standards and disclosure about our executive compensation, that apply to other public 
companies.
 

We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, or the Securities Act, 
as modified by the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act. As such, we are eligible to take advantage of 
certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not “emerging 
growth companies,” including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of 
Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports 
and proxy statements and exemptions from the requirements of holding a non-binding advisory vote on executive compensation 
and of shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. We have opted to take advantage of some 
of these exemptions. As a result, we do not know if some investors will find our Class A common stock less attractive. The result 
may be a less active trading market for our Class A common stock and our stock price may be more volatile.

 
In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also provides that an “emerging growth company” can take advantage of the 

extended transition period provided in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting 
standards. In other words, an “emerging growth company” can delay the adoption of certain accounting standards until those 
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standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We may opt to take advantage of the benefits of this extended transition 
period. As a result, our financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with public company effective dates. 
We could remain an “emerging growth company” for up to five years or until the earliest of (a) the last day of the first fiscal year 
in which our annual gross revenues exceed $1 billion, (b) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 
under the Exchange Act, which would occur if the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 
million as of the last business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter, or (c) the date on which we have issued 
more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt securities during the preceding three-year period.

 
Our disclosure controls and procedures may not prevent or detect all errors or acts of fraud.

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to reasonably assure that information required to be disclosed by us 
in reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, recorded, processed, 
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC. We believe that any disclosure 
controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that 
the objectives of the control system are met.

These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can 
occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by 
collusion of two or more people or by an unauthorized override of the controls. Accordingly, because of the inherent limitations 
in our control system, misstatements or insufficient disclosures due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

The market price and trading volume of our Class A common stock may continue to be volatile, which could result in rapid 
and substantial losses for our stockholders.
 

The market price of our Class A common stock is volatile and may continue to be highly volatile and could be subject 
to wide fluctuations. In addition, the trading volume in our Class A common stock may fluctuate and cause significant price 
variations to occur. The market price of our Class A common stock may fluctuate or decline significantly in the future. Some of 
the factors that could negatively affect our share price or result in fluctuations in the price or trading volume of our Class A common 
stock include:

 
• variations in our quarterly or annual operating results;
• changes in our earnings estimates (if provided) or differences between our actual financial and operating results 

and those expected by investors and analysts;
• the contents of published research reports about us or our industry or the failure of securities analysts to cover 

our Class A common stock;
• additions or departures of key management personnel;
• any increased indebtedness we may incur in the future;
• announcements by us or others and developments affecting us;
• actions by institutional stockholders;
• litigation and governmental investigations;
• legislative or regulatory changes;
• changes in government programs and policies;
• changes in market valuations of similar companies;
• speculation or reports by the press or investment community with respect to us or our industry in general;
• increases in market interest rates that may lead purchasers of our common stock to demand a higher yield;
• announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts, acquisitions, dispositions, strategic 

relationships, joint ventures or capital commitments;
• general market, political and economic conditions, including any such conditions and local conditions in the 

markets in which we conduct our operations; and
• a breach of security or a cybersecurity attack.
 
These broad market and industry factors may decrease the market price of our Class A common stock, regardless of our 

actual operating performance. The stock market in general has from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations, 
including in recent months. In addition, in the past, following periods of volatility in the overall market and decreases in the market 
price of a company’s securities, securities class action litigation has often been instituted against these companies. This litigation, 
if instituted against us, could result in substantial costs and a diversion of our management’s attention and resources.

 
Future offerings of debt or equity securities by us may adversely affect the market price of our Class A common stock.
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In the future, we may attempt to obtain financing or to further increase our capital resources by issuing additional Class A 
common stock or offering debt or other equity securities. In particular, future acquisitions could require substantial additional 
capital in excess of cash from operations. We would expect to finance the capital required for acquisitions through a combination 
of additional issuances of equity, corporate indebtedness, asset-based acquisition financing and/or cash from operations. For 
example, up to 25% of the purchase price for the WestStar Acquisition may be financed by issuing shares of our Class A common 
stock.  

 
Issuing additional Class A common stock or other equity securities or securities convertible into equity may dilute the 

economic and voting rights of our existing stockholders or reduce the market price of our Class A common stock or both. Upon 
liquidation, holders of such debt securities and preferred shares, if issued, and lenders with respect to other borrowings would 
receive a distribution of our available assets prior to the holders of our Class A common stock. Our decision to issue securities in 
any future offering will depend on market conditions and other factors beyond our control, which may adversely affect the amount, 
timing or nature of our future offerings. Thus, holders of our Class A Shares bear the risk that our future offerings may reduce the 
market price of our Class A Shares and dilute their stockholdings in us.

The market price of our Class A common stock could be negatively affected by sales of substantial amounts of our Class A 
common stock in the public markets.
 

The market price of our Class A common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of Class A 
common stock in the market or the perception that such sales could occur. These sales, or the possibility of these sales, also might 
make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that we deem appropriate.  

In connection with our IPO, we registered the exchange of 18,366,135 Common Interests in JGW LLC. The Class A 
common stock received upon exchange of Common Interests in JGW LLC may be freely resold into the public market unless held 
by a Common Interestholder which is an affiliate of us. Certain of these holders (as well as other Common Interestholders) have 
the right to demand that we register the resale of their Class A common stock received upon exchange and certain “piggyback” 
registration rights.

The market price of our Class A common stock may decline significantly when the restrictions on resale by our existing 
stockholders lapse. A decline in the price of our Class A common stock might impede our ability to raise capital through the 
issuance of additional shares of Class A common stock or other equity securities. 

 
The future issuance of additional Class A common stock in connection with our incentive plans, acquisitions, warrants or 
otherwise will dilute all other stockholdings.
 

As of December 31, 2014, we have an aggregate of 484,978,853 Class A common stock authorized but unissued. We 
may issue all of these Class A common stock without any action or approval by our stockholders, subject to certain exceptions. 
Any Class A common stock issued in connection with our incentive plans or acquisitions, the exercise of outstanding stock options 
or warrants or otherwise would dilute the percentage ownership held by current holders of our Class A common stock. For example, 
up to 25% of the purchase price for the WestStar Acquisition may be financed by issuing shares of our Class A common stock, 
which issuance will dilute the percentage ownership held by current holders of our Class A common stock. 

 
Delaware law and our organizational documents, as well as our existing and future debt agreements, may impede or discourage 
a takeover, which could deprive our investors of the opportunity to receive a premium for their shares.
 

We are a Delaware corporation, and the anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law impose various impediments to the 
ability of a third party to acquire control of us, even if a change of control would be beneficial to our existing stockholders. In 
addition, provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may make it more difficult for, or prevent a third party from, 
acquiring control of us without the approval of our board of directors. Among other things, these provisions:

 
• provide for a classified board of directors with staggered three-year terms;
• do not permit cumulative voting in the election of directors, which would otherwise allow less than a majority 

of stockholders to elect director candidates;
• delegate the sole power of a majority of the board of directors to fix the number of directors;
• provide the power of our board of directors to fill any vacancy on our board of directors, whether such vacancy 

occurs as a result of an increase in the number of directors or otherwise;
• entitle the four directors designated by JLL pursuant to the Director Designation Agreement to cast two votes 

on each matter presented to the board of directors until the earlier to occur of such time as we cease to be a 
“controlled company” within the meaning of the NYSE corporate governance standards or such time as JLL 
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ceases to hold, in the aggregate, at least 934,488 Common Interests in JGW LLC and at least 20% of the aggregate 
number of Common Interests in JGW LLC held on such date by members of JGW LLC who were members of 
JGW LLC (or its predecessor of the same name) on July 12, 2011;

• authorize the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock without any need for action by stockholders;
• eliminate the ability of stockholders to call special meetings of stockholders; and
• establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our board of directors or for proposing 

matters that can be acted on by stockholders at stockholder meetings.
 

In addition, the documents governing certain of our debt agreements impose, and we anticipate documents governing 
our future indebtedness may impose, limitations on our ability to enter into change of control transactions. Under these documents, 
the occurrence of a change of control transaction could constitute an event of default permitting acceleration of the indebtedness, 
thereby impeding our ability to enter into certain transactions.

The foregoing factors, as well as the significant common stock ownership by JLL, could impede a merger, takeover or 
other business combination or discourage a potential investor from making a tender offer for our common stock, which, under 
certain circumstances, could reduce the market value of our common stock.

If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or if they downgrade our company or our sector, 
the price of our Class A common stock could decline.

The trading market for our Class A common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that industry or financial 
analysts publish about us or our business. We do not control these analysts, nor can we assure that any analysts will continue to 
follow us and issue research reports. Furthermore, if one or more of the analysts who do cover us downgrades our company or 
our industry, or the stock of any of our competitors, the price of our Class A common stock could decline. If one or more of these 
analysts ceases coverage of our company, we could lose visibility in the market, which in turn could cause the price of our Class 
A common stock to decline.

 Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
 
None.

Item 2.         Properties
 

Our principal executive offices are located at 201 King of Prussia Road, Suite 501, Radnor, Pennsylvania 19087-5148 
and consist of approximately 62,000 square feet of leased office space. We consider our facilities to be adequate for our current 
operations.

Item 3.         Legal Proceedings
 

In the ordinary course of our business, we are party to various legal proceedings including but not limited to those brought 
by our current or former employees, customers and competitors, the outcome of which cannot be predicted with certainty.

 
Other than as disclosed in this Annual Report below, we are not involved in any legal proceedings that are expected to 

have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. To the knowledge of 
management, other than as disclosed in this Annual Report, no legal proceedings of a material nature involving us are pending or 
contemplated by any individuals, entities or governmental authorities.

 
Our policy is to defend vigorously all claims and actions brought against us. Although we intend to continue to defend 

ourselves aggressively against all claims asserted against us, current pending proceedings and any future claims are subject to the 
uncertainties attendant to litigation and the ultimate outcome of any such proceedings or claims cannot be predicted. Due to the 
nature of our business, at any time we may be a plaintiff in a proceeding pursuing judgment against parties from whom we have 
purchased a payment stream.

Illinois Proceedings

As noted in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2013 and noted throughout the year in 
our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, the parties to the Illinois proceeding, filed March 12, 2011 against Settlement Funding LLC 
d/b/a Peachtree Settlement Funding, in Circuit Court of Cook County, had filed a complaint against the annuity providers seeking 
a declaration that the anti-assignment provisions in the documents provided a claim against the annuity providers and sought 
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payment accordingly. The court set a final briefing schedule for the pending motion to dismiss filed by the annuity providers and 
other remaining parties with a hearing date of February 11, 2015. After oral argument on the motions to dismiss, the court dismissed 
all claims against the annuity providers and most of the claims against the other remaining parties. Peachtree Settlement Funding 
was never a named party in those actions, and its lawyers have been working informally with counsel for the annuity providers 
to support their defense.

In February 2014, a purported class action filing was made against the Company and various subsidiaries.  The original 
class action complaint in this matter contained a single count alleging that the defendants violated the Illinois Consumer Fraud 
and Deceptive Business Practices Act by, among other things, marketing, soliciting, and engaging in transfers of structured 
settlement payment rights despite knowledge of anti-assignment clauses in the underlying structured settlement agreements. The 
plaintiff then filed an amended complaint reciting the same facts and the same claim under the Illinois Consumer Fraud and 
Deceptive Business Practices Act, but adding causes of action for common law fraud, breach of the implied duty of good faith 
and fair dealing, and two counts for violations of the federal Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act. The first such 
claim alleges defendants violated law that proscribes conduct amounting to a pattern of racketeering activity conducted through 
an enterprise. The plaintiff alleged that the defendants’ use of mail in connection with the transfers constituted mail fraud. The 
second such claim alleged that the defendants conspired to commit other related violations. The defendants removed the case to 
the United States District Court for the Southern District of Illinois. One defendant, Settlement Funding, LLC, filed a motion to 
defer responding to the plaintiff’s complaint pending a ruling on the other defendants’ motion to dismiss, and also filed a motion 
to compel arbitration and to stay or dismiss the claims against it in federal court. The plaintiff filed a motion for extension of time 
to respond to the motions to dismiss and motion to compel arbitration based on intent to file a second amended complaint. The 
plaintiff did file a second amended complaint asserting substantially similar allegations to those set forth in the initial amended 
complaint, and added four new named plaintiffs. Settlement Funding, LLC filed a petition to compel individual arbitrations in the 
Northern District of Illinois against those four new named plaintiffs in the second amended complaint who had previously entered 
into arbitration agreements with Settlement Funding, LLC. Defendants filed various motions challenging the second amended 
complaint in the Southern District of Illinois, seeking dismissal and/or transfer to the Northern District of Illinois. The Southern 
District of Illinois court granted transfer of the whole case to the Northern District of Illinois and deferred ruling on defendants’ 
arguments for dismissal to the Northern District court. On March 5, 2015, the Northern District court entered an order finding it 
lacked subject matter jurisdiction over the case and remanded it to St. Clair County. Defendants believe this ruling on jurisdiction 
is incorrect and intend to appeal. Defendants also believe that the plaintiffs’ claims in the second amended complaint are time-
barred and/or without merit and defendants intend to vigorously defend these claims on a number of factual and legal grounds in 
arbitration and/or litigation.  

Other Illinois Matters

On October 21, 2014, a former defendant in an underlying proceeding filed a petition to vacate an order approving the 
transfer to J.G. Wentworth Originations, LLC ("J.G. Wentworth") of the rights to certain future payments that the former defendant 
had agreed to pay to an individual under a structured settlement agreement resolving claims that the individual had against that 
former defendant, among others, in the Circuit Court of Cooke County, IL - County Department, Probate. On November 10, 2014, 
that same former defendant filed a petition to vacate an unrelated order approving the transfer to J.G. Wentworth of the rights to 
certain future payments that the former defendant had agreed to pay to a different individual under a structured settlement agreement 
resolving claims that the other individual had against that former defendant, among others. Prior to the transfers to J.G. Wentworth, 
that former defendant made a qualified assignment of its obligation to make all of the future payments to the individuals under 
the structured settlement agreements; nonetheless, that former defendant asserts in the petitions to vacate that it should have been 
notified of the proposed transfers. J.G. Wentworth filed motions to dismiss the petitions to vacate, asserting that the former defendant 
lacks standing and the petitions lack merit for numerous other reasons. The motions to dismiss are currently being briefed, and an 
oral argument date on the first petition has been set for April 9, 2015.  J.G. Wentworth believes the former defendant lacks standing 
and the petitions to vacate lack merit for numerous reasons and intends to vigorously defend against the petitions to vacate on a 
number of factual and legal grounds. No assurance can be given that the former defendant or other former defendants will not file 
similar petitions in the future.   

Other Litigation

On February 10, 2015, a competitor filed, in the United States District Court, Central District of California, Western 
Division, a complaint alleging that the Company and certain of its affiliates have violated antitrust laws as a result of the OAC 
Merger and their post-merger activities, and has requested that the court find that there has been a Section 7 violation of the Clayton 
Act, that assets are to be divested, that an injunction should be issued and monetary damages should be awarded. The Company 
believes that the allegations made in these claims are without merit and intend to vigorously defend these allegations.  
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Item 4.         Mine Safety Disclosures
 
Not applicable.
 

PART II

Item 5.         Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
 
Market Information
 

Our Class A common stock currently trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “JGW.” The following 
table sets forth, for the period indicated, the high and low sales prices per share of our Class A common stock as reported by the 
New York Stock Exchange from November 8, 2013, the first day of trading following our initial public offering, through our fiscal 
year end on December 31, 2014. The initial public offering price was $14.00 per share of Class A common stock.

Fiscal 2014 Low High

First Quarter $ 15.23 $ 19.88
Second Quarter $ 9.43 $ 17.85
Third Quarter $ 10.80 $ 13.93
Fourth Quarter $ 8.65 $ 12.86

Fiscal 2013 Low High

Fourth Quarter $ 12.50 $ 17.70

Holders of Records
 

As of March 12, 2015, there were approximately 17 holders of record of our Class A common stock and 81 holders of 
record of our Class B common stock.

Dividends

We have not declared any dividends on any class of common stock since our IPO. We currently do not intend to pay cash 
dividends on our Class A common stock. The declaration and payment of dividends to holders of shares of Class A common stock 
will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on many factors, including our financial condition, earnings, 
legal requirements, restrictions in our debt agreements and other factors our board of directors deems relevant.  Except in respect 
of any tax distributions we receive from JGW LLC, if JGW LLC makes a distribution to its members, including us, we will be 
required to make a corresponding distribution to each of our holders of Class A common stock and Class C common stock.  

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

 The following table provides information about our share repurchase program by the Company for the year ended 
December 31, 2014:
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Period

(a)
Total Number of

Shares Purchased

(b)
Average Price
Paid Per Share

(c)
Total Number of 

Shares 
Purchased As 

Part of Publicly 
Announced Plans 

or Programs

(d)
Maximum 

Number of Shares 
That May yet Be 
Purchased Under 

the Plans or 
Programs

May 2014 53,820 10.39 53,820 14,440,980
June 2014 34,200 10.48 34,200 14,082,596
July 2014 — — — 14,082,596
August 2014 — — — 14,082,596
September 2014 — — — 14,082,596
October 2014 — — — 14,082,596
November 2014 141,865 9.67 141,865 12,710,472
December 2014 228,820 9.51 228,820 10,533,269

Total 458,705 458,705

In May of 2014, our Board of Director's approved a share repurchase program, authorizing us to use up to an aggregate 
of $15 million to repurchase shares of our issued and outstanding Class A common stock, par value $0.00001 per share. We may 
make purchases under this share repurchase program from time to time in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, 
accelerated stock repurchase programs, issuer self-tender offers or otherwise in accordance with applicable federal securities laws. 
This share repurchase program does not obligate us to acquire any particular amount of Class A commons stock, may be suspended, 
modified, or discontinued at any time, and has no set expiration date. 

 
Item 6.         Selected Financial Data.
 

 As of and For the Year Ended December 31,

 2014 2013 2012
 (Dollars in thousands, except for per share data)
Total assets $ 5,182,709 $ 4,472,097 $ 4,298,597
Total long-term obligations (1) 4,726,311 4,086,565 3,656,329
Total revenue 494,376 459,563 467,397
Net income 96,613 61,818 119,472
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 65,402 67,395 2,731
Net income (loss) attributable to The J.G. Wentworth Company 31,211 (5,577) 116,741

Net income (loss) per Class A common stock of  The J.G.
Wentworth Company    
Basic $ 2.40 $ (0.54) N/A
Diluted $ 2.40 $ (0.54) N/A

(1) The Company includes variable interest entity ("VIE") derivative liabilities, at fair market value, VIE long-term debt, 
VIE long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent financing trusts, at fair market value, and the term loan payable from 
its consolidated balance sheet as its long-term obligations.

The selected financial data set forth under "Part II Item 7 'Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations'" of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 7.         Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
 

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with 
our audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Some 
of the information contained in this discussion and analysis or set forth elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including 
information with respect to our plans and strategy for our business and related financing, includes forward-looking statements 
that involve risks and uncertainties. You should read the “Risk Factors” and the “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-
Looking Statements” sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K  for a discussion of important factors that could cause actual 
results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in the following 
discussion and analysis.

 
Overview

We are a leading direct response marketer that provides liquidity to our customers by purchasing structured settlement, 
annuity and lottery payment streams and interests in the proceeds of legal claims in the United States. We securitize or sell those 
payment streams in transactions that are structured to generate cash proceeds to us that exceed the purchase price we paid for those 
payment streams. We have developed our market leading position as a purchaser of structured settlement payments through our 
highly recognizable brands and multi-channel direct response marketing platform.

Structured settlements are financial tools used by insurance companies to settle claims on behalf of their customers. They 
are contractual arrangements under which an insurance company agrees to make periodic payments to an individual as compensation 
for a claim typically arising out of a personal injury. The structured settlement payments we purchase have long average lives of 
more than ten years and cannot be prepaid.

We operate two market leading and highly recognizable brands, J.G. Wentworth and Peachtree, each of which generates 
a significant volume of inbound inquiries. Brand awareness is critical to our marketing efforts, as there are no readily available 
lists of holders of structured settlements, annuities or potential pre-settlement customers. Since 1995 through 2014, we have 
invested approximately $689.5 million in marketing to establish our brand names and increase customer awareness through multiple 
media outlets. According to Kantar Media, since 2008, each of our brands has spent approximately five-times the amounts spent 
by the nearest industry competitor on television advertising and together have spent approximately 80% of the total amount spent 
by all major participants in the industry. As a result of our substantial marketing investment, we believe our two core brands are 
the #1 and #2 most recognized brands in their product categories. Since 1995, we have been building proprietary databases of 
current and prospective customers, which we continue to grow through our marketing efforts and which we consider a key 
differentiator from our competitors.

We serve the liquidity needs of structured settlement payment holders by providing our customers with cash in exchange 
for a certain number of fixed scheduled future payments. Customers desire liquidity for a variety of reasons, including debt 
reduction, housing, automotive, business opportunities, education and healthcare costs. Since 1995, we have purchased over $10.6 
billion of undiscounted structured settlement payment streams and have completed 40 asset-backed securitizations totaling over 
$5.4 billion in aggregate note issuance volume. The Company refers to undiscounted total receivable balances as “TRB.” TRB 
purchases for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $1,077.8 million and $1,125.0 million, respectively. 

We act as an intermediary that identifies, underwrites and purchases individual payment streams from our customers, 
aggregates the payment streams and then finances them in the institutional market at financing rates that are below our cost to 
purchase the payment streams. We initially fund our purchase of structured settlement payments and annuities with available cash 
and cash equivalents or through committed warehouse lines. Our guaranteed structured settlement and annuity warehouse facilities 
totaled $750.0 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We intend to undertake a sale or securitization of these 
assets approximately three times per year, subject to our discretion, in transactions that generate excess cash proceeds over the 
purchase price we paid for those assets and the amount of warehouse financing used to fund that purchase price. We finance the 
purchase of  other payment steams using a combination of other committed financing sources and our operating cash flows.

Because our purchase and financing of periodic payment streams is undertaken on a positive cash flow basis, we view 
our ability to purchase payment streams as key to our business model. Another key feature of our business model is our ability to 
aggregate payment streams from many individuals and from a well-diversified base of payment counterparties. We continuously 
monitor the efficiency of marketing expenses and the hiring and training of personnel engaged in the purchasing process.
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In addition to growing our existing core business, we are developing strategies to leverage our highly recognizable brands, 
direct marketing capabilities, operational and underwriting capabilities, and low cost of capital to enter into new lines of business 
that are logical extensions to our core business, thus allowing us to become a diversified consumer financial services provider. 
We intend to continue to focus on building our information, data and analytics capabilities, which we believe will strengthen our 
core business and provide a foundation for expanding into additional products and services. We will pursue this expansion through 
internal growth, strategic partnerships and acquisitions. As part of this strategy, on March 6, 2015, we entered into a stock purchase 
agreement to acquire WestStar, a residential mortgage company specializing in conforming mortgage lending.While we anticipate 
that the WestStar Acquisition will close in the third quarter of 2015, the transaction is subject to customary closing conditions and 
regulatory approvals, and we cannot assure you when, or if, it will be completed. The WestStar Acquisition represents our entry 
into the mortgage business.  

We are subject to federal, state and, in some cases, local regulation in the jurisdictions in which we operate. These 
regulations govern and/or affect many aspects of our business as set forth more fully under “Part 1, Item 1. Business” in this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Results of Operations
 
Comparison of Consolidated Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 

 

Years Ended
December 31, 2014 vs. 2013

 

2014 2013 $ Change % Change
 

(Dollars in thousands)
REVENUES

  

Interest income $ 186,958 $ 172,423 $ 14,535 8.4 %

Unrealized gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long-term
debt and derivatives 300,702 252,801 47,901 18.9
Gain (loss) on swap terminations, net (628) 200 (828) (414.0)
Servicing, broker, and other fees 4,149 5,276 (1,127) (21.4)
Realized and unrealized gains on marketable securities 888 15,299 (14,411) (94.2)
Realized gain (loss) on notes receivable, at fair value 2,098 (1,862) 3,960 (212.7)
Gain on extinguishment of debt, net 270 14,217 (13,947) (98.1)
Other (61) 1,209 (1,270) (105.0)
Total Revenue $ 494,376 $ 459,563 $ 34,813 7.6 %

EXPENSES
  

Advertising $ 68,489 $ 70,304 $ (1,815) (2.6 )%
Interest expense 200,798 193,035 7,763 4.0
Compensation and benefits 41,108 42,595 (1,487) (3.5)
General and administrative 18,567 20,179 (1,612) (8.0)
Professional and consulting 18,452 18,820 (368) (2.0)
Debt issuance 8,683 8,930 (247) (2.8)
Securitization debt maintenance 6,161 6,091 70 1.1
Provision for losses on finance receivables 4,806 5,695 (889) (15.6)
Depreciation and amortization 4,168 5,703 (1,535) (26.9)
Installment obligations expense, net 5,322 19,647 (14,325) (72.9)
Loss on disposal/impairment of fixed assets 69 4,200 (4,131) (98.4)
Total Expenses $ 376,623 $ 395,199 $ (18,576) (4.7)%
Income before income taxes 117,753 64,364 53,389 82.9
Provision for income taxes 21,140 2,546 18,594 730.3
Net income $ 96,613 $ 61,818 $ 34,795 56.3 %
Less net income attributable to non-controlling interests 65,402 67,395 (1,993) (3.0)

Net income (loss) attributable to The J.G. Wentworth Company $ 31,211 $ (5,577) $ 36,788 (659.6 )%

TRB purchases $ 1,077,796 $ 1,125,031 $ (47,235) (4.2)%

 
Revenues
 

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $494.4 million, an increase of $34.8 million, or 7.6%, from revenues 
of $459.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase was primarily attributable to a $47.9 million increase in 
unrealized gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long-term debt and derivatives and a $14.5 million increase in interest 
income. This was partially offset by a $14.4 million decrease in realized and unrealized gains on marketable securities, net, and 
a $13.9 million decrease in gain on extinguishment of debt, net.
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 Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $187.0 million, an increase of $14.5 million, or 8.4%, from 
$172.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to an increase in our finance receivables balance.

Unrealized gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long-term debt, and derivatives was $300.7 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2014, an increase of $47.9 million, or 18.9%, from $252.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. 
The increase was primarily driven by a $42.6 million increase in unrealized gains on securitized finance receivables, debt and 
related derivatives, including our residual interest in securitized finance receivables, which resulted from a more favorable 
movement in the fair value interest rate used to value our residual interest cash flows during the respective periods.

Realized and unrealized gains on marketable securities, net, was $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, a 
decrease from a $15.3 million gain for the year ended December 31, 2013, due to lower investment returns on marketable securities. 
The decrease was primarily offset by a corresponding decrease in installment obligations expense, net. These amounts relate to 
the marketable securities and installment obligations payable on our consolidated balance sheets. The marketable securities are 
owned by us but are held to fully offset our installment obligations liability. Therefore, increases or decreases in gains on marketable 
securities do not impact our net income.

Gain on extinguishment of debt, net, was $0.3 million and $14.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 
2013, respectively. In 2014, the Company repaid approximately $6.1 million of long-term debt issued by the 2002-A securitization 
and recorded a gain on debt extinguishment of $0.3 million. During 2013 and in connection with our 2013-3 securitization, we 
repaid approximately $64.0 million of long term debt issued by a permanent financing VIE and recorded a one-time gain on debt 
extinguishment of $22.1 million that was reduced by a debt prepayment penalty and hedge breakage costs totaling $7.9 million 
in aggregate.  

 
Operating Expenses
 

Total expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $376.6 million, a decrease of $18.6 million, or 4.7%, from 
expenses of $395.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Advertising expense, which consists of our marketing costs including television, internet, direct mail and other related 
expenses, decreased  to $68.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $70.3 million for the year ended December 31, 
2013, primarily due to the timing of our new internet and television advertising initiatives.

Interest expense, which includes interest on our securitization debt, warehouse facilities and the term loan, increased by 
4.0% to $200.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $193.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. This 
$7.8 million increase was primarily driven by a $16.3 million increase in interest expense associated with our securitization debt 
that resulted from an increase in the average debt balances outstanding, partially offset by a $7.8 million decrease in the interest 
expense associated with our term loan resulting from a partial repayment in December 2013 and the associated amendment that 
reduced the term loan's coupon interest rate.

Compensation and benefits expense decreased  to $41.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $42.6 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily as a result of cost savings associated with the downsizing of our Boynton Beach 
office. 

General and administrative costs decreased to $18.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $20.2 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to decreases of $1.5 million in rent and utilities and $0.5 million in information 
technology expense that resulted from the closing of our Boynton Beach office. These  decreases were partially offset by an 
increase of $1.0 million in insurance expense that was the result of additional insurance requirements associated with becoming 
a publicly-traded company.

Professional and consulting costs remained fairly consistent at $18.5 million and $18.8 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

Provision for losses on finance receivables for the year ended December 31, 2014 decreased to $4.8 million from $5.7 
million for the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to a reduction in the provision for losses associated with pre-settlement 
funding transactions.

Depreciation and amortization for the year ended December 31, 2014 of $4.2 million decreased  from $5.7 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to certain intangible assets that arose in connection with the our merger with 
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Orchard Acquisition Company, LLC and its subsidiaries (the "OAC Merger") in 2011 becoming fully amortized by the end of 
fiscal year 2013 and a decrease in the depreciation on fixed assets resulting from the downsizing of our Boynton Beach office.

Loss on disposal/impairment of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $4.2 million primarily due to the
$4.0 million write-down of costs capitalized in conjunction with a software development project that we decided to discontinue 
in the fourth quarter of 2013.
 
Restructuring Expense
 

In April 2013, we announced our intention to restructure our Boynton Beach office. In connection with this 
announcement, we recorded a restructuring charge of $3.6 million which was recorded in the following statement of operations 
line items: $2.9 million in compensation and benefits and $0.7 million in general and administrative. The associated workforce 
reductions were substantially completed as of December 31, 2013.

Income Before Taxes
 

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we earned income before taxes of $117.8 million, an increase of $53.4 million, 
or 82.9%, from $64.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. This was primarily due to (i) a $47.9 million increase in 
unrealized gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long-term debt and derivatives that was the result of a more favorable 
movement in the fair value interest rate used to value our residual interest cash flows and (ii) a $14.5 million increase in interest 
income that resulted from an increase in our finance receivable balances. These increases were partially offset by a $7.8 million 
increase in interest expense that resulted from an increase in the average securitized debt balances outstanding, partially offset by 
a decrease in interest expense associated with our term loan.

 
Income Taxes
 

Until the time of our IPO in November 2013, we and the majority of our subsidiaries operated in the U.S. as non-income 
tax paying entities, and were treated as pass-through entities for U.S. federal and state income tax purposes. In addition, certain 
of our wholly owned subsidiaries are operating as corporations within the U.S. and subject to U.S. federal and state income tax. 
As non-income tax paying entities, a portion of our net income or loss is attributable to the holders of Common Interests in JGW 
LLC. In connection with our IPO, The J.G. Wentworth Company was created to act as a holding company, holding an ownership 
interest in JGW LLC. Following this structural change, we record an income tax provision/benefit relating to our share of JGW 
LLC, and therefore the share of its earnings held by the public.

Our provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $21.1 million, compared to $2.5 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in our tax provision was primarily due to us owning an economic interest in JGW 
LLC for the entire 2014 fiscal year compared to the approximately 1.5 month period following our IPO during the year ended 
December 31, 2013.
 
Net Income
 

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $96.6 million, an increase of $34.8 million, or 56.3%, from $61.8 
million for the year ended December 31, 2013, primarily due to (i) an increase in unrealized gains on VIE and other finance 
receivables, long-term debt and derivatives that resulted from a more favorable movement in the fair value interest rate used to 
value our residual interest cash flows and  (ii) an increase in interest income that resulted from an increase in our finance receivable 
balances. These increases were partially offset by an increase in interest expense primarily due to an increase in the average 
securitized debt balances outstanding, partially offset by a decrease in interest expense associated with our term loan, and an 
increase in our provision for income taxes..

Net Income (Loss) Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests

Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests represents the portion of earnings or loss attributable to the 
economic interests in JGW LLC held by the non-controlling Common Interestholders. The $65.4 million in net income attributable 
to non-controlling interests for the year ended December 31, 2014 represents the non-controlling interests' 55.7% weighted average 
economic interest in JGW LLC's net income for the year ended December 31, 2014. The $67.4 million income attributable to non-
controlling interests for the year ended December 31, 2013 represents the sum of: (i) 100% of the JGW LLC's net income for the 
period January 1, 2013 through November 13, 2013 (the date of our IPO) and (ii) the non-controlling interests' 62.1% weighted 
average economic interest in JGW LLC's  net loss for the period November 13, 2013 through December 31, 2013.  
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Net Income (Loss) Attributable to The J.G. Wentworth Company 

Net income (loss) attributable to The J.G. Wentworth Company represents the sum of (i) the portion of earnings (loss) 
attributable to the economic interests in JGW LLC held by the The J.G. Wentworth Company and (ii) the tax provision (benefit) 
based on the JGW LLC's income (loss) attributable to The J.G. Wentworth Company. Net income (loss) attributable to The J.G. 
Wentworth Company for the year ended December 31, 2014 increased $36.8 million over the prior year primarily due to The  J.G. 
Wentworth Company owning a 44.3% weighted average economic interest in JGW LLC for all of 2014 compared to a 37.9% 
weighted average interest for the period November 14 through December 31 in 2013.

Comparison of Consolidated Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
 

 

Years Ended
December 31, 2013 vs. 2012

 

2013 2012 $ Change % Change
 

(Dollars in thousands)
REVENUES

  

Interest income $ 172,423 $ 177,748 $ (5,325) (3.0 )%

Unrealized gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long-term
debt and derivatives 252,801 270,787 (17,986) (6.6)
Gain (loss) on swap terminations, net 200 (2,326) 2,526 (108.6)
Servicing, broker, and other fees 5,276 9,303 (4,027) (43.3)
Realized and unrealized gains on marketable securities 15,299 12,741 2,558 20.1
Realized loss on notes receivable, at fair value (1,862) — (1,862)
Gain on extinguishment of debt, net 14,217 — 14,217
Other 1,209 (856) 2,065 (241.2)
Total Revenue $ 459,563 $ 467,397 $ (7,834) (1.7)%

EXPENSES
  

Advertising $ 70,304 $ 73,307 $ (3,003) (4.1 )%
Interest expense 193,035 158,631 34,404 21.7
Compensation and benefits 42,595 43,584 (989) (2.3)
General and administrative 20,179 14,613 5,566 38.1
Professional and consulting 18,820 15,874 2,946 18.6
Debt issuance 8,930 9,124 (194) (2.1)
Securitization debt maintenance 6,091 5,208 883 17.0
Provision for losses on finance receivables 5,695 3,805 1,890 49.7
Depreciation and amortization 5,703 6,385 (682) (10.7)
Installment obligations expense, net 19,647 17,321 2,326 13.4
Loss on disposal/impairment of fixed assets 4,200 300 3,900 1,300.0
Total Expenses $ 395,199 $ 348,152 $ 47,047 13.5 %
Income before income taxes 64,364 119,245 (54,881) (46.0)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 2,546 (227) 2,773 (1,221.6)
Net income $ 61,818 $ 119,472 $ (57,654) (48.3)%
Less net income attributable to non-controlling interests 67,395 2,731 64,664 2,367.8

Net income (loss) attributable to The J.G. Wentworth Company $ (5,577) $ 116,741 $ (122,318) (104.8 )%
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Revenues
 

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $459.6 million, a decrease of $7.8 million, or 1.7%, from revenues 
of $467.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The $7.8 million decrease was primarily attributable to an $18.0 million 
decrease in unrealized gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long term debt and derivatives, partially offset by a $14.2 
million gain on extinguishment of debt, net. 

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $172.4 million, a decrease of $5.3 million, or 3.0%, from 
$177.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, due to a reduction in interest income on finance receivables and pre-
settlement funding transactions.

Unrealized gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long-term debt, and derivatives was $252.8 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2013, a decrease of $18.0 million from $270.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, due to the 
increasing interest rate environment (which impacts the fair value of our VIE and other finance receivables, long-term debt, and 
derivatives) that was partially offset by a 5.2% increase in total receivables purchased in the year ended December 31, 2013 over 
the prior year.

Realized and unrealized gain on marketable securities, net, was $15.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, an 
increase of $2.6 million from a $12.7 million gain for the year ended December 31, 2012. This increase is primarily offset by a 
corresponding decrease in installment obligations expense, net. These amounts relate to the marketable securities and installment 
obligations payable items on our consolidated balance sheet. The marketable securities are owned by us, but are held to fully offset 
our installment obligations liability. Therefore, increases or decreases in gain on marketable securities do not impact our net 
income.

In connection with our 2013-3 securitization, we repaid approximately $64.0 million of long term debt issued by a 
permanent financing VIE, and recorded a one-time gain on debt extinguishment of $22.1 million in the year ended December 31, 
2013 that was reduced by a debt prepayment penalty and hedge breakage costs totaling $7.9 million in aggregate.  The $14.2 
million net gain is reflected as gain on debt extinguishment, net in our consolidated statements of operations.

 
Operating Expenses
 

Total expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $395.2 million, an increase of $47.0 million, or 13.5%, from 
$348.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Advertising expense, which consists of our marketing costs including direct mail, television, internet, and other related 
expenses, decreased 4.1% to $70.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, from $73.3 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2012, primarily due to the timing of our advertising initiatives.

Interest expense, which includes interest on our securitization debt, warehouse facilities and credit facility, increased 
21.7% to $193.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, from $158.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, due 
primarily to the increase in the principal amount of our term loan in early 2013.

Compensation and benefits expense was largely unchanged at $42.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, 
compared to $43.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, due to employee severance cost offsetting cost savings associated 
with the downsizing of the Boynton Beach office.

 General and administrative costs increased $5.6 million to $20.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, from 
$14.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, and professional and consulting costs increased $2.9 million to $18.8 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2013 from $15.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. These increases are related to 
additional promotional expenses, outside legal fees associated with the term loan modification in December 2013 and litigation 
costs, and costs associated with the expansion of our office space, such as rent expense.

Provision for losses on finance receivables for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $5.7 million, an increase of $1.9 
million, or 49.7%, from $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.  The increase is primarily attributable to increases in 
the provision for losses on pre-settlement funding transactions.

Loss on disposal/impairment of fixed assets for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $4.2 million, an increase of $3.9 
million from the $0.3 million reported for the year ended December 31, 2012.  The increase is attributable to the $4.0 million loss 
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associated with the impairment of fixed assets in the fourth quarter of 2013. During the latter part of the fourth quarter of 2013, 
we completed an evaluation of a project to develop a new software application to manage our structured settlement business and 
made a decision to discontinue the project. We determined the approximately $4.0 million of costs that had been capitalized in 
conjunction with the software development project were no longer recoverable and wrote them down to their fair value of zero.
 
Restructuring Expense
 

In April 2013, we announced our intention to restructure our Boynton Beach office. In connection with the announcement, 
we recorded a restructure charge of $3.6 million for, primarily, severance and related expenses. The $3.6 million charge for the 
year ended December31, 2013 was recorded in the following consolidated statement of operations line items: compensation and 
benefits, $2.9 million, and general and administrative, $0.7 million.

 
Income Before Taxes
 

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we earned income before taxes of $64.4 million, a decrease of $54.9 million, or 
46.0%, from $119.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, primarily due to an increase in interest expense resulting from 
the increase in the principal amount of our term loan, an increase in general and administrative costs for the reasons noted above, 
and an increase in provision for losses on pre-settlement funding transactions.

 
Income Taxes
 

Until the time of our IPO in November 2013, we and the majority of our subsidiaries operated in the U.S. as non-income 
tax paying entities, and were treated as pass-through entities for U.S. federal and state income tax purposes and generally as 
corporate entities in non-U.S. jurisdictions. In addition, certain of our wholly owned subsidiaries are operating as corporations 
within the U.S. and subject to U.S. federal and state income tax.  As non-income tax paying entities, the majority of our net income 
or loss is attributable to the members of Common Interests in JGW LLC. In connection with our IPO, The J.G. Wentworth Company 
was created to act as a holding company, holding an ownership interest in JGW LLC, our partnership. Following this structural 
change, we recorded an income tax provision/benefit relating to our share of JGW LLC, and therefore the share of its earnings, 
held by the public. The increase in our tax provision from 2012 to 2013 relates primarily to additional income at our income tax 
paying subsidiaries during 2013 as well as a valuation allowance recorded against a portion of the Company’s deferred tax assets.

 
Net Income
 

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $61.8 million, a decrease of $57.6 million, or 48.3%, from $119.5 
million for the year ended December 31, 2012, primarily due to an increase in interest expense primarily due to the increase in 
the principal amount of our term loan, an increase in general and administrative costs for the reasons noted above, a loss on 
disposal/impairment of fixed assets, and an increase in provision for losses on pre-settlement funding transactions.

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
 

Fourth Quarter Third Quarter Second Quarter First Quarter
 

(Dollars in thousands, except for per share data)
Total revenue $ 127,274 $ 107,024 $ 123,488 $ 136,590
Income before income taxes 32,654 14,865 27,789 42,445
Net income 27,683 12,689 21,708 34,533
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling
interests 15,854 8,597 15,440 25,511
Net income attributable to The J.G. Wentworth
Company 11,829 4,092 6,268 9,022

Net income per Class A common stock of The
J.G. Wentworth Company

    

Basic $ 0.81 $ 0.31 $ 0.50 $ 0.77
Diluted $ 0.81 $ 0.31 $ 0.50 $ 0.77
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
 

Fourth Quarter Third Quarter Second Quarter First Quarter
 

(Dollars in thousands, except for per share data)
Total revenue $ 106,556 $ 103,138 $ 66,661 $ 183,208
Income (loss) before income taxes (4,117) (739) (21,116) 90,336
Net income (loss) (5,362) (885) (21,640) 89,705

Net income attributable to non-controlling
interests 67,395
Net loss attributable to The J.G. Wentworth
Company (5,577)

Net loss per Class A common stock of  The J.G.
Wentworth Company

    

Basic $ (0.54)
   

Diluted $ (0.54)
   

 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
Cash Flows
 

The following table sets forth a summary of our cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012.

For the Year Ended December 31,
 

2014 2013 2012
 

(In Thousands)
Net cash used in operating activities $ (399,797) $ (312,763) $ (225,732)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 5,788 4,485 (4,317)
Net cash provided by financing activities 396,596 244,202 263,015
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ 2,587 $ (64,076) 32,966
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 39,061 103,137 70,171
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 41,648 $ 39,061 $ 103,137

 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 
 
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
 

Net cash used in operating activities was $399.8 million and $312.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 
2013, respectively. The cash used in operating activities does not reflect the financing of our purchased receivables which is an 
integral part of our business and is reflected in the cash flow from financing activities. This $87.0 million increase was primarily 
driven by a $92.4 million increase in the change in restricted cash and investments due to the timing of our securitizations in the 
fourth quarters of 2014 and 2013 and a $47.9 million increase in unrealized gains (losses) on VIE finance receivables, long-term 
debt and derivatives due to a more favorable movement in the fair value interest rate used to value our residual interest cash flows 
during the respective periods. These increases in cash used in operating activities were partially offset by a $34.8 million increase 
in net income and a $21.8 million increase in gain on  extinguishment of debt that resulted from the one-time gain on debt 
extinguishment we recorded in 2013 when we repaid a portion of long-term debt issued by a permanent financing VIE in connection 
with our 2013-3 securitization.

 
Cash Flow from Investment Activities
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Net cash provided by investment activities was $5.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $4.5 

million for the year ended 2013. The $1.3 million increase was primarily driven by a $3.6 million increase in receipts from notes 
receivable and a $0.8 million decrease in purchases of intangible and fixed assets, net of sales proceeds partially offset by the 
collection of a $5.2 million  note receivable from an affiliate in the prior year. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 
2014 we received  $2.1 million of cash in connection with the merger of one of our subsidiaries with and into JGW Holdings, Inc., 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of JLL Fund V AIF II, L.P. with JGW Holdings, Inc. surviving the merger and becoming our wholly-
owned subsidiary (the "Blocker Merger"). Please refer to Note 2 in our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 in 
this Annual Report. 

 
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
 

Net cash provided by financing activities was  $396.6 million and $244.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2014 
and 2013, respectively, representing an increase of $152.4 million which was primarily attributable to a $171.2 million increase 
in proceeds from the issuance of VIE long-term debt and a $63.1 million decrease in repayments of warehouse facilities. These 
increases in cash provided by financing activities were partially offset by a $98.9 million decrease in gross proceeds from the 
revolving credit facility. The increase in cash provided by financing activities was also attributable to non-recurring transactions 
that occurred during 2013. In 2013, we entered into a new credit facility which generated net proceeds of $557.2 million. In 
connection with the entry into this new credit facility, we made a cash distribution of $459.6 million to Common Interestholders 
and made $143.5 million in repayments under our existing debt obligations. Additionally, the issuance of Class A common stock 
pursuant to our IPO in November 2013 generated net proceeds to us of $141.3 million, $123.0 million of which was used to repay 
a portion of our term loan and related fees.

 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012
 
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
 

Net cash used in operating activities was $312.8 million and $225.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. This $87.0 million increase was primarily driven by a $56.4 million decrease in net income as a result of 
increasing interest rates and higher operating expenses, a $38.9 million reduction in the change in restricted cash and investments 
due to the timing of our securitizations in 2013, and a $20.9 million increase in the purchase of finance receivables. In addition, 
a $14.2 million gain on debt extinguishment was recognized when we repaid approximately $64.0 million of long term debt issued 
by a permanent financing VIE.

 
Cash Flow from Investment Activities
 

Net cash provided by investment activities was $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to net cash 
used in investment activities of $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. This $8.8 million increase was driven by our 
collection during 2013 of the principal amount owed under a note receivable issued to an affiliate during the year ended 
December 31, 2012.

 
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
 

Net cash provided by financing activities was $244.2 million and $263.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2013 
and 2012, respectively, representing a decrease of $18.8 million. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we entered into a 
new credit facility which generated net proceeds of $557.2 million. In connection with the entry into this new credit facility, we 
made a cash distribution of $459.6 million to Common Interestholders, we repaid $238.4 million under our existing debt obligations, 
and incurred $27.2 million of payments for debt issuance costs. In addition, the issuance of Class A Shares pursuant to our IPO 
in November 2013 generated net proceeds to us of $141.3 million, of which we used $123.0 million to repay a portion of our term 
loan and related fees.
 
Funding Sources
 

We utilize a number of different funding sources to finance our different business lines. These sources are targeted to 
allow us to maximize our cash proceeds from the different assets that we purchase.

Structured Settlements and Annuities
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We finance our guaranteed structured settlement and annuity payment stream purchases with available cash and cash 
equivalents or through four separate warehouse facilities with $750.0 million of aggregate capacity: (i) a $300.0 million syndicated 
warehouse facility with Barclays and Natixis with a revolving period that ends in July 2016; (ii) a $300.0 million warehouse 
facility with Credit Suisse with a revolving period that ends in November 2016; (iii) a $100.0 million warehouse facility with 
PartnerRe with a 2 year evergreen feature that requires the lender to give us 24 months’ notice prior to terminating the facility’s 
revolving line of credit; and (iv) a $50.0 million warehouse facility with Deutsche Bank with a revolving period that ends in 
October 2016. Subsequent to the expiration or termination of their respective revolving lines of credit, each of our warehouse 
facilities has an amortization period of between 18 and 24 months before the final maturity, allowing us time to exit or refinance 
the warehouse facility after the revolving period has ended. As of December 31, 2014, there were no outstanding borrowings under 
any of the four separate warehouse facilities used to finance our guaranteed structured settlement and annuity payment stream 
purchases.

Our warehouse facilities are structured with advance rates that range from 92.5% to 95.5% and discount rates that range 
from 7.3% to 9.2%. The discount rate is either fixed over the term of the facility or is based on a fixed spread over a floating swap 
rate,  which we then fix through interest rate swaps at the time of the borrowing. The discount rate is used to discount the payment 
streams  we have purchased, and these discounted payment streams are then multiplied by the advance rate to determine the amount 
of funds that are available to us under the warehouse facilities. Our purchases of structured settlement and annuity payment streams 
are at higher discount rates than the discount rates applied to those payment streams under the warehouse facilities. As a result, 
the funds available to be drawn under our warehouse facilities exceed the purchase price for the payment streams we purchase. 
This excess cash is used to support our business and cover a portion of our operating expenses.

We undertake non-recourse term securitizations once we have aggregated in our warehouse facilities a sufficient aggregate 
value of structured settlement and annuity payment streams to undertake a securitization. At the close of each such securitization, 
the outstanding amount under each of the warehouse facilities is repaid. The amount of net proceeds we receive from securitizations 
is typically in excess of the amount of funds required to repay the warehouse facilities, resulting in a positive cash flow at the time 
of securitization. We completed three securitizations in both 2014 and 2013. On February 18, 2014, we closed our 2014-1 
securitization with an aggregate note issuance amount of $233.9 million and a discount rate of 4.24% which generated net proceeds 
to us of $88.9 million. On July 23, 2014, we closed our 2014-2 securitization with an aggregate issuance note amount of $227.6 
million and a discount rate of 3.95% which generated net proceeds to us of $136.9 million. On November 25, 2014, we closed 
our 2014-3 securitization with an aggregate note issuance amount of $207.5 million and a discount rate of 3.86% which generated 
net proceeds to us of $154.4 million.

We intend, subject to market conditions, management discretion and other relevant factors, to continue to undertake 
approximately three securitizations per year in the future. The counterparties to the structured settlement and annuity payment 
streams we purchase have mostly investment grade credit ratings. Approximately 80% of the counterparties to structured settlement 
payment streams that we purchased in 2014 were rated “A3” or better by Moody’s. This reduced credit risk, together with the long 
weighted average life and low pre-payment risk, results in a desirable asset class that can be securitized and sold in the asset-
backed security market. Since 1995, we have competed 40 securitizations totaling over $5.4 billion in aggregate note issuance 
volume relating to $9.2 billion of TRB purchases. 

Life Contingent Structured Settlements and Life Contingent Annuities

We finance our purchases of life contingent structured settlement and life contingent annuity payment streams through 
a committed permanent financing facility with PartnerRe with a capacity of $100.0 million. This facility allows us to purchase 
life contingent structured settlement and life contingent annuity payment streams without assuming any mortality risk. This facility 
is structured as a permanent facility, whereby the life contingent structured settlement and life contingent annuity payment streams 
we purchase are financed for their entire life and remain within the facility until maturity. The payment streams purchased are 
funded at a fixed advance rate of 94%, while the discount rate used to value the payment streams is variable, depending on the 
characteristics of the payment streams. The life contingent structured settlement and life contingent annuity payment streams that 
we purchase are discounted at a higher rate than the discount rates applied to those payment streams under the committed permanent 
financing facility, with the result that the funds available to be drawn under the facility exceed the purchase price for the payment 
streams we purchase. This positive cash flow is used to support our business and cover a portion of our operating expenses. As of 
December 31, 2014, our permanent financing facility with PartnerRe had $43.9 million of unused capacity for our life contingent 
annuity and structured settlement businesses.

Lotteries

Beginning in 2013, we have been purchasing lottery payment streams utilizing our balance sheets and we have structured 
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two of our guaranteed structured settlement and annuity warehouse facilities to allow us to finance lottery payment streams. This 
allows us to aggregate a pool of such payment streams that we subsequently securitize together with structured settlement and 
annuity payment streams. Lottery payment streams were included in all of our securitizations during 2014 and 2013. We intend 
to continue to securitize lottery payment streams in the future. We believe that our ability to securitize lottery payment streams 
has the potential to assist us to achieve an industry-leading cost of capital and to drive our future growth in this asset class.

Historically, we have funded the purchase of lottery payment streams through non-recourse financing as well as a 
diversified institutional funding base of more than five institutional investors who purchase lottery payment streams directly from 
us. These investors are either insurance companies or asset managers. Lottery payment streams are purchased by the investors 
and the transactions are structured as an asset sale to the investor. We earn the difference between the discount rate at which we 
purchase the lottery payment stream from the lottery prizewinner and the discount rate at which we sell the lottery payment stream 
to the investor.

Pre-Settlement Funding

We finance our pre-settlement funding transactions through a revolving credit facility with Capital One Bank. The $35.0 
million facility is structured with a revolving period that ends in December 2015 and a subsequent 24 month amortization period. 
The advance rate applicable to pre-settlement funding financed through the facility is 84%. Due to the shorter duration of pre-
settlement funding, we do not require a facility with as large a capacity as for the other asset types above, as the pre-settlement 
funding transactions revolve more frequently. Positive cash flow is typically generated from the difference between the amount 
of proceeds we receive on settlement and the amount funded to the plaintiff. As of December 31, 2014, our $35.0 million revolving 
credit facility had $15.7 million of unused capacity.

Term Loan

We have (i) a widely syndicated senior secured term loan which matures in February 2019, and (ii) a $20.0 million 
revolving commitment that matures in August 2017. On December 6, 2013, we repaid $123.0 million of our senior secured term 
loan with proceeds from our IPO, reducing the outstanding amount to $449.5 million immediately after repayment. In connection 
with this repayment, we amended the terms governing the loan to reduce the applicable margin from 6.5% to 5.0% for Base Rate  
Loans and from 7.5% to 6.0% for Eurodollar Loans and reduced the interest rate floor from 2.5% to 2.0% for Base Rate Loans 
and from 1.5% to 1.0% for Eurodollar Loans. No changes were made to the financial covenants contained in the credit agreement 
and as a result of the repayment, no further principal payments are required to be made on the senior secured term loan until its 
maturity in February 2019. The revolving commitment has the same interest rate terms as the senior secured term loan.

Residual Financing

On May 6, 2014, we amended the terms of our Residual Term Facility. The amendment primarily increased the principal 
balance from $70.0 million to $110.0 million. This facility is now secured by 24 of our securitization residuals and is structured 
with a $110.0 million A1 Note due in May 2021. Prior to the amendment, the facility was structured with a $56.0 million A1 Note 
due in September 2018 and a $14.0 million A2 Note due in September 2019. The amendment also decreased the interest rate on 
the Residual Term Facility to 7.0% from 8.0% and eliminated the requirement of minimum annual principal payments.

Securitization Debt

We elected fair value treatment under ASC 825 to measure the VIE long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent 
financing trusts and related VIE finance receivables. We have determined that measurement of the VIE long-term debt issued by 
securitization and permanent financing trusts at fair value better correlates with the fair value of the VIE finance receivables held 
by special purpose entities ("SPEs"), which are held to provide the cash flow for the note obligations. The VIE debt issued by 
SPEs is non-recourse to the Company and its other subsidiaries. Certain of our subsidiaries continue to receive fees for servicing 
the securitized assets which are eliminated in consolidation. In addition, the risk to our non-SPE subsidiaries from SPE losses is 
limited to cash reserve and residual interest amounts.

Initial Public Offering

On November 14, 2013, we consummated our IPO, in which we sold 11,212,500 shares of our Class A common stock 
to the public. The aggregate net proceeds received from the offering were $141.3 million. We used $123.0 million of the net 
proceeds to repay a portion of our senior secured term loan, with the remainder used for general corporate purposes.
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Other Financing

We maintain other permanent financing arrangements that have been used in the past for longer term funding purposes. 
Each of these arrangements has assets pledged as collateral, the cash flows from which are used to satisfy the loan obligations. 
These other financing arrangements are more fully described in Notes 14 through 17 of the audited consolidated financial statements 
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Short-Term Liquidity Needs

Our liquidity needs over the next 12 months are expected to be provided through the excess cash generated by our 
structured settlement, annuity, and lottery payment stream warehouse facilities, life contingent structured settlement and annuity 
permanent financing facilities as well as our lottery program. Our securitization program for structured settlements, annuities and 
lottery payment streams also is expected to provide for both a replenishment of our warehouse capacity as well as excess cash to 
operate the business and make interest payments. However, there can be no assurances that we will be able to continue to securitize 
our payment streams at favorable rates or obtain financing through borrowing or other means.

Long-Term Liquidity Needs

Our most significant needs for liquidity beyond the next 12 months are the repayment of the principal and interest amounts 
of our outstanding senior secured term loan and the repayment of our residual financing facility. We used a portion of the net 
proceeds of our IPO to repay a portion of our senior secured term loan. We expect to meet our remaining long-term liquidity needs 
through excess cash flow generated through our securitization program, bank borrowings, debt refinancings, and new debt and 
equity offerings. However, there can be no assurances that we will be able to continue to securitize our payment streams at favorable 
rates or obtain financing through borrowing or other means, refinance our debt or raise new debt or equity.

As a consequence of the initial sales and any future exchanges of Common Interests for shares of our Class A common 
stock or Class C common stock, we may increase our share of the tax basis of the assets then owned by JGW LLC. Any such 
increase in tax basis is anticipated to allow us the ability to reduce the amount of future tax payments to the extent that we have 
future taxable  income. We are obligated, pursuant to our tax receivable agreement with all Common Interestholders who held in 
excess of approximately 1% of the Common Interests as of immediately prior to our IPO, to pay to such Common Interestholders, 
85% of the amount of income tax we save for each tax period as a result of the tax benefits generated from the initial sales and 
any subsequent exchange of Common Interests for our Class A common stock or Class C common stock and from the use of 
certain tax attributes. We expect to fund these long-term requirements under the tax receivable agreement with tax distributions 
received from JGW LLC and, if necessary, loans from JGW LLC.
 
Contractual Obligations and Commitments
 

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and commitments (excluding interest rate swaps which are 
discussed in “Derivatives and Other Hedging Instruments”) as of December 31, 2014, and the future periods in which such 
obligations are expected to be settled in cash. The table also reflects the timing of principal and interest payments on outstanding 
debt based on scheduled and/or expected repayment dates and the interest rates in effect as of December 31, 2014. Additional 
details regarding these obligations are provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements as referenced in the table:



Table of Contents

43

Total 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter
(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating leases (a) $ 14,074 $ 1,764 $ 1,775 $ 1,727 $ 1,770 $ 1,815 $ 5,223
Revolving credit facilities & other
similar borrowings 19,339 19,333 6 — — — —

Related interest & fees (c) 8,426 5,599 2,827 — — — —
Long-term debt (a) (c) (d) 190,681 7,384 14,969 6,749 6,676 7,094 147,809

Related interest & fees 75,676 13,557 11,342 9,790 9,536 9,277 22,174
Long-term debt issued by 
securitization and 
permanent financing trusts (a) (c) 3,716,180 301,975 290,784 278,548 257,567 248,368 2,338,938

Related interest & fees 1,509,108 159,130 150,098 140,103 128,715 117,688 813,374
Term Loan (a) (b) 449,500 — — — — 449,500 —

Related interest & fees 143,738 34,978 34,978 34,978 34,978 3,826 —
Installment obligation payable (a) 103,419 14,515 16,752 14,003 11,591 8,759 37,799
 

$ 6,230,141 $ 558,235 $523,531 $ 485,898 $450,833 $ 846,327 $3,365,317

 
(a) Included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(b) In February 2013, the term loan payable assumed in connection with the OAC Merger was refinanced with a new senior secured 

credit facility consisting of a $425 million term loan and a $20 million revolving commitment maturing in February 2019 and 
August 2017, respectively. In May 2013, the senior secured credit facility was amended to provide for an additional term loan of $150 
million on the same terms as the existing term loan. In December 2013, the senior secured facility was amended to reduce the 
applicable margin and the interest rate on the base loan and we repaid $123,000 on the new term loan. No principal payments are due 
on the term loan until the date of maturity. Total outstanding borrowings under the new senior secured credit facility was $449.5 
million as of December 31, 2014.

(c) Certain of our contractual obligations and commitments are funded through cash flows from certain VIE finance receivables included 
in our Consolidated Balance Sheet.

(d) On May 6, 2014, we amended the terms of our Residual Term Facility. The amendment primarily increased the principal balance from 
$70.0 million to $110.0 million. This facility is now secured by 24 of our securitization residuals and is structured with a $110.0 
million A1 Note due in May 2021. The amendment also decreased the interest rate on the Residual Term Facility to 7.0% from 8.0% 
and eliminated the requirement of minimum annual principal payments.

Critical Accounting Policies
 
In establishing these policies within the framework of U.S. generally accepted accounting principals ("GAAP"), 

management must make certain assessments, estimates, and choices that will result in the application of these principals in a 
manner that appropriately reflects our financial condition and results of operations. Critical accounting policies are those policies 
that we believe present the most complex or subjective measurements and have the most potential to affect our financial position 
and operating results. While all decisions regarding accounting policies are important, there are certain accounting policies and 
estimates that we consider to be critical. 

Emerging Growth Company

We qualify as an "emerging growth company" as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or JOBS 
Act. As a result, we are permittted to, and may opt to, rely on exemptions from certain financial disclosure requirements under 
U.S. GAAP that are applicable to other companies that are not emerging growth companies. 

Revenue Recognition

On May 28, 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standard Update ("ASU") 
No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers which relates to how an entity recognizes the revenue it expects to be 
entitled to for the transfer of promised goods and services to customers. The ASU will replace certain existing revenue recognition 
guidance when it becomes effective for public entities in the fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2016 and for non-public 
entities in the fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is not permitted. The standard permits the use of 
either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the future adoption 
of the ASU on our consolidated financial statements.
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Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement establishes a fair value hierarchy that 
prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. These three levels 
of fair value hierarchy are defined as follows:

• Level 1 - inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities 
in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date.

• Level 2 - inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices in markets that are not active or quoted 
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

• Level 3 - inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable, reflecting the entity’s own assumptions about 
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is  
significant to the fair value measurement. Fair value is a market based measure considered from the perspective of a market  
participant who holds the assets or owes the liabilities rather than an entity specific measure. Therefore, even when market 
assumptions are not readily available, our own assumptions are set to reflect those that market participants would use in pricing 
the assets or liabilities at the measurement date. We use valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and 
minimize the use of unobservable inputs. We also evaluate various factors to determine whether certain transactions are orderly 
and may make  adjustments to transactions or quoted prices when the volume and level of activity for an asset or liability have 
decreased significantly.

The above conditions could cause certain assets and liabilities to be reclassified from Level 1 to Level 2 or Level 3 or 
reclassified from Level 2 to Level 3. The inputs or methodology used for valuing the assets or liabilities are not necessarily an 
indication of the risk associated with the assets and liabilities.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over 
transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from us, (2) the transferee obtains the right 
(free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) when 
we do not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity, 
the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to return specific assets or through an agreement that permits the transferee to require 
the transferor to repurchase the transferred financial assets that is so favorable to the transferee that it is probable that the transferee 
will require the transferor to repurchase them. Transfers that do not meet the criteria to be accounted for as sales are accounted 
for as secured borrowings.

The amendments to ASC 860, Transfers and Servicing (“ASC 860”), eliminated the concept of a qualified special purpose 
entity, changed the requirements for derecognizing financial assets, and required additional disclosures about transfers of financial 
assets, including securitization transactions and continuing involvement with transferred financial assets.

Consolidation

In August of 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-13, Measuring the Financial Assets and the Financial Liabilities of 
a Consolidated Collateralized Financing Entity which relates to how an entity accounts for the financial assets and the financial 
liabilities of a consolidated collateralized financing entity at fair value. The ASU will allow an entity to elect to measure their 
financial assets and financial liabilities using either the measurement alternative provided under this ASU, which allows for the 
entity to  measure both the financial assets and the financial liabilities of its collateralized financing entities in its consolidated 
financial statements using the more observable fair value of either the financial assets or financial liabilities, or under ASC 820 
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure. This ASU becomes effective for public entities in the fiscal year beginning after December 
15, 2015 and for non-public entities in the fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted. The standard 
permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. Management is currently evaluating the impact 
of the future adoption of this ASU on our consolidated financial statements.
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In February of 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-02, Consolidation (Topic 810); Amendments to the Consolidation 
Analysis which requires an entity to re-evaluate its consolidation for limited partnerships or similar entities. The ASU requires an 
entity to apply this amendment using a modified retrospective approach by recording a cumulative-effect adjustment to equity as 
of the beginning of the period of adoption. The ASU changes the criteria that an entity uses to identify a variable interest entity, 
how it characterizes the VIE for a limited partnership or similar entity and how it determines the primary beneficiary. For public 
entities, the ASU is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015 and for nonpublic entities beginning after 
December 15, 2016. Early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact of the future adoption of this 
ASU on our consolidated financial statements.

VIE and Other Finance Receivables, at Fair Market Value

We acquire receivables associated with structured settlement payments from individuals in exchange for cash (purchase 
price). These receivables are carried at fair value. Unearned income is determined as the amount the fair value exceeds the cost 
basis of the receivables. Unearned income on structured settlements is recognized as interest income using the effective interest 
method over the life of the related structured settlements. Changes in fair value are recorded in unrealized gains on finance 
receivables, long- term debt and derivatives in our consolidated statements of operations.

We, through our subsidiaries, sell finance receivables to SPEs. An SPE issues notes secured by undivided interests in the 
receivables. Payments due on these notes generally correspond to receipts from the receivables in terms of the timing of payments 
due. We retain a retained interest in the SPEs and are deemed to have control over these SPEs due to our servicing or subservicing 
role and therefore consolidate these SPEs.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Identifiable intangible assets consist primarily of our databases, customer relationships and domain names. Our databases 
are amortized over their estimated useful lives of 10 years. Customer relationships are amortized over their useful lives of 8 to 15 
years. Domain names are amortized over their estimated useful lives of 10 years. In addition, such identifiable intangible assets 
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances suggest that an asset’s carrying value may not be fully 
recoverable. An impairment loss, generally calculated as the difference between the estimated fair value and the carrying value 
of an asset, is recognized if the sum of the estimated undiscounted cash flows relating to the asset is less than the corresponding 
carrying value. Intangible assets deemed to have indefinite useful lives, which in our case includes a trade name, are not amortized 
and are subject to annual impairment tests. An impairment exists if the carrying value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset 
exceeds its fair value.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in connection with the 
2011 acquisition of Orchard Acquisition Company, LLC. Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is subject to annual impairment 
tests whereby impairment is recognized if the estimated fair value of the Company is less than its net book value. Such loss is 
calculated as the difference between the estimated implied fair value of goodwill and its carrying amount.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are evaluated for impairment on an annual basis, or more 
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate potential impairment between annual measurement dates. Management 
qualitatively determines whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of the Company is less than its carrying amount prior 
to performing the two-step process to evaluate the potential impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful 
lives.

In the fourth quarter of 2014, management performed an assessment of goodwill and intangible assets and found no 
indications of impairment. Management considered the factors below in its qualitative assessment in determining that it was not 
more likely than not that the fair value of the Company was less than the carrying value:

• Macroeconomic factors including the interest rate environment, the securitization and warehouse credit market;
• Industry specific factors including significant changes in competition and regulatory impediments;
• Cost related factors including an increase in labor and other operating costs;
• Overall financial performance, such as declining cash flows and revenues or earnings; and
• Other relevant entity-specific events such as change in management, changes in stock price, and counterparty risks.

Segment Reporting
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We report operating segments in accordance with ASC 280. Operating segments are components of an entity for which 
separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of 
allocating resources and assessing performance. We have one operating segment because we primarily operate in the structured 
settlement industry. Our other revenue generating activities, including annuities, lottery, and pre-settlement funding are performed 
at our headquarters in conjunction with or similar to structured settlements.

 Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
 
Market Risk
 

Market risk is the potential for loss or diminished financial performance arising from adverse changes in market forces, 
including interest rates and market prices. Market risk sensitivity is the degree to which a financial instrument, or a company that 
owns financial instruments, is exposed to market forces. Fluctuations in interest rates, changes in economic conditions, shifts in 
customer behavior and other factors can affect our financial performance. Changes in economic conditions and shifts in customer 
behavior are difficult to predict, and our financial performance cannot be completely insulated from these forces.

 
Interest Rate Risk
 

We are exposed to interest rate risk on all assets and liabilities held at fair value with all gains and losses recorded in our 
consolidated statement of operations. As of December 31, 2014, the sensitivities of our exposed assets and liabilities to a 
hypothetical change in interest rates of 100 basis points are as follows:

 

Balance as of
December 31, 2014

Impact as of
December 31, 2014

of a 100bp increase in
interest rates

Impact as of
December 31, 2014

of a 100bp decrease in
interest rates

 

(Dollars in Thousands)
Securitized receivables, at fair market value $ 4,083,814 $ (259,734) $ 281,537
Company retained interests in finance
receivables, at fair market value 331,395 (56,916) 75,721
Unsecured finance receivables, at fair market
value 108,626 (9,393) 10,997

VIE and other finance receivables, at fair
market value 4,523,835 (326,043) 368,255
VIE long-term debt issued by securitization and
permanent financing trusts, at fair market value 4,031,864 224,934 (252,832)
VIE derivative liabilities, at fair market value 75,706 26,148 (28,559)
Net Impact N/A (74,961) 86,864

 
These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. The impact of rate changes on securitized receivables 

is largely offset by the corresponding impact on securitization debt leaving the majority of the net change attributed to our retained 
interests.
 

In addition to the impact to our consolidated balance sheet noted above from changes in interest rates, the level of interest 
rates and our resulting financing costs are a key determinant in the amount of income that we generate from our inventory of 
structured settlement, annuity and lottery payment streams. If interest rates change between the time that we price a transaction 
with a customer and when it is ultimately securitized, our profitability on the transaction is impacted. For example, if the cost of 
our financing were to have increased by 1% for all of the payment streams we purchased during 2014, and we were unable to 
mitigate the impact of this increase by hedging with interest rate swaps or other means, our income for the year ended December 31, 
2014 would have been reduced by approximately $54.4 million. If instead this increase of 1% in financing costs were to have only 
affected our December payment stream purchases our income for the year ended December 31, 2014 would have been reduced 
by approximately $4.5 million.
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Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments
 

We utilize interest rate swaps to manage our exposure to changes in interest rates related to borrowings on our revolving 
credit facilities. We have not applied hedge accounting to any of our interest rate swaps.

As of December 31, 2014, we did not have any outstanding interest rate swap related to our borrowings on revolving 
credit facilities.

We have interest rate swaps to manage our exposure to changes in interest rates related to our borrowings on certain VIE 
long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent financing trusts. As of December 31, 2014, we had 8 outstanding swaps 
with a total notional amount of approximately $237.5 million, we pay fixed rates ranging from 4.50% to 5.77%, and we receive 
floating rates equal to 1-month LIBOR plus applicable margin.

These interest rate swaps were designed to closely match the borrowings under the respective floating rate asset backed 
loans in amortization. As of December 31, 2014, the terms of these interest rate swaps range from approximately 8 to approximately 
21 years. We recognize unrealized gains (losses) and record these in unrealized gains(losses) on VIE and other finance receivables, 
long-term debt and derivative in our consolidated statements of operations.

Additionally, we have interest-rate swaps to manage our exposure to changes in interest rates related to our borrowings 
under Peachtree Structured Settlements, LLC, a permanent financing VIE ("PSS") and Peachtree Lottery Master Trust ("PLMT"). 
As of December 31, 2014, we had 154 outstanding swaps with a total notional value of approximately $229.9 million. We pay 
fixed rates ranging from 4.70% to 8.70% and we receive floating rates equal to 1-month LIBOR plus applicable margin.

The PSS and PLMT interest rate swaps were designed to closely match the borrowings under the respective floating rate 
asset backed loans in amortization. As of December 31, 2014, the term of the interest rate swaps for PSS and PLMT range from 
less than  approximately1 month to approximately 20 years. We recognize unrealized gains (losses) and include them in unrealized 
gains (losses) on VIE and other finance receivables, long-term debt and derivatives in our consolidated statements of operations.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of The J.G. Wentworth Company 

 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The J.G. Wentworth Company as of December 31, 

2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), changes in stockholders' 
equity/member’s capital, and cash flows of The J.G. Wentworth Company (prior to November 14, 2013, J.G. Wentworth LLC and 
Subsidiaries) for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

 In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of The J.G. Wentworth Company at  December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the consolidated results of the operations and cash 
flows of The J.G. Wentworth Company (prior to November 14, 2013, J.G. Wentworth LLC and Subsidiaries) for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 
New York, NY
March 13, 2015
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December 31,
2014

December 31,
2013

 

(Dollars in thousands, except per
share data)

ASSETS
  

Cash and cash equivalents $ 41,648 $ 39,061
Restricted cash and investments 198,206 109,338

VIE finance receivables, at fair market value (1) 4,422,033 3,818,704
Other finance receivables, at fair market value 101,802 51,945

VIE finance receivables, net of allowances for losses of $7,674 and $6,443, respectively (1) 113,489 117,826
Other finance receivables, net of allowances for losses of $2,454 and $1,899, respectively 17,803 15,166

Notes receivable, at fair market value (1) — 5,610
Other receivables, net of allowances for losses of $204 and $243, respectively 14,165 13,529
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $5,976 and $4,544, respectively 3,758 3,112
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $20,273 and $17,781, respectively 45,436 47,878
Goodwill 84,993 84,993
Marketable securities 103,419 121,954
Deferred tax assets, net 2,170 1,830
Other assets 33,787 41,151
Total Assets $ 5,182,709 $ 4,472,097

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
  

Accounts payable $ 5,301 $ 3,903
Accrued expenses 13,955 21,181
Accrued interest 17,416 14,485
VIE derivative liabilities, at fair market value 75,706 70,296
VIE borrowings under revolving credit facilities and other similar borrowings 19,339 41,274
VIE long-term debt 181,558 150,802
VIE long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent financing trusts, at fair market value 4,031,864 3,431,283
Term loan payable 437,183 434,184
Other liabilities 6,677 7,646
Deferred tax liabilities, net 36,656 1,707
Installment obligations payable 103,419 121,954
Total Liabilities $ 4,929,074 $ 4,298,715
Class A common stock, par value $0.00001 per share; 500,000,000 shares authorized, 15,021,147 and 14,420,392 issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2014, respectively, 11,220,358 and 11,216,429 issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2013, respectively $ — $ —

Class B common stock, par value $0.00001 per share; 500,000,000 shares authorized, 9,963,750 issued and outstanding
as of December 31, 2014, 14,001,583 and 13,984,065 issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2013, respectively — —
Class C common stock, par value $0.00001 per share; 500,000,000 shares authorized, 0 issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively — —
Additional paid-in-capital 95,453 70,236
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 25,634 (5,577)
Accumulated other comprehensive income — 612

121,087 65,271
Less: treasury stock at cost, 600,755 and 3,929 shares as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively (2,443) —

Total stockholders' equity, The J.G. Wentworth Company 118,644 65,271
Non-controlling interests 134,991 108,111
Total Stockholders' Equity $ 253,635 $ 173,382
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity $ 5,182,709 $ 4,472,097

(1) Pledged as collateral to credit and long-term debt facilities. See Note 6 "VIE and Other Finance Receivables, at Fair Market Value" and Note 7 "VIE and 
Other Finance Receivables, net of allowances for losses". 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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 Years Ended December 31,
 2014 2013 2012
 (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
REVENUES

   

Interest income $ 186,958 $ 172,423 $ 177,748
Unrealized gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long-term
debt and derivatives 300,702 252,801 270,787
Gain (loss) on swap terminations, net (628) 200 (2,326)
Servicing, broker, and other fees 4,149 5,276 9,303
Realized and unrealized gains on marketable securities, net 888 15,299 12,741
Realized gain (loss) on notes receivable, at fair value 2,098 (1,862) —
Gain on extinguishment of debt, net 270 14,217 —
Other (61) 1,209 (856)
Total Revenue $ 494,376 $ 459,563 $ 467,397

EXPENSES
   

Advertising $ 68,489 $ 70,304 $ 73,307
Interest expense 200,798 193,035 158,631
Compensation and benefits 41,108 42,595 43,584
General and administrative 18,567 20,179 14,613
Professional and consulting 18,452 18,820 15,874
Debt issuance 8,683 8,930 9,124
Securitization debt maintenance 6,161 6,091 5,208
Provision for losses on finance receivables 4,806 5,695 3,805
Depreciation and amortization 4,168 5,703 6,385
Installment obligations expense, net 5,322 19,647 17,321
Loss on disposal/impairment of fixed assets 69 4,200 300
Total Expenses $ 376,623 $ 395,199 $ 348,152
Income before income taxes 117,753 64,364 119,245
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 21,140 2,546 (227)
Net income $ 96,613 $ 61,818 $ 119,472
Less net income attributable to non-controlling interests 65,402 67,395 2,731

Net income (loss) attributable to The J.G. Wentworth Company $ 31,211 $ (5,577) $ 116,741

For the year
ended

December 31,
2014

November 14,
2013 through
December 31,

2013
Weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding:

 

Basic 12,986,058 10,395,574
Diluted 12,988,781 10,395,574

Net income (loss) per share attributable to stockholders of Class A
common stock of The J.G. Wentworth Company

 

Basic $ 2.40 $ (0.54)
Diluted $ 2.40 $ (0.54)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31,
 

2014 2013 2012
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Net income $ 96,613 $ 61,818 $ 119,472
Other comprehensive gain (loss):

   

Unrealized gains on notes receivable arising during the year 480 29 1
Reclassification adjustments for (gain) loss recognized in net income (2,098) 1,862 —

Total other comprehensive gain (loss) (1,618) 1,891 1
Total comprehensive income 94,995 63,709 119,473
Less: comprehensive income allocated to non-controlling interest in
earnings of affiliate — — 2,731
Less: comprehensive income allocated to non-controlling interests 64,396 69,275 —
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to The J.G. Wentworth
Company $ 30,599 $ (5,566) $ 116,742

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  consolidated financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31,
 

2014 2013 2012
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:

   

Net income $ 96,613 $ 61,818 $ 119,472

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
   

Provision for losses on finance and other receivables 4,806 5,695 3,805
Depreciation 1,676 2,179 1,644
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 69 4,200 300
Amortization of finance receivables acquisition costs 518 11 15
Amortization of intangibles 2,492 3,524 4,741
Amortization of debt issuance costs 7,901 5,740 1,444
Change in unrealized gains/losses on finance receivables (551,676) (164,786) (484,469)
Change in unrealized gains/losses on long-term debt 245,355 (36,858) 222,634
Change in unrealized gains/losses on derivatives 5,619 (51,157) (8,952)
Net proceeds from sale of finance receivables — 473 10,188
(Gain) loss on notes receivable, at fair market value (2,098) 1,862 —
Purchases of finance receivables (450,106) (410,121) (389,205)
Collections on finance receivables 527,487 482,928 464,605
Gain on sale of finance receivables — (20) (957)
Recoveries of finance receivables 69 16 652
Accretion of interest income (186,861) (171,926) (176,810)
Accretion of interest expense (35,924) (42,393) (34,863)
Gain on debt extinguishment (270) (22,109) —
Share-based compensation expense 2,384 1,452 2,393
Change in marketable securities, net (888) (15,299) (12,741)
Installment obligations expense, net 5,322 19,647 17,321
Change in fair value of life settlement contracts 116 33 1,522
Premiums and other costs paid, and proceeds from sale of life settlement
contracts (116) (200) 2,968
Deferred income taxes 21,023 2,332 (19)

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
   

Restricted cash and investments (88,868) 3,540 42,483
Other assets 219 (723) (1,994)
Other receivables (793) 375 (2,072)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
   

Accounts payable 1,398 (4,727) 4,216
Accrued expenses (7,226) 8,741 (9,246)
Accrued interest 2,931 2,798 685
Other liabilities (969) 192 (5,492)

Net cash used in operating activities $ (399,797) $ (312,763) $ (225,732)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  consolidated financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31,

 
2014 2013 2012

 
(Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from investing activities:
   

Purchases of intangible assets $ (50) $ (125) $ (1,460)
Receipts from notes receivable 6,093 2,493 4,692
Collections on notes receivable from affiliate — 5,243 (5,000)
Purchases of fixed assets, net of sales proceeds (2,391) (3,126) (2,549)
Cash received in connection with the Blocker Merger 2,136 — —

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $ 5,788 $ 4,485 $ (4,317)
Cash flows from financing activities:

   

Distributions of member’s capital $ — $ (459,612) $ —
Proceeds from Initial Public Offering, net — 141,280 —
Payments of equity financing costs (1,197) — —
Purchases of treasury stock (4,466) — —
Issuance of VIE long-term debt 795,436 624,252 623,931
Payments for debt issuance costs (2,438) (33,518) (6,297)
Payments on lease obligations — (745) (990)
Repayments of long-term debt and derivatives (368,804) (330,551) (248,555)
Gross proceeds from revolving credit facility 270,294 369,195 349,661
Repayments of revolving credit facilities (292,229) (355,333) (403,929)
Issuance of installment obligations payable 100 2,782 —
Purchase of marketable securities (100) (2,782) —
Repayments of installment obligations payable (23,957) (31,589) (42,520)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 23,957 31,589 42,520
Repayments under term loan — (267,941) (29,515)
Net proceeds from new term loan — 557,175 —
Redemption of share based awards — — (300)
Non-controlling interest investors’ distribution, net — — (20,991)

Net cash provided by financing activities $ 396,596 $ 244,202 $ 263,015
Net increase (decrease) in cash 2,587 (64,076) 32,966
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 39,061 103,137 70,171
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $ 41,648 $ 39,061 $ 103,137

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
   

Cash paid for interest $ 225,803 $ 228,683 $ 176,243
Capital distributions $ — $ 459,612 $ —
Supplemental disclosure of noncash items:

   

Non-cash asset distribution of members’ capital $ — $ 16,265 $ 740
Issuance of note receivable from sale of finance receivables held for sale $ — $ — $ 606
Net deferred tax liability assumed in connection with the Blocker Merger $ 13,599 $ — $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  consolidated financial statements.
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1. Background and Basis of Presentation
 
Organization and Description of Business Activities
 

The J.G. Wentworth Company (the "Corporation") is  a Delaware holding company that was incorporated on June 21, 
2013. The Corporation operates through its managing membership in The J.G. Wentworth Company, LLC ("JGW LLC"), the 
Corporation's sole operating asset. JGW LLC is a controlled and consolidated subsidiary of the Corporation whose sole asset is 
its membership interest in J.G. Wentworth, LLC. 

Prior to the completion of the Company's reorganization and initial public offering ("IPO") on November 14, 2013, 
described in Note 2, JGW LLC was primarily owned by its members. As used in these notes,  the "Company" refers to: (i) following 
the consummation of the  Corporation's initial public offering (the “IPO”) and related concurrent transactions on November 14, 
2013, collectively, to the Corporation and, unless otherwise stated, all of its subsidiaries, and (ii) prior to the completion of the 
IPO and related concurrent transactions on November 14, 2013, collectively, to J.G. Wentworth, LLC and, unless otherwise stated, 
all of its subsidiaries.

The Company, operating through its subsidiaries and affiliates, has its principal office in Radnor, Pennsylvania. The 
Company provides liquidity to individuals with financial assets such as structured settlements, annuities, and lottery winnings by 
either purchasing these financial assets for a lump-sum payment, issuing installment obligations payable over time, or serving as 
a broker to other purchasers of those financial assets. The Company also provides pre-settlement funding to people with pending 
personal injury claims. The Company engages in warehousing and subsequent resale or securitization of these various financial 
assets. 

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). In the opinion of management, the consolidated financial statements reflect 
all adjustments which are necessary for a fair presentation of financial position, results of operations, and cash flows for the periods 
presented. All such adjustments are of a normal and recurring nature. 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and the amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting periods. The most significant balance sheet accounts that could be affected by such estimates are variable 
interest entity (“VIE”) and other finance receivables, at fair market value, VIE derivative liabilities, at fair market value, VIE long-
term debt issued by securitization and permanent financing trusts, at fair market value, intangible assets and goodwill. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates and such differences could be material. 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation, its wholly- owned 
subsidiaries, including those entities that are considered VIEs, and where the Company has been determined to be the primary 
beneficiary in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 810, Consolidation (“ASC 810”). Excluded from the 
consolidated financial statements of the Company are those entities that are considered VIEs and where the Company has been 
deemed not to be the primary beneficiary according to ASC 810. The December 31, 2012 consolidated financial statements also 
included the accounts of American Insurance Strategies Fund II, LP ("AIS Fund II") for which the Company was the general 
partner. The limited partners' interests were reflected as non-controlling interests in the Company's 2012 consolidated financial 
statements. In 2012, the assets of the AIS Fund II were liquidated and distributed to the partners.

As indicated above, the Corporation operates and controls all of the businesses and affairs of JGW LLC and its subsidiaries. 
As such, JGW LLC meets the definition of a VIE under ASC 810. Further, the Corporation is the primary beneficiary of JGW 
LLC as a result of its control over JGW LLC. As the primary beneficiary of JGW LLC, the Corporation consolidates the financial 
results of JGW LLC and records a non-controlling interest for the economic interest in JGW LLC not owned by the Corporation. 
The Corporation's and  the non-controlling Common Interestholders’ economic interest in JGW LLC was 50.2%  and 49.8%, 
respectively, as of December 31, 2014. The Corporation's and the non-controlling Common Interestholders’ economic interest in 
JGW LLC as of December 31, 2013 was 37.9% and 62.1%, respectively.
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Net income attributable to the non-controlling interests in the consolidated statements of operations represents the portion 
of earnings attributable to the economic interest in JGW LLC held by the non-controlling Common Interestholders. The allocation 
of net income to the non-controlling interests is based on the weighted average percentage of JGW LLC owned by the non-
controlling interests during the reporting period. The Corporation's and the non-controlling Common Interestholders’ weighted 
average economic interests in JGW LLC for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were 44.3% and 55.7%, and 37.9% 
and 62.1%,  respectively. The net income attributable to Corporation in the consolidated statement of operations for the years 
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 does not necessarily reflect the Corporation's weighted average economic interests in JGW 
LLC for the respective periods because the majority of the provision for income taxes was specifically attributable to the Corporation, 
and thus was not allocated to the non-controlling interests. For the year ended December 31, 2014, $20.0 million of the Company's 
$21.1 million provision for income taxes  was specifically attributable to the Corporation. For the year ended December 31, 2013, 
$0.7 million of the Company's $2.5 million provision for income taxes was specifically attributable to the Corporation. Refer to 
Note 19 for a description of the Company’s income taxes.

Non-controlling interests in the consolidated balance sheets represents the portion of equity attributable to the non-
controlling Common Interests of JGW LLC. The allocation of equity to the non-controlling interests in JGW LLC is based on the 
percentage owned by the non-controlling Common Interests in the entity.

All material inter-company balances and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. Refer to Note 3 for a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 

2. Business Changes and Developments
 
Initial Public Offering & Reorganization
 

On November 14, 2013, the Corporation consummated an IPO whereby 11,212,500 Class A shares of common stock (the 
"Class A common stock") were sold to the public for net proceeds of $141.3 million, after payment of underwriting discounts and 
offering expenses. The 11,212,500 shares sold were inclusive of 1,462,500 shares of Class A common stock sold pursuant to the 
full exercise of an overallotment option granted to the underwriters which was consummated on December 11, 2013. The net 
proceeds from the IPO were used to purchase 11,212,500 newly issued common membership interests (the "Common Interests" 
and the holders of such Common Interests the "Common Interestholders") directly from JGW LLC representing 37.9% of the then 
outstanding Common Interests. Concurrent with the consummation of the Corporation's IPO, the Corporation amended and restated 
its certificate of incorporation to provide for, among other things, the authorization of shares of Class A common stock, shares of 
“vote only” Class B common stock, par value $0.00001 per share (the “Class B common stock”), and shares of Class C “non-
voting” common stock, par value $0.00001 per share (the “Class C common stock”). Also concurrent with the consummation of 
the Corporation's IPO, JGW LLC merged with and into a newly formed subsidiary of the Corporation.

 
Pursuant to this merger, the operating agreement of JGW LLC was amended and restated such that, among other things, 

(i) the Corporation became the sole managing member of JGW LLC, (ii) JGW LLC Common Interests became exchangeable for 
one share of Class A common stock, or in the case of Peach Group Holdings, Inc. ("PGHI Corp."), one share of Class C common 
stock.  Additionally, in connection with the merger, each holder of JGW LLC common interests, other than PGHI Corp., was issued 
an equivalent number of shares of Class B common stock. 

 
Tax Receivable Agreement
 

Common Interestholders may exchange their Common Interests for shares of Class A common stock or, in the case of 
PGHI Corp., shares of Class C common stock, on a one-for-one basis or, in each case, at the option of JGW LLC, cash. JGW LLC 
is  expected to make an election under Section 754 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 in connection with the filing of its 2014 
federal income tax return, which may result in an adjustment to the Corporation's share of the tax basis of the assets owned by 
JGW LLC at the time of such initial sale of and subsequent exchanges of Common Interests. The sale and exchanges may result 
in increases in the Corporation's share of the tax basis of the tangible and intangible assets of JGW LLC that otherwise would not 
have been available. Any such increases in tax basis are, in turn, anticipated to create incremental tax deductions that would reduce 
the amount of tax that the Corporation would otherwise be required to pay in the future.

In connection with the IPO, the Corporation entered into a tax receivable agreement with Common Interestholders who 
held in excess of approximately 1% of the Common Interests outstanding immediately prior to the IPO. The tax receivable agreement 
requires the Corporation to pay those Common Interestholders 85% of the amount of cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state 
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and local income tax that the Company actually realizes in any tax year beginning with 2013 from increases in tax basis realized 
as a result of any future exchanges by Common Interestholders of their Common Interests for shares of Class A or Class C common 
stock (or cash). The cash savings in income tax paid to any such Common Interestholders will reduce the cash that may otherwise 
be available to the Corporation for operations and to make future distributions to holders of Class A common stock.

For purposes of the tax receivable agreement, cash savings in income tax will be computed by comparing the Corporation’s 
actual income tax liability for a covered tax year to the amount of such taxes that the Corporation would have been required to 
pay for such covered tax year had there been no increase to the Corporation’s share of the tax basis of the tangible and intangible 
assets of JGW LLC as a result of such sale and any such exchanges and had the Corporation not entered into the tax receivable 
agreement. The tax receivable agreement continues until all such tax benefits have been utilized or expired, unless the Corporation 
exercises its right to terminate the tax receivable agreement upon a change of control for an amount based on the remaining 
payments expected to be made under the tax receivable agreement. 

 
JLL Blocker Merger

On October 7, 2014, the Company executed a merger ("the Blocker Merger") pursuant to which a subsidiary of the 
Company merged with and into JGW Holdings, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of JLL Fund V AIF II, L.P (“JLL”), a related 
party, with JGW Holdings, Inc. surviving the merger  and becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation. In connection 
with the merger, JLL received 715,916 newly issued shares of Class A common stock in the merger and subsequently transferred 
to the Company 715,916 shares of Class B common stock and an equal number of Common Interests in JGW LLC. The Company 
also received from JLL $2.1 million in cash, 185,561 shares of Class A common stock, of which 47,440 were cancelled by the 
Company, in consideration for the assumption of approximately $13.6 million of JGW Holdings, Inc.'s contingent future tax 
obligation the parties agreed had a present value of approximately $4.4 million. The Company accounted for the Blocker Merger 
as a common control transaction and recorded the assets and liabilities received at their carrying values within the accounts of JLL 
as of the date of the merger.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fair Value Measurements
 

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820”), establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for 
disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an 
asset or liability as of the measurement date. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The three levels are defined as follows:
 

• Level 1 – inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in 
active markets that are accessible at the measurement date.

• Level 2 – inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices in markets that are not active or quoted 
prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

• Level 3 – inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable, reflecting the entity’s own assumptions about 
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

 
A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is 

significant to the fair value measurement (Note 5). Fair value is a market based measure considered from the perspective of a 
market participant who holds the assets or owes the liabilities rather than an entity specific measure. Therefore, even when market 
assumptions are not readily available, the Company’s own assumptions are set to reflect those that market participants would use 
in pricing the assets or liabilities at the measurement date. The Company uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The Company also evaluates various factors to determine whether 
certain transactions are orderly and may make adjustments to transactions or quoted prices when the volume and level of activity 
for an asset or liability have decreased significantly.
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The above conditions could cause certain assets and liabilities to be reclassified from Level 1 to Level 2/Level 3 or Level 
2 to Level 3. The inputs or methodology used for valuing the assets or liabilities are not necessarily an indication of the risk 
associated with the assets and liabilities.

 
Transfers of Financial Assets
 

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over 
transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the following conditions have been satisfied: (1) the assets have been isolated 
from the Company; (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to 
pledge or exchange the transferred assets; and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets 
through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity, the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to return specific assets 
or through an agreement that permits the transferee to require the transferor to repurchase the transferred financial assets that is 
so favorable to the transferee that it is probable that the transferee will require the transferor to repurchase them. Transfers that do 
not meet the criteria to be accounted for as sales are accounted for as secured borrowings.

 
The amendments to ASC 860, Transfers and Servicing (“ASC 860”), eliminated the concept of a qualified special purpose 

entity, changed the requirements for derecognizing financial assets, and required additional disclosures about transfers of financial 
assets, including securitization transactions and continuing involvement with transferred financial assets.

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents
 

The Company considers all cash accounts, which are not subject to withdrawal restrictions or penalties, and all highly 
liquid debt instruments purchased with an initial maturity of three-months or less to be cash equivalents.

 
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company held cash and cash equivalents at U.S. and non-U.S. financial institutions 

and substantially all cash and cash equivalents are held by U.S. financial institutions. Under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform 
and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, an entity’s US non-interest bearing and interest bearing accounts are insured in total up to 
$250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Restricted Cash and Investments
 

Restricted cash balances represent the use of trust or escrow accounts to secure the cash assets managed by the Company, 
certificates of deposit supporting letters of credit, customer purchase holdbacks, collateral collections and split payment collections. 
The Company acts as servicer and/or subservicer for structured settlements and annuities, lottery winnings, life settlements, and 
pre-settlements. Trust accounts are established for collections with payments being made from the restricted cash accounts to the 
lenders and other appropriate parties on a monthly basis in accordance with the applicable loan agreements or indentures. At certain 
times, the Company has cash balances in excess of FDIC insurance limits of $250,000 for interest-bearing accounts, which 
potentially subject the Company to market and credit risks. The Company has not experienced any losses to date as a result of 
these risks.

 
Restricted investments in the amounts of $1.1 million and $1.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, 

include certificates of deposit which are pledged to meet certain state requirements in order to conduct business in certain states. 
The certificates of deposit are carried at face value inclusive of interest, which approximates fair value as such instruments are 
renewed annually.

 
VIE and Other Finance Receivables, at Fair Market Value
 

The Company has elected to fair value newly originated guaranteed structured settlements in accordance with ASC 810. 
The Company acquires receivables associated with structured settlement payments from individuals in exchange for cash (purchase 
price).  These receivables are carried at fair value. Additionally, as a result of the Company including lottery winning finance 
receivables beginning with its 2013-1 asset securitization (Note 16), the Company also elected to fair value newly originated lottery 
winnings effective January 1, 2013.

 
Unearned income is determined as the amount the fair value exceeds the cost basis of the receivables. Unearned income 

on structured settlements is recognized as interest income using the effective interest method over the life of the related structured 
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settlements. Changes in fair value are recorded in unrealized gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long-term debt and 
derivatives in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.

 
The Company, through its subsidiaries, sells finance receivables to Special Purpose Entities (“SPE”), as defined in ASC 

860. An SPE issues notes secured by undivided interests in the receivables. Payments due on these notes generally correspond to 
receipts from the receivables in terms of the timing of payments due. The Company retains a retained interest in the SPEs and is 
deemed to have control over these SPEs due to its servicing or subservicing role and therefore consolidates these SPEs (Note 4).

 
VIE and Other Finance Receivables, net of Allowance for Losses
 

VIE and other finance receivables carried at amortized cost include primarily pre-settlement funding transactions, Life 
Contingent Structured Settlements, lottery winnings, and attorney cost financing, which are reported at the amount outstanding, 
adjusted for deferred fees and costs and allowance for losses. Interest income on fees earned on pre-settlement funding transactions 
is recognized over their respective terms using the effective interest method based on principal amounts outstanding. The Company’s 
policy is to discontinue the recognition of interest income on finance receivables not fair valued once it has been determined that 
collection of future interest or fees are unlikely.

 
Fees charged upon the origination of finance receivables and certain direct origination costs, including personnel, travel, 

postage, legal fees and other associated costs, are deferred and the net amount is amortized using the effective interest method 
over the estimated life of the related receivables.

 
Allowance for Losses on Receivables
 

On an ongoing basis the Company reviews the ability to collect all amounts owed on VIE and other finance receivables 
carried at amortized cost.

 
The Company reduces the carrying value of finance receivables by the amount of projected losses. The Company’s 

determination of the adequacy of the projected losses is based upon an evaluation of the finance receivables collateral, the financial 
strength of the related insurance company that issued the structured settlement, current economic conditions, historical loss 
experience, known and inherent risks in the portfolios and other relevant factors. The Company will charge-off the defaulted 
payment balances at the time it determines them to be uncollectible. Because the projected losses are dependent on general and 
other economic conditions beyond the Company’s control, it is reasonably possible that the losses projected could differ materially 
from the currently reported amount in the near term.

 
The Company suspends recognizing interest income on receivables when it is probable that the Company will be unable 

to collect all payments according to the contractual terms of the underlying agreements. Management considers all information 
available in assessing collectability. Collectability is measured on a receivable-by-receivable basis by either the present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective rate, the observable market price for the receivable or the fair value of the 
collateral if the receivable is collateral dependent. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous receivables, such as pre-settlement 
funding transactions, are collectively assessed for collectability.

 
Payments received on past due receivables and finance receivables the Company has suspended recognizing interest 

income on are applied first to principal and then to accrued interest. Additionally, the Company generally does not resume recognition 
of interest income once it has been suspended.

 
Life Settlement Contracts
 

The Company’s life settlement contracts are accounted for using the fair value method. Under the fair value method, life 
settlement contracts are remeasured at fair value at each reporting period and changes in fair value are recognized in earnings 
(Note 5). The Company’s life settlement contracts are included in other assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets and 
any gains or losses are included in other revenue in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.

 
Marketable Securities
 

Assets acquired through the Company’s installment sale transaction structure are invested in a diverse portfolio of 
marketable debt and equity securities. Marketable securities are carried using the fair value method in accordance with ASC 820 
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with realized and unrealized gains and losses included in realized and unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities, net in 
the Company’s consolidated statements of operations (Note 5).  Fair value is generally based on quoted market prices.  Management 
has classified these investments as Level 1 assets in the valuation hierarchy of fair value measurements. Marketable securities are 
held for resale in anticipation of fluctuations in market prices.

 
Interest on debt securities is recognized in interest income as earned and dividend income on marketable equity securities 

is recognized in interest income on the ex-dividend date.
 

Share-Based Compensation
 

The Company applies ASC 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation (“ASC 718”). ASC 718 requires that the 
compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions, based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued, 
be included in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. The Company has determined that these share-based payment 
transactions represent equity awards under ASC 718 and therefore measures the cost of employee services received in exchange 
for share based compensation on the grant-date fair value of the award, and recognizes the cost over the period the employee is 
required to provide services for the award. For all grants of stock options, the fair value at the grant date is calculated using option 
pricing models based on the value of the issuing entities shares at the award date. Compensation  expense for performance-based 
restricted stock units is recognized ratably from the date of the grant until the date the restrictions lapse and is based on the trading 
price of the Class A common stock on the date of grant and the probability of achievement of the specific performance-based goals. 
Share-based compensation is included in compensation and benefits expense within the Company’s consolidated statements of 
operations.

 
Fixed Assets and Leasehold Improvements
 

Fixed assets and leasehold improvements are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation or amortization and are 
comprised primarily of computer equipment, office furniture, and software licensed from third parties. Depreciation and 
amortization is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets. For leasehold 
improvements, amortization is computed over the lesser of the estimated useful lives of the improvements or the lease term. The 
estimated useful lives of the assets range from 3 to 10 years.

 
Notes Receivable, at Fair Market Value
 

Notes receivable represented fixed rate obligations of a third party collateralized by retained interests from certain 
securitizations sponsored by the Company. Under the agreements, the obligor had the right to redeem the notes at fair value. The 
notes receivable were treated as debt securities, classified as available-for-sale, and carried at fair value in accordance with ASC 
Topic 320, Investments – Debt and Equity Securities. Unrealized gains and losses on notes receivable arising during the period 
were reflected within accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss) in the Company’s consolidated statements of comprehensive 
income (loss) and consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity (Note 21). The notes receivable were fully repaid in 
June of 2014. As of December 31, 2013, the amortized cost and fair value of the notes receivable was $6.2 million and $5.6 million, 
respectively.

The notes receivable were analyzed on an annual basis for other than temporary impairment. No impairment expense 
was recognized during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. 

  
Note Receivable due from affiliate

 
 Note receivable due from affiliate represented a $5.0 million secured note the Company executed in August 2012 with 
PGHI. The note accrued interest in arrears at a rate of 13.75% per annum and was paid quarterly.  The note was secured by PGHI’s 
interest in the Company, and was scheduled to mature in August 2015. The note, including accrued interest, was fully repaid in 
February 2013. For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company recognized $0.1 million and $0.2 million, 
respectively, of interest income on the note receivable which is included in interest income in the Company’s consolidated statements 
of operations.

 
Intangible Assets
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Identifiable intangible assets consist of the Company's databases, customer relationships, and domain names. The 
Company's non-compete agreements were fully amortized during 2014. The Company’s databases are amortized over their 
estimated useful lives of 10 years. Customer relationships are amortized over useful lives of 8 to 15 years. Domain names are 
amortized over their estimated useful lives of 10 years. As of December 31, 2014, the weighted average remaining useful lives of 
the databases, customer relationships and domain names are 5, 5 and 8 years, respectively. In addition, such identifiable intangible 
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances suggest that an asset’s carrying value may not be 
fully recoverable. An impairment loss, generally calculated as the difference between the estimated fair value and the carrying 
value of an asset, is recognized if the sum of the estimated undiscounted cash flows relating to the asset is less than the corresponding 
carrying value. Intangible assets deemed to have indefinite useful lives, which in the Company’s case includes a trade name, are 
not amortized and are subject to annual impairment tests. Impairment exists if the carrying value of the indefinite-lived intangible 
asset exceeds its fair value. No impairment was recognized for the intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 
and 2012.

 
Goodwill
 

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in connection with the 
2011 acquisition of Orchard Acquisition Company, LLC ("OAC"). Goodwill has an indefinite useful life and is subject to annual 
impairment tests whereby impairment is recognized if the estimated fair value of the Company is less than its net book value. Such 
loss is calculated as the difference between the estimated implied fair value of goodwill and its carrying amount.  No impairment 
was recognized for goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

 
Income Taxes

JGW LLC and the majority of its subsidiaries operate in the U.S. as non-tax paying entities, and are treated as disregarded 
entities for U.S. federal and state income tax purposes and generally as corporate entities in non-U.S. jurisdictions. In addition, 
certain of JGW LLC's wholly owned subsidiaries are operating as corporations within the U.S. and subject to U.S. federal and 
state tax. As non-tax paying entities, the majority of JGW LLC's net income or loss is attributable to its members and included in 
their tax returns. The current and deferred income tax provision (benefit) relates to both the income (loss) attributable to the 
Corporation from JGW LLC and to the tax-paying subsidiaries of JGW LLC.

 
Income taxes are accounted for using the liability method of accounting. Under this method, deferred tax assets and 

liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities and their respective tax basis, using currently enacted tax rates. The effect on deferred assets and liabilities of a change 
in tax rates is recognized in income in the period when the change is enacted. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation 
allowance when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

 
The Company analyzes its tax filing positions in all of the U.S. federal, state, local and foreign tax jurisdictions where it 

is required to file income tax returns, as well as for all open tax years in these jurisdictions. If, based on this analysis, the Company 
determines that uncertainties in tax positions exist, a reserve will be established. The Company will recognize accrued interest and 
penalties related to uncertain tax positions in the consolidated statements of operations.

 
Tax laws are complex and subject to different interpretations by the taxpayer and respective taxing authorities. Significant 

judgment is required in determining tax expense and evaluating tax positions, including evaluating uncertainties under U.S. GAAP. 
The Company reviews its tax positions periodically and adjusts its tax balances as new information becomes available.

 
Segment Reporting

The Company reports operating segments in accordance with ASC 280 Segment Reporting ("ASC 280"). Operating 
segments are components of an entity for which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief 
operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and assess performance. ASC 280 requires that a public entity 
report a measure of segment profit or loss, certain specific revenue and expense items, segment assets, and information on the way 
that the Company identified its operating segments. The Company primarily operates in the structured settlement industry and has 
no other reportable segments. The other revenue generating activities of the Company, including annuities, lottery, and pre-
settlement funding are performed at the Company's headquarters in conjunction with or similar to structured settlements. 

Other Revenue Recognition
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Servicing, broker, and other fees in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations primarily include broker fees 

and subservicing fees earned from servicing life settlement contracts for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. Broker 
fee income is recognized when the contract between the purchasing counterparty and the seller is closed for the sale of lottery 
winnings receivables.

 
Debt Issuance Costs
 

Debt issuance costs related to liabilities for which the Company has elected the fair value option are expensed when 
incurred. Debt issuance costs related to liabilities for which the Company has not elected the fair value option are capitalized and 
amortized over the expected term of the borrowing or debt issuance. Capitalized amounts are included in other assets or netted 
against the Company's long-term debt in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets and amortization of such costs is included 
in interest expense in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations over the life of the debt facility.

 
Advertising Expenses
 

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. The costs are included in advertising expense in the Company’s 
consolidated statements of operations.
 
Derivative Financial Instruments
 

The Company holds derivative instruments that do not qualify as hedging instruments as defined by ASC Topic 815, 
Derivatives and Hedging ("ASC 815"). The objective for holding these instruments is to offset variability in forecasted cash flows 
associated with interest rate fluctuations. Derivatives are recorded at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in unrealized 
gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long-term debt and derivatives in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.

 
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements
 

Effective January 1, 2014, the Company adopted ASU No. 2013-11, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an 
Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists 
(“ASU 2013-11”). ASU 2013-11 requires, unless certain conditions exists, an unrecognized tax benefit, or a portion of an 
unrecognized tax benefit, to be presented in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss 
carryforward, similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. This adoption of ASU 2013-11 did not materially impact the Company’s 
financial statements.

4. Variable Interest Entities
 

In the normal course of business, the Company is involved with various entities that are considered to be VIEs. A VIE is 
an entity that has either a total investment that is insufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without additional 
subordinated financial support or whose equity investors lack the characteristics of a controlling financial interest under the voting 
interest model of consolidation. The Company is required to consolidate any VIE for which it is determined to be the primary 
beneficiary. The primary beneficiary is the entity that has the power to direct those activities of the VIE that most significantly 
impact the VIEs’ economic performance and has the obligation to absorb losses from or the right to receive benefits from the VIE 
that could potentially be significant to the VIE. The Company reviews all significant interests in the VIEs it is involved with 
including consideration of the activities of the VIEs that most significantly impact the VIEs’ economic performance and whether 
the Company has control over those activities. On an ongoing basis, the Company assesses whether or not it is the primary 
beneficiary of a VIE.

 
As a result of adopting ASC 810, the Company was deemed to be the primary beneficiary of the VIEs used to securitize 

its finance receivables (“VIE finance receivables”). The Company elected the fair value option with respect to assets and liabilities 
in its securitization VIEs as part of their initial consolidation on January 1, 2010.

 
The debt issued by the Company’s securitization VIEs is reported on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets as VIE 

long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent financing trusts, at fair market value (“VIE securitization debt”). The VIE 
securitization debt is recourse solely to the VIE finance receivables held by such special purpose entities (Note 6 and 7) and thus 
is non-recourse to the other consolidated subsidiaries. The VIEs will continue in operation until all securitization debt is paid and 
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all residual cash flows are collected. As a result of the long lives of many finance receivables purchased and securitized by the 
Company, most consolidated VIEs have expected lives in excess of 20 years.

5. Fair Value Measurements
 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for 
which it is practicable to estimate that value:

 
For assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements:
 

Marketable securities – The estimated fair value of investments in marketable securities is based on quoted market prices.
 
VIE and other finance receivables and VIE long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent financing trusts, at 

fair market value – The estimated fair value of VIE and other finance receivables and VIE long-term debt issued by securitization 
and permanent financing trusts, at fair value is determined based on a discounted cash flow model using expected future collections 
discounted at a calculated rate as described below.

 
For guaranteed structured settlements and annuities, the Company allocates the projected cash flows based on the waterfall 

of the securitization and permanent financing trusts (collectivity the “Trusts”). The waterfall includes fees to operate the Trusts 
(servicing fees, admin fees, etc.), note holder principal and note holder interest. Many of the Trusts have various tranches of debt 
that have varying subordinations in the waterfall calculation (Note 16). The remaining cash flows, net of those obligations, are 
considered a residual interest which is projected to be paid to the Company’s retained interest holders.

 
The projected finance receivable cash flows used to pay the obligations of the Trusts are discounted using a calculated 

rate derived from the fair value interest rates of the debt in the Trusts. The fair value interest rate of the debt is derived using a 
swap curve and applying a calculated spread that is based on market indices that are highly correlated with the spreads from the 
Company's previous securitizations. The calculated spread is adjusted for the specific attributes of the debt in the Trusts, such as 
years to maturity and credit grade. The debt’s fair value interest rates are applied to the projected future cash payments paid on 
the principal and interest to derive the debt’s fair value. The debt’s fair value interest rates are blended using the debt’s principal 
balance to obtain a weighted average fair value interest rate; this rate is used to determine the value of the finance receivables’ 
asset cash flows. In addition, the Company considers transformation cost and profit margin associated with its securitizations to 
derive the fair value of its finance receivables’ asset cash flows. The finance receivables’ residual cash flows remaining after the 
projected obligations of the Trusts are satisfied are discounted using a separate yield based on an assumed rating of the residual 
tranche (5.97% and 7.85% at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively, with a weighted average life of 20 years 
as of both dates).

 
The residual cash flows are adjusted for a loss assumption of 0.25% over the life of the finance receivables in its fair 

value calculation. Finance receivable cash flows, including the residual asset cash flows, are included in VIE and other finance 
receivables, at fair market value in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. The associated debt’s projected future cash payments 
for principal and interest are included in VIE long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent financing trusts, at fair market 
value.

 
For finance receivables not yet securitized, the Company uses the calculated spreads based on market indices, while also  

considering transformation costs and profit margin to determine the fair value yield adjusting for expected losses and applying the 
residual yield for the cash flows the Company projects would make up the retained interest in a securitization.

 
For the Company’s Life Contingent Structured Settlements (“LCSS”) receivables and long-term debt issued by its related 

permanent financing trusts, the blended weighted average discount rate of the LCSS receivables at the time of borrowing (which 
occurs frequently throughout the year) is used to determine the fair value of the receivables’ cash flows. The residual cash flows 
relating to the LCSS receivables are discounted using a separate yield based on the assumed rating to the residual tranche reflecting 
the life contingent feature of these receivables.

 
Life settlement contracts, at fair market value – The fair values of life settlement contracts are determined by reference 

to the transfer price of similar life settlement contracts under a discounted cash flow calculation that takes into account the net 
death benefit under the policy, estimated future premium payments and the life expectancy of the insured, as well as other qualitative 
factors regarding market participants' assumptions. Life expectancy is determined on a policy-by-policy basis using the results of 
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medical underwriting performed by independent agencies. Although the Company updated the life expectancy inputs used to 
determine the fair value of its life settlement contracts during the year ended December 31, 2014, this did not result in a significant 
change in the fair value of these assets.

 
Notes receivable, at fair market value – The fair values of notes receivables were determined based on the discounted 

present value of future expected cash flows using management’s best estimates of the key assumptions regarding credit losses and 
discount rates determined to be commensurate with the risks involved. The notes receivable was repaid in June 2014. 

 
VIE derivative liabilities, at fair value – The fair value of interest rate swaps, is based on pricing models which consider 

current interest rates, and the amount and timing of cash flows (Note 18).
 

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is only disclosed in the consolidated financial statements:
 

VIE and other finance receivables, net of allowance for losses – The fair value of structured settlement, annuity, and 
lottery receivables was estimated based on the present value of future expected cash flows using discount rates commensurate 
with the risks involved. The fair value of pre-settlement funding transactions and attorney cost financing was based on expected 
losses and historical loss experience associated with the respective receivables using management’s best estimates of the key 
assumptions regarding credit losses.

  
Other receivables, net of allowance for losses – The estimated fair value of advances receivable and certain other 

receivables, which are generally recovered in less than three months, is equal to the carrying amount. The carrying value of other 
receivables which have expected recoverability of greater than three months, which consist primarily of a note receivable (Note 
8), have been estimated based on the present value of future expected cash flows using management’s best estimate of the key 
assumptions, including discount rates commensurate with the risks involved.

 
Installment obligations payable – Installment obligations payable are reported at contract value determined based on 

changes in the measuring indices selected by the obligees under the terms of the obligations over the lives of the obligations. The 
fair value of installment obligations payable is estimated to be equal to carrying value.

 
Term loan payable – The estimated fair value of the term loan payable is based on recently executed transactions and 

market price quotations obtained from third-parties (Note 17).
 
VIE borrowings under revolving credit facilities and other similar borrowings – The estimated fair value of borrowings 

under revolving credit facilities and other similar borrowings is based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company 
for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities.

 
VIE long-term debt – The estimated fair value of VIE long-term debt is based on fair value borrowing rates available to 

the Company based on recently executed transactions with similar underlying collateral characteristics, reflecting the specific 
terms and conditions of the debt.
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The following table sets forth the Company’s assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value on the Company’s consolidated 
balance sheets as of:

Quoted Prices in Active
Markets for Identical Assets

Level 1

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

Level 2

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

Level 3
Total at

Fair Value

 
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2014
    

Assets
    

Marketable Securities:
    

Equity securities
    

US large cap $ 41,246 $ — $ — $ 41,246
US mid cap 8,192 — — 8,192
US small cap 7,586 — — 7,586
International 14,123 — — 14,123
Other equity 1,051 — — 1,051

Total equity securities $ 72,198 $ — $ — $ 72,198
Fixed income securities:

    

US fixed income 16,699 — — 16,699
International fixed income 3,526 — — 3,526
Other fixed income 27 — — 27

Total fixed income securities 20,252 — — 20,252
Other securities:

    

Cash & cash equivalents 6,629 — — 6,629
Alternative investments 1,829 — — 1,829
Annuities 2,511 — — 2,511

Total other securities 10,969 — — 10,969
Total marketable securities 103,419 — — 103,419
VIE and other finance receivables, at fair
market value — — 4,523,835 4,523,835
Life settlements contracts, at fair market
value (1) — — — —

Total Assets $ 103,419 $ — $ 4,523,835 $ 4,627,254

Liabilities
    

VIE long-term debt issued by securitization
and permanent financing trusts, at fair
market value — — 4,031,864 4,031,864
VIE derivative liabilities, at fair market
value — 75,706 — 75,706

Total Liabilities $ — $ 75,706 $ 4,031,864 $ 4,107,570
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Quoted Prices in Active
Markets for Identical Assets

Level 1

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

Level 2

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

Level 3
Total at

Fair Value

 
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2013
    

Assets
    

Marketable Securities:
    

Equity securities
    

US large cap $ 41,821 $ — $ — $ 41,821
US mid cap 9,769 — — 9,769
US small cap 10,212 — — 10,212
International 19,938 — — 19,938
Other equity 936 — — 936

Total equity securities $ 82,676 $ — $ — $ 82,676
Fixed income securities:

    

US fixed income 26,713 — — 26,713
International fixed income 4,089 — — 4,089
Other fixed income 29 — — 29

Total fixed income securities 30,831 — — 30,831
Other securities:

    

Cash & cash equivalents 5,534 — — 5,534
Alternative investments 705 — — 705
Annuities 2,208 — — 2,208

Total other securities 8,447 — — 8,447
Total marketable securities 121,954 — — 121,954
VIE and other finance receivables, at fair
market value — — 3,870,649 3,870,649
Notes receivable, at fair market value — — 5,610 5,610
Life settlements contracts, at fair market
value (1) — — — —

Total Assets $ 121,954 $ — $ 3,876,259 $ 3,998,213

Liabilities
    

VIE long-term debt issued by securitization
and permanent financing trusts, at fair
market value — — 3,431,283 3,431,283
VIE derivative liabilities, at fair market
value — 70,296 — 70,296

Total Liabilities $ — $ 70,296 $ 3,431,283 $ 3,501,579
 
(1) Included in other assets on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet
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The following table sets forth the Company’s quantitative information about its Level 3 fair value measurements as of :
 

Fair Value      
(Dollars in thousands) Valuation Technique

Unobservable 
Input

Range
(Weighted Average)

December 31, 2014

Assets
   

VIE and other finance
receivables, at fair market
value $ 4,523,835 Discounted cash flow Discount rate 2.55% - 12.60% (3.43%)

Life settlement contracts,
at fair market value — Model actuarial pricing

Life expectancy
Discount rate

45 to 344 months (219)
18.00% (18.00%)

Total Assets $ 4,523,835
   

Liabilities
    

VIE long-term debt issued
by securitization and
permanent financing
trusts, at fair market value 4,031,864 Discounted cash flow Discount rate 0.74% - 12.32% (3.16%)

Total Liabilities $ 4,031,864
   

 

Fair Value      
(Dollars in thousands) Valuation Technique

Unobservable
Input

Range
(Weighted Average)

December 31, 2013

Assets
   

VIE and other finance
receivables, at fair market
value $ 3,870,649 Discounted cash flow Discount rate 2.79% - 13.69% (4.33%)

Notes receivable, at fair
market value 5,610 Discounted cash flow Discount rate 7.85% (7.85%)

Life settlement contracts,
at fair market value — Model actuarial pricing

Life expectancy
Discount rate

14 to 250 months (148)
18.50% (18.50%)

Total Assets $ 3,876,259
   

Liabilities
    

VIE long-term debt issued
by securitization and
permanent financing
trusts, at fair market value 3,431,283 Discounted cash flow Discount rate 0.73% - 12.70% (3.94%)

Total Liabilities $ 3,431,283
   

 
A significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement of all of the Company’s assets and liabilities measured 

at fair value using unobservable inputs (Level 3) is the discount rate. Significant increases (decreases) in the discount rate used to 
estimate fair value in isolation would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement of the corresponding asset or 
liability. An additional significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement of the life settlement contracts, at fair 
value, is life expectancy. Significant increases (decreases) in the life expectancy used to estimate the fair value of life settlement 
contracts in isolation would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measurement.
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The changes in assets measured at fair value using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during the years ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:
 

 

VIE and other
finance receivables,
at fair market value

Life settlement
contracts, at fair

market value
Notes receivable, at
fair market value Total

 

(Dollars in thousands)
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 3,870,649 $ — $ 5,610 $ 3,876,259
Total gains (losses):

    

Included in earnings / losses 551,756 (116) 2,098 553,738
Included in other comprehensive
gain — — (1,615) (1,615)

Purchases of finance receivables 420,886 — — 420,886
Life insurance premiums paid — 116 — 116
Interest accreted 163,758 — — 163,758
Payments received (483,214) — (6,093) (489,307)
Maturities — — — —
Asset distribution — — — —
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 — — — —
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 4,523,835 $ — $ — $ 4,523,835

The amount of net gains (losses) for the
period included in revenues attributable
to the change in unrealized gains or
losses relating to assets still held as of:
December 31, 2014 $ 551,756 $ (116) $ — $ 551,640

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 3,615,188 $ 1,724 $ 8,074 $ 3,624,986
Total gains (losses):

    

Included in earnings / losses 164,823 (22) (1,862) 162,939
Included in other comprehensive
gain — — 1,891 1,891

Purchases of finance receivables 388,401 — — 388,401
Life insurance premiums paid — 241 — 241
Interest accreted 147,063 — — 147,063
Payments received (435,211) — (2,493) (437,704)
Maturities — (51) — (51)
Asset distribution (9,615) (1,892) — (11,507)
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 — — — —
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 3,870,649 $ — $ 5,610 $ 3,876,259
The amount of net gains (losses) for the
period included in revenues attributable
to the change in unrealized gains or
losses relating to assets still held as of:

    

December 31, 2013 $ 164,823 $ (20) $ — $ 164,803
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The changes in liabilities measured at fair value using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during the years ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:
 

 

VIE long-term debt issued
by securitizations and
permanent financing

trusts, at fair market value
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 3,431,283
Net (gains) losses:

 

Included in earnings / losses 245,085
Issuances 685,436
Interest accreted (40,000)
Repayments (289,940)
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 —
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 4,031,864
The amount of net (gains) losses for the period included in revenues attributable to the
change in unrealized gains or losses relating to long-term debt still held as of:
December 31, 2014 $ 245,332

Balance as of December 31, 2012 3,229,591
Net (gains) losses:

 

Included in earnings / losses (58,968)
Issuances 624,252
Interest accreted (46,425)
Repayments (317,167)
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3 —
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 3,431,283
The amount of net (gains) losses for the period included in earnings attributable to the
change in unrealized gains or losses relating to long- term debt still held as of:

 

December 31, 2013 $ (34,475)
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Realized and unrealized gains and losses included in revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations 
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 are reported in the following revenue categories:

VIE and other finance
receivables and long-

term debt
Life settlement

contracts
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Net gains (losses) in revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014 $ 306,671 $ (116)

Unrealized gains (losses) for the year ended December 31, 2014 relating to
assets still held as of December 31, 2014 $ 306,424 $ (116)

Net gains (losses) in revenues for the year ended December 31, 2013 $ 223,791 $ (22)

Unrealized gains (losses) for the year ended December 31, 2013 relating to
assets still held as of December 31, 2013 $ 199,298 $ (20)

Net gains (losses) in revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012 $ 261,835 $ (1,757)

Unrealized gains (losses) for the year ended December 31, 2012 relating to
assets still held as of December 31, 2012 $ 261,244 $ (1,370)

 
The Company discloses fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not recognized at fair value in the 

Company’s consolidated balance sheets, for which it is practicable to estimate that value. As such, the estimated fair values of the 
Company’s financial instruments are as follows as of:
 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Estimated

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Estimated
Fair

Value
Carrying
Amount

Financial assets
    

Marketable securities $ 103,419 $ 103,419 $ 121,954 $ 121,954
VIE and other finance receivables, at fair market value 4,523,835 4,523,835 3,870,649 3,870,649
VIE and other finance receivables, net of allowance for losses (1) 123,765 131,292 126,502 132,992
Notes receivable, at fair market value — — 5,610 5,610
Other receivables, net of allowance for losses (1) 14,165 14,165 13,529 13,529

Financial liabilities
    

VIE derivative liabilities, at fair market value 75,706 75,706 70,296 70,296
VIE borrowings under revolving credit facilities and other similar
borrowings (1) 21,415 19,339 42,275 41,274
VIE long-term debt (1) 176,635 181,558 147,112 150,802
VIE long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent
financing trusts, at fair market value 4,031,864 4,031,864 3,431,283 3,431,283
Installment obligations payable (1) 103,419 103,419 121,954 121,954
Term loan payable (1) 433,904 437,183 434,184 434,184

 
(1)These represent financial instruments not recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value.  Such financial instruments 

would be classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.
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6. VIE and Other Finance Receivables, at Fair Market Value
 

The Company has elected to fair value newly originated guaranteed structured settlements in accordance with ASC 810.  
Additionally, as a result of the Company including lottery winning finance receivables in its 2013-1 asset securitization, the 
Company also elected to fair value newly originated lottery winnings effective January 1, 2013. VIE and other finance receivables 
for which the fair value option was elected consist of the following as of:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
 (Dollars in thousands)
Maturity value $ 6,492,863 $ 5,917,596
Unearned income (1,969,028) (2,046,947)

Net carrying amount $ 4,523,835 $ 3,870,649
 

Encumbrances on VIE and other finance receivables, at fair market value are as follows:

Encumbrance December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
 

(Dollars in thousands)
VIE securitization debt (2) $ 4,357,456 $ 3,742,218
$250 million credit facility (1) — —
$100 million credit facility (1) 2 11,073
$50 million credit facility (1) — —
$300 million credit facility (1) — 16,681
$300 million credit facility (1) — 7,568
$100 million permanent financing related to 2011-A (2) 64,575 41,164

Total VIE finance receivables, at fair value 4,422,033 3,818,704
Not encumbered 101,802 51,945

Total VIE and other finance receivables, at fair value $ 4,523,835 $ 3,870,649

(1) See Note 14

(2) See Note 16

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the residual cash flows from the Company’s finance receivables, at fair market value, 
were pledged as collateral for the Residual Term Facility (Note 16). Additionally, as of December 31, 2013, the Company’s notes 
receivables, at fair market value, were pledged as collateral for the Residual Term Facility. The Company’s notes receivables, at 
fair market value, were repaid during the year ended December 31, 2014.
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As of December 31, 2014, the expected cash flows of VIE and other finance receivables, at fair market value based on 
maturity value for the next five years and thereafter were as follows:
 

Year ended December 31, Expected cash flows
 

(Dollars in thousands)
2015 $ 492,968
2016 478,018
2017 452,471
2018 420,244
2019 403,629
Thereafter 4,245,533

Total $ 6,492,863
 

The Company is engaged to service certain finance receivables it sells to third parties. Servicing fee revenue related to 
those receivables are included in servicing, broker, and other fees in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations, and 
for the years ended December 31, were as follows:
 

2014 2013 2012
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Servicing fees $ 914 $ 948 $ 1,051

7. VIE and Other Finance Receivables, net of Allowance for Losses
 

VIE and other finance receivables, net of allowance for losses consist of the following as of:

 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Structured settlements and annuities $ 76,253 $ 75,894
Less: unearned income (49,270) (49,751)

 

26,983 26,143
Lottery winnings 81,169 87,495
Less: unearned income (24,389) (28,442)

 

56,780 59,053
Pre-settlement funding transactions 57,886 56,309
Less: deferred revenue (1,563) (2,240)

 

56,323 54,069
Attorney cost financing 1,334 2,069
Less: deferred revenue — —

 

1,334 2,069
VIE and other finance receivables, gross 141,420 141,334
Less: allowance for losses (10,128) (8,342)

VIE and other finance receivables, net $ 131,292 $ 132,992
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Encumbrances on VIE and other finance receivables, net of allowance for losses are as follows:

Encumbrance December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
 

(Dollars in thousands)
VIE securitization debt (2) $ 74,973 $ 78,575
$35 million pre-settlement credit facility (1) 30,423 25,047
$45.1 million long-term pre-settlement facility (2) 6,453 11,680
$2.5 million long-term facility (2) 1,640 2,524

Total VIE finance receivables, net of allowances 113,489 117,826
Not encumbered 17,803 15,166
Total VIE and other finance receivables, net of allowances $ 131,292 $ 132,992

(1) See Note 14

(2) See Note 15

As of December 31, 2014, the expected cash flows of structured settlements, annuities and lottery winnings based on 
maturity value for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, Expected cash flows
 

(Dollars in thousands)
2015 $ 16,500
2016 11,669
2017 10,757
2018 10,379
2019 10,336
Thereafter 97,781

Total $ 157,422
 

Excluded from the above table are pre-settlement funding transactions and attorney cost financing receivable balances 
of  $59.2 million and  $58.4 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, which do not have specified maturity dates.
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Activity in the allowance for losses for VIE and other finance receivables are as follows:

 

Structured
settlements and

annuities Lottery

Pre-settlement
funding

transactions
Attorney cost

financing Total
(Dollars in thousands)

For the year ended December 31, 2014
Allowance for losses:      

Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ (48) $ — $ (8,011) $ (283) $ (8,342)
Provision for loss (31) (3) (4,772) — (4,806)
Charge-offs 128 — 2,997 — 3,125
Recoveries (105) — — — (105)

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ (56) $ (3) $ (9,786) $ (283) $ (10,128)

Individually evaluated for impairment $ (56) $ (3) $ (2,886) $ — $ (2,945)
Collectively evaluated for impairment — — (6,900) (283) (7,183)

Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ (56) $ (3) $ (9,786) $ (283) $ (10,128)

VIE and other finance receivables, net:      
Individually evaluated for impairment $ 26,927 $ 56,777 $ 3,204 $ 1,051 $ 87,959
Collectively evaluated for impairment — — 43,333 — 43,333
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 26,927 $ 56,777 $ 46,537 $ 1,051 $ 131,292

For the year ended December 31, 2013      
Allowance for losses:      

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ (181) $ (6) $ (4,194) $ (269) $ (4,650)
Provision for loss (86) 99 (5,694) (14) (5,695)
Charge-offs 225 38 1,877 — 2,140
Recoveries (6) (131) — — (137)

Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ (48) $ — $ (8,011) $ (283) $ (8,342)

Individually evaluated for impairment $ (48) $ — $ — $ — $ (48)
Collectively evaluated for impairment — — (8,011) (283) (8,294)

Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ (48) $ — $ (8,011) $ (283) $ (8,342)

VIE and other finance receivables, net:      
Individually evaluated for impairment $ 26,095 $ 59,053 $ 4,283 $ — $ 89,431
Collectively evaluated for impairment — — 41,777 1,784 43,561
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 26,095 $ 59,053 $ 46,060 $ 1,784 $ 132,992

 
Management makes estimates in determining the allowance for losses on finance receivables. Consideration is given to 

a variety of factors in establishing these estimates, including current economic conditions and anticipated delinquencies. Because 
the allowance for losses is dependent on general and other economic conditions beyond the Company’s control, it is at least 
reasonably possible that the estimate for the allowance for losses could differ materially from the currently reported amount in the 
near term.  

The Company suspends recognizing interest income on a receivable when it is probable that the Company will be unable 
to collect all payments according to the contractual terms of the underlying agreement. Management considers all information 
available in assessing collectability. Collectability is measured on a receivable-by-receivable basis by either the present value of 
estimated  future cash flows discounted at the effective rate, the observable market price for the receivable or the fair value of the 
collateral if the receivable is collateral dependent. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous receivables, such as pre-settlement 
funding transactions, are collectively assessed for collectability.

Payments received on past due receivables and finance receivables on which the Company has suspended recognizing  
revenue are applied first to principal and then to accrued interest. Additionally, the Company generally does not resume recognition 
of interest income once it has been suspended. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had discontinued recognition of income 
on pre-settlement funding transactions and attorney cost financing receivables in the amount of $14.0 million and $0.6 million, 
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respectively. As of December 31, 2013, the Company had discontinued recognition of income on pre-settlement funding transactions 
and attorney cost financing receivables in the amount of $11.5 million and $0.8 million, respectively. 

 
Pre-settlement funding transactions and attorney cost financing are usually outstanding for a period of time exceeding 

one year. The Company performs underwriting procedures to assess the quality of the underlying pending litigation collateral prior 
to executing such transactions. The underwriting process involves an evaluation of each transaction’s case merits, counsel track 
record, and case concentration.

The Company assesses the status of the individual pre-settlement funding transactions to determine whether there are 
any  case specific concerns that need to be addressed and included in the allowance for losses on finance receivables. The Company 
also analyzes pre-settlement funding transactions on a portfolio basis based on the advances’ age as the ability to collect is correlated 
to the duration of time the advances are outstanding.

The following table presents gross finance receivables related to pre-settlement funding transactions based on their 
year of origination as of: 

Year of Origination December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
 

(Dollars in thousands)
2009 $ 2,618 $ 4,578
2010 4,251 5,740
2011 6,938 10,915
2012 10,687 17,527
2013 11,335 17,549
2014 22,057 —

Total $ 57,886 $ 56,309  
 

Based on historical portfolio experience, the Company reserved for pre-settlement funding transactions and attorney cost 
financing of $9.8 million and $0.3 million as of December 31, 2014, respectively, and $8.0 million and $0.3 million as of 
December 31, 2013, respectively.

 
The following table presents portfolio delinquency status excluding pre-settlement funding transactions and attorney cost 

financing as of:

30-59
Days

Past Due

60-89
Days

Past Due

Greater
than

90 Days
Total

Past Due Current

VIE and 
Other

Finance
Receivables,

net

VIE and Other
Finance

Receivables, net
> 90 days
accruing

(Dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2014
Structured settlements and annuities $ 6 $ 12 $ 208 $ 226 $ 26,701 $ 26,927 $ —
Lottery winnings 2 6 120 128 56,649 $ 56,777 —

Total $ 8 $ 18 $ 328 $ 354 $ 83,350 $ 83,704 $ —

December 31, 2013        
Structured settlements and annuities $ 4 $ 1 $ 62 $ 67 $ 26,028 $ 26,095 $ —
Lottery winnings — — 18 18 59,035 59,053 —

Total $ 4 $ 1 $ 80 $ 85 $ 85,063 $ 85,148 $ —

 
Pre-settlement funding transactions and attorney cost financing do not have set due dates as payment is dependent on the 

underlying case settling.
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8. Other Receivables, net of Allowance for Losses
 

Other receivables include the following as of:
 

 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Advances receivable $ 2,406 $ 3,146
Notes receivable 8,038 7,317
Tax withholding receivables on lottery winnings 1,209 1,992
Due from affiliates 376 271
Other 2,340 1,046

Other receivables, gross 14,369 13,772
Less allowance for losses (204) (243)

Other Receivables, net of allowances $ 14,165 $ 13,529
 

The Company’s lottery and structured settlements businesses in some cases will advance a portion of the purchase price 
to a customer prior to the closing of the transaction, which are included in advances receivable above.

 
Notes receivable represents receivables from a third party for the sale of LCSS assets.
 
Tax withholding receivables on lottery winnings represents the portion of lottery collections withheld for state and federal 

agencies. The Company obtains the withholding refund once appropriate tax filings are completed for the respective jurisdictions.
 
Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts for other receivables for the following years ended was as follows:

 

 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Beginning balance $ (243) $ (276)
Reversal of provision for losses 39 8
Recoveries — —
Other — 25

Ending balance $ (204) $ (243)

9. Life Settlement Contracts, at Fair Market Value
 

Information about life settlement contracts, all of which are reported at fair value as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and 
are included in other assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets based on estimated remaining life expectancy, for each 
of the next five years and thereafter and in the aggregate, as of December 31, 2014, are as follows:
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Year ended December 31,
Number of
Contracts Carrying Value Face Value

  
(Dollars in thousands)

2015 — $ — $ —
2016 — — —
2017 — — —
2018 1 — 500
2019 — — —
Thereafter 26 — 8,044

Total 27 $ — $ 8,544
 

Key assumptions in measuring the fair value of life settlement contracts were as follows:
 

 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Discount rate 18.00% 18.50%
Life expectancies range (months) 45 to 344 14 to 250
Average life expectancy (months) 219 148

 
The Company is required to pay certain life insurance premiums to keep the life settlement contracts in force. Premiums 

are required to be paid throughout the life of the insured. As of December 31, 2014, the anticipated amount of life insurance 
premiums to be paid by the Company for the next 5 years are as follows:
 

Year Ended December 31, Premium Payments
 

(Dollars in thousands)
2015 $ 173
2016 152
2017 163
2018 177
2019 196

Total $ 861
 

The Company recorded fair market value losses in the amount of $0.1 million, $0 and  $1.5 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. There were no encumbrances on life settlement contracts as of December 31, 
2014, 2013 and 2012.

 In prior years, the Company provided liquidity to persons or entities that owned life insurance policies by facilitating 
the sale of their policies to affiliates or third-party investors. In addition, the Company performed subservicing functions related 
to mortality tracking, monthly reporting, payment of premiums, and collection and distribution of insurance proceeds. The Company 
suspended facilitating the sale of life insurance policies and performing subservicing functions during the year ended December 
31, 2013. For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company earned $0, $0.9 million and $1.8 million, 
respectively, for subservicing fees from these affiliates.
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10. Fixed Assets and Leasehold Improvements
 

Fixed assets and leasehold improvements include the following as of:

 
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

 
(Dollars in thousands)

Computer software and equipment $ 5,372 $ 3,222
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3,323 2,964
Leasehold improvements 1,033 985
Software development costs and assets not put in service 6 485

Total fixed assets at cost 9,734 7,656
Less accumulated depreciation (5,976) (4,544)

Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation $ 3,758 $ 3,112
 

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company completed an evaluation of an internal use software application project 
that had been undertaken to develop a new software application related to its structured settlement business. Based on its decision 
to discontinue the project, the Company determined that the $4.0 million of costs that had been capitalized in conjunction with 
the software development project were no longer recoverable and wrote them down to their fair value of zero. The $4.0 million is 
included in the loss on disposal/impairment of fixed assets within the Company’s consolidated statement of operations.
 

Depreciation of fixed assets is included in depreciation and amortization in the Company’s consolidated statements of 
operations. Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, which includes amortization of assets 
recorded under capital leases, was $1.7 million,  $2.2 million and $1.6 million, respectively.

11. Intangible Assets
 

Intangible assets subject to amortization include the following as of:
 

 
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

 
(Dollars in thousands)

Cost
Accumulated
Amortization Cost

Accumulated
Amortization

Database $ 4,609 $ (4,011) $ 4,609 $ (3,623)
Customer relationships 18,844 (14,114) 18,844 (12,491)
Domain names 1,635 (327) 1,585 (167)
Non-compete agreements 1,821 (1,821) 1,821 (1,500)

Intangible assets subject to amortization $ 26,909 $ (20,273) $ 26,859 $ (17,781)

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the carrying value of the Company’s unamortized trade name is $38.8 million.  As 
of December 31, 2014, estimated future amortization expense for amortizable intangible assets for the next five years and 
thereafter are as follows:
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Year Ending December 31, Amortization Expense
 

(Dollars in thousands)
2015 $ 1,663
2016 1,256
2017 1,127
2018 1,127
2019 646
Thereafter 817

Total $ 6,636
 

Amortization of assets is included in depreciation and amortization in the Company’s consolidated statements of 
operations. Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, was $2.5 million, $3.5 million and $4.7 
million, respectively. 

12. Debt Issuance Costs
 

Debt issuance costs capitalized and included in other assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets consist of the 
following as of:

 

 
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

 
(Dollars in thousands)

Debt issuance costs $ 44,023 $ 43,694
Less: accumulated amortization (14,139) (6,418)
Unamortized debt issuance costs $ 29,884 $ 37,276

 
Amortization expense for debt issuance costs capitalized and recorded in other assets for the years ended December 31, 

2014, 2013 and 2012 was $7.7 million, $5.7 million and $1.4 million, respectively, and is included in interest expense in the 
Company’s consolidated statements of operations.

Debt issuance costs related to VIE long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent financing trusts, at fair 
market value are expensed as incurred and included in debt issuance expense in the Company’s consolidated statements of 
operations, and were as follows:

 

2014 2013 2012
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Debt issuance costs related to securitizations $ 8,683 $ 8,930 $ 9,124   

13. Operating and Capital Leases
 

The Company has commitments under operating leases, principally for office space, with various expiration dates through 
2022.  As of December 31, 2014, the following summarizes future minimum lease payments due under non-cancelable operating 
leases for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:
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Year Ended December 31, Operating Leases
 

(Dollars in thousands)
2015 $ 1,764
2016 1,775
2017 1,727
2018 1,770
2019 1,815
Thereafter 5,223

Total $ 14,074
 

Rent expense for office and equipment is included in general and administrative expense in the Company’s consolidated 
statements of operations and was as follows for the years ended December 31:
 

 
2014 2013 2012

 
(Dollars in thousands)

Rent expense $ 1,695 $ 3,152 $ 2,007
 

As of December 31, 2014 the Company has no future commitments for capital lease obligations.
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14. VIE Borrowings Under Revolving Credit Facilities and Other Similar Borrowings
 

VIE borrowings under revolving credit facilities and other similar borrowings on the consolidated balance sheets consist 
of the following as of:

 

Entity
December 31,

2014
December 31,

2013
 

(Dollars in thousands)
$100 million variable funding note facility with interest payable monthly
at 9.0%, collateralized by JGW-S III, LLC ("JGW-S III") structured
settlements receivables, 2-year revolving period with 18 months
amortization period thereafter upon notice by the issuer or the note
holder with all principal and interest outstanding payable no later than
October 15, 2048. JGW-S III is charged monthly an unused fee of 1.00%
per annum for the undrawn balance of its line of credit. JGW-S III $ — $ 7,535

$50 million credit facility, interest payable monthly at the rate of LIBOR
plus an applicable margin (3.42% at December 31, 2014 and 3.42% as of
December 31, 2013) maturing on October 2, 2016, collateralized by
JGW IV, LLC ("JGW IV") structured settlements and annuity
receivables. JGW IV is charged monthly an unused fee of 0.50% per
annum for the undrawn balance of its line of credit. JGW IV 6 —

$300 million multi-tranche and lender credit facility with interest
payable monthly as follows: Tranche A rate comprises 3.0% and either
the LIBOR or the Commercial Paper rate depending on the lender
(3.17% and 3.26% at December 31, 2014 and 3.17% and 3.29% at
December 31, 2013). Tranche B rate is 5.5% plus LIBOR (5.67% at
December 31, 2014 and 5.67% at December 31, 2013). The facility
matures on July 24, 2016 and is collateralized by JGW V, LLC ("JGW
V") structured settlements and annuity receivables. JGW V is charged
monthly an unused fee of 0.625% per annum for the undrawn balance of
its line of credit. JGW V — 10,985

$300 million credit facility, interest payable monthly at 2.75% plus an
applicable margin (2.92% at December 31, 2014 and 2.95% at December
31, 2013), maturing on November 15, 2016, collateralized by JGW VII,
LLC ("JGW VII") structured settlements and annuity receivables. JGW
VII is charged monthly an unused fee of 0.50% per annum for the
undrawn balance of its line of credit. JGW VII — 5,769

$35 million multi class credit facility with interest payable monthly as
follows: Class A rate comprises the lender's "prime rate" plus 1.00%,
subject to a floor of 4.50% (4.50% as of December 31, 2014 and 2013).
Class B rate comprises the Class A rate plus 1.00% (5.50% as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013). The facility matures December 31, 2015
and is collateralized by certain pre-settlement receivables. Peach One is
charged monthly an unused fee of 0.50% per annum for the undrawn
balance of its line of credit. Peach One 19,333 16,985

Total VIE borrowings under revolving credit facilities and other
similar borrowings

 

$ 19,339 $ 41,274
 

Interest expense, including unused fees, for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 related to borrowings 
under revolving credit facilities and other similar borrowings was $9.0 million, $9.9 million and $9.4 million, respectively.

 
The weighted average interest rate on outstanding VIE borrowings under revolving credit facilities and other similar 

borrowings as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 was 4.63% and 4.81%, respectively.
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15. VIE Long-Term Debt
 

The VIE long-term debt consisted of the following as of:
 

 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
 

(Dollars in thousands)
PLMT Permanent Facility $ 44,277 $ 47,267
Residual Term Facility 107,043 68,785
Long-Term Pre-settlement Facility 8,884 12,435
2012-A Facility 1,357 2,276
LCSS Facility (2010-C) 12,838 12,880
LCSS Facility (2010-D) 7,159 7,159

Total VIE long-term debt $ 181,558 $ 150,802
 

PLMT Permanent Facility
 

The Company has a $75.0 million floating rate asset backed loan with interest payable monthly at one-month LIBOR 
plus 1.25% which is currently in a runoff mode with the outstanding balance being reduced by periodic cash collections on the 
underlying lottery receivables. The loan matures on October 30, 2040.

 
The debt agreement with the counterparty requires Peachtree Lottery Master Trust (“PLMT”)  to hedge each lottery 

receivable with a pay fixed and receive variable interest rate swap with the counterparty. The swaps are recorded at fair value in 
VIE derivative liabilities, at fair market value on the consolidated balance sheets.

 
Residual Term Facility
 

In September 2011 and August 2012, the Company issued term debt of $56.0 million and $14.0 million, respectively 
("the Residual Term Facility"). The Residual Term Facility is collateralized by the cash flows from securitization residuals related 
to certain securitizations and by notes receivable that were fully repaid in June 2014. Initially, interest on the Residual Term Facility 
was payable at 8.0% until September 15, 2018 and 9.0% thereafter. The $56.0 million term debt and the $14.0 million were to 
mature on September 15, 2018 and September 15, 2019, respectively. Principal payments from collateral cash flows began on 
September 15, 2013 and were scheduled to continue until maturity. In addition, the $56.0 million term debt required minimum 
annual principal payments of $5.5 million beginning on September 15, 2015 and continuing until maturity. Moreover, the $14.0 
million term debt required minimal annual principal payments of $2.0 million beginning on September 15, 2014 and continuing 
until maturity.

In May 2014, the Company amended the terms of the Residual Term Facility to increase the principal balance from $70.0 
million to $110.0 million, reduce the interest rate to 7.0% per annum, payable monthly, and eliminate the requirement of minimum 
annual principal payments.  In connection with the amendment of the Residual Term Facility, the Company paid $3.1 million in 
amendment, legal and other fees,$2.4 million of which was capitalized and the remaining $0.7 million was expensed and included 
in the Company's consolidated statement of operations. The Residual Term Facility matures on May 15, 2021.

 
Long-Term Pre-settlement Facility
 

In 2011, the Company issued three fixed rate notes totaling $45.1 million, of which, $8.9 million and $12.4 million 
principal amount remains outstanding as of and December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Interest accrues on the notes at a rate 
of 9.25% per annum with interest and principal payable monthly from the cash receipts of collateralized pre-settlement funding 
transactions. The notes mature on June 6, 2016.

2012-A Facility
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In December 2012, the Company issued a series of notes collateralized by structured settlements. The proceeds to the 
Company from the issuance of the notes were $2.5 million and interest accrues on the notes at a fixed interest rate of 9.25%.  
Interest and principal are payable monthly from cash receipts of collateralized structured settlement receivables. The notes mature 
on June 15, 2024.

 
Long-term Debt for Life Contingent Structured Settlements (2010-C & 2010-D)
 
Long-term Debt (2010-C)
 

In November 2010, the Company issued a private asset class securitization note registered under Rule 144A under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Rule 144A”). The 2010-C bond issuance of $12.9 million is collateralized by life-contingent 
structured settlements, accrues interest at 10% per annum and matures on March 15, 2039.

 
The interest and, if available, principal payments are payable monthly from cash receipts of collateralized life-contingent 

structured settlements receivables.
 

Long-term Debt (2010-D)
 

In December 2010, the Company paid $0.2 million to purchase the membership interests of LCSS, LLC from JLL Partners. 
LCSS, LLC owns 100% of the membership interests of LCSS II, LLC which owns 100% of the membership interests of LCSS 
III. In November 2010, LCSS III issued $7.2 million long-term debt 2010-D collateralized by life-contingent structured settlements.   
2010-D accrues interest at 10% per annum and matures on July 15, 2040.

 
The interest and, if available, principal payments are payable monthly from cash receipts of collateralized life-contingent 

structured settlements receivables.
 
As of December 31, 2014, estimated principal payments on VIE long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are 

as follows:
 

Year Ending December 31,
Estimated Principal

Payments 
 

(Dollars in thousands)
2015 $ 6,692
2016 6,777
2017 6,749
2018 6,676
2019 7,093
Thereafter 147,809

Total $ 181,796
 

Excluded from the above table is a debt balance of $8.9 million as of December 31, 2014 which does not have specified 
due principal payments as the timing of those payments depend on collections of the underlying collateral pre-settlement funding 
transactions.

 
Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 related to VIE long-term debt were $14.9 million,  

$14.7 million and $15.4 million, respectively.

16. VIE Long-term Debt Issued by Securitization and Permanent Financing trusts, at Fair Market Value
 
Securitization Debt

 
The Company elected fair value treatment under ASC 825 to measure the securitization issuer debt and related finance 

receivables. The Company has determined that measurement of the securitization debt issued by SPEs at fair value better correlates 
with the value of the finance receivables held by SPEs, which are held to provide the cash flows for the note obligations. Debt 
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issued by SPEs is non-recourse to other subsidiaries. Certain subsidiaries of the Company continue to receive fees for servicing 
the securitized assets which are eliminated in consolidation. In addition, the risk to the Company’s non-SPE subsidiaries from SPE 
losses is limited to cash reserve and residual interest amounts.

 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company completed three asset securitization transactions that were 

registered according to Rule 144A. The following table summarizes these securitization SPE transactions:
 

2014-3 2014-2 2014-1
(Bond proceeds in $ millions)

Issue date 11/25/2014 7/23/2014 2/18/2014
Bond proceeds $207.4 $227.4 $233.9
Receivables securitized 2,169 3,744 4,128
Deal discount rate 3.86% 3.95% 4.24%
Retained interest % 5.50% 5.50% 6.00%
Class allocation (Moody’s)

   

Aaa 84.75% 84.00% 85.25%
Baa2 9.75% 10.50% 8.75%

 
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Company completed three asset securitization transactions that were 

registered according to Rule 144A. The following table summarizes these securitization SPE transactions:
 

2013-3 2013-2 2013-1
(Bond proceeds in $ millions)

Issue date 10/18/2013 7/30/2013 3/20/2013
Bond proceeds $212.6 $174.6 $216.5
Receivables securitized 3,790 3,410 2,425
Deal discount rate 4.37% 4.49% 3.65%
Retained interest % 6.75% 6.75% 6.75%
Class allocation (Moody’s)

   

Aaa 85.25% 85.25% 85.25%
Baa2 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
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The following table summarizes notes issued by securitization trusts as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 for which the 
Company has elected the fair value option and are recorded as VIE long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent financing 
trusts, at fair market value in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets:
 

Securitization VIE Issuer Note(s)
Maturity

Date

Outstanding
Principal as
of December

31, 2014

Outstanding
Principal as
of December

31, 2013
Stated
 Rate

Fair Value as
of December

31, 2014

Fair Value as
of December

31, 2013

   
(Dollars in thousands)

 
(Dollars in thousands)

321 Henderson Receivables I, LLC 2002-A 11/15/2029 $ — $ 8,197 4.74% $ — $ 8,657
321 Henderson Receivables I, LLC 2003-A 11/15/2033 18,144 21,830 4.86% 19,642 23,846

321 Henderson Receivables I, LLC 2004-A A-1 9/15/2045 32,628 40,734
Libor

+0.35% 33,783 40,744
321 Henderson Receivables I, LLC 2004-A A-2 9/15/2045 19,286 20,010 5.54% 21,023 21,339

321 Henderson Receivables I, LLC 2005-1 A-1 11/15/2040 58,735 73,269
Libor

+0.23% 60,895 71,972
321 Henderson Receivables I, LLC 2005-1 A-2 11/15/2046 36,794 37,858 5.58% 39,374 38,136
321 Henderson Receivables I, LLC 2005-1 B 10/15/2055 2,242 2,307 5.24% 2,343 2,275

321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2006-1 A-1 3/15/2041 15,571 20,976
Libor

+0.20% 16,376 20,997
321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2006-1 A-2 3/15/2047 18,074 18,635 5.56% 19,847 19,335

321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2006-2 A-1 6/15/2041 18,859 23,621
Libor

+0.20% 20,009 23,189
321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2006-2 A-2 6/15/2047 20,395 20,930 5.93% 22,484 21,481

321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2006-3 A-1 9/15/2041 21,361 25,902
Libor

+0.20% 22,604 25,617
321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2006-3 A-2 9/15/2047 26,343 26,543 5.60% 28,861 26,766

321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2006-4 A-1 12/15/2041 19,719 23,842
Libor

+0.20% 20,608 23,491
321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2006-4 A-2 12/15/2047 21,133 21,424 5.43% 22,907 20,997

321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2007-1 A-1 3/15/2042 32,994 38,248
Libor

+0.20% 33,431 35,818
321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2007-1 A-2 3/15/2048 17,220 17,598 5.59% 17,681 16,843

321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2007-2 A-1 6/15/2035 37,592 41,544
Libor

+0.21% 36,730 35,473
321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2007-2 A-2 7/16/2040 17,041 17,289 6.21% 16,806 16,520
321 Henderson Receivables II, LLC 2007-3 A-1 10/15/2048 59,378 64,936 6.15% 70,026 69,777
321 Henderson Receivables III, LLC 2008-1 A 1/15/2044 56,186 63,988 6.19% 66,265 75,044
321 Henderson Receivables III, LLC 2008-1 B 1/15/2046 3,235 3,235 8.37% 4,790 4,268
321 Henderson Receivables III, LLC 2008-1 C 1/15/2048 3,235 3,235 9.36% 4,971 4,163
321 Henderson Receivables III, LLC 2008-1 D 1/15/2050 3,529 3,529 10.81% 5,828 4,860
321 Henderson Receivables IV, LLC 2008-2 A 11/15/2037 70,210 76,855 6.27% 84,357 88,573
321 Henderson Receivables IV, LLC 2008-2 B 3/15/2040 6,194 6,194 8.63% 9,296 7,491
321 Henderson Receivables V, LLC 2008-3 A-1 6/15/2045 49,385 53,694 8.00% 66,074 68,155
321 Henderson Receivables V, LLC 2008-3 A-2 6/15/2045 6,104 6,637 8.00% 8,045 8,154
321 Henderson Receivables V, LLC 2008-3 B 3/15/2051 4,695 4,695 10.00% 6,642 5,342
321 Henderson Receivables VI, LLC 2010-1 A-1 7/15/2059 138,254 152,587 5.56% 159,918 173,907
321 Henderson Receivables VI, LLC 2010-1 B 7/15/2061 24,661 26,470 9.31% 32,595 33,559
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Securitization VIE Issuer Note(s)
Maturity

Date

Outstanding
Principal as
of December

31, 2014

Outstanding
Principal as
of December

31, 2013
Stated 
Rate

Fair Value as
of December

31, 2014

Fair Value as
of December

31, 2013

   
(Dollars in thousands)

 
(Dollars in thousands)

JG Wentworth XXI, LLC 2010-2 A 1/15/2048 59,582 66,831 4.07% 64,313 71,443
JG Wentworth XXI, LLC 2010-2 B 1/15/2050 8,506 8,914 7.45% 10,368 10,590
JG Wentworth XXII, LLC 2010-3 A 10/15/2048 115,400 131,690 3.82% 123,222 139,382
JG Wentworth XXII, LLC 2010-3 B 10/15/2050 16,770 17,009 6.85% 19,893 19,457
JG Wentworth XXIII, LLC 2011-1 A 10/15/2056 176,119 193,099 4.89% 196,934 203,018
JG Wentworth XXIII, LLC 2011-1 B 10/15/2058 21,212 21,212 7.68% 26,981 24,424
JGWPT XXIV, LLC 2011-2 A 1/15/2063 147,406 157,977 5.13% 167,703 165,749
JGWPT XXIV, LLC 2011-2 B 1/15/2065 15,580 15,580 8.54% 21,286 18,882
JGWPT XXV, LLC 2012-1 A 2/16/2065 182,576 195,431 4.21% 197,497 195,181
JGWPT XXV, LLC 2012-1 B 2/15/2067 20,564 20,564 7.14% 26,088 23,012
JGWPT XXVI, LLC 2012-2 A 10/15/2059 128,310 136,962 3.84% 134,860 132,465
JGWPT XXVI, LLC 2012-2 B 10/17/2061 13,985 13,985 6.77% 17,391 15,172
JGWPT XXVII, LLC 2012-3 A 9/15/2065 164,533 176,599 3.22% 166,033 164,682
JGWPT XXVII, LLC 2012-3 B 9/15/2067 17,181 17,181 6.17% 20,500 17,910
JGWPT XXVIII, LLC 2013-1 A 4/15/2067 180,695 192,104 3.22% 181,767 177,316
JGWPT XXVIII, LLC 2013-1 B 4/15/2069 18,589 18,589 4.94% 20,280 17,379
JGWPT XXIX, LLC 2013-2 A 3/15/2062 150,541 156,815 4.21% 162,561 154,903
JGWPT XXIX, LLC 2013-2 B 3/17/2064 14,985 14,985 5.68% 17,277 14,756
JGWPT XXX, LLC 2013-3 A 1/17/2073 183,987 193,197 4.08% 196,867 190,531
JGWPT XXX, LLC 2013-3 B 1/15/2075 18,248 18,248 5.54% 20,832 17,900
JGWPT XXXI, LLC 2014-1 A 3/15/2063 208,739 — 3.96% 221,453 —
JGWPT XXXI, LLC 2014-1 B 3/15/2065 21,776 — 4.94% 23,679 —
JGWPT XXXII, LLC 2014-2 A 1/17/2073 201,649 — 3.61% 207,410 —
JGWPT XXXII, LLC 2014-2 B 1/15/2075 25,284 — 4.48% 26,221 —
JGWPT XXXIII, LLC 2014-3 A 6/15/2077 185,884 — 3.50% 187,783 —
JGWPT XXXIII, LLC 2014-3 B 6/15/2079 21,408 — 4.40% 21,684 —
Structured Receivables Finance #1,
LLC 2004-A A 5/15/2028 — 2,895 4.06% — 2,952
Structured Receivables Finance #1,
LLC 2004-A B 5/15/2028 7,196 7,832 7.50% 7,846 8,909
Structured Receivables Finance #2,
LLC 2005-A A 5/15/2025 13,108 18,142 5.05% 14,031 19,617
Structured Receivables Finance #2,
LLC 2005-A B 5/15/2025 9,141 10,030 6.95% 10,764 11,940
Peachtree Finance Company #2, LLC 2005-B A 4/15/2048 15,979 21,676 4.71% 16,912 23,212
Peachtree Finance Company #2, LLC 2005-B B 4/15/2048 5,471 5,933 6.21% 6,161 6,706
Structured Receivables Finance #3,
LLC 2006-A A 1/15/2030 30,496 36,858 5.55% 34,037 41,489
Structured Receivables Finance #3,
LLC 2006-A B 1/15/2030 9,294 10,224 6.82% 11,118 11,826
Structured Receivables Finance 2006-
B, LLC 2006-B A 3/15/2038 41,959 46,486 5.19% 47,413 52,276
Structured Receivables Finance 2006-
B, LLC 2006-B B 3/15/2038 7,922 8,425 6.30% 9,245 8,899
Structured Receivables Finance 2010-
A, LLC 2010-A A 1/16/2046 65,773 75,258 5.22% 74,239 84,777
Structured Receivables Finance 2010-
A, LLC 2010-A B 1/16/2046 11,567 12,355 7.61% 14,714 14,251
Structured Receivables Finance 2010-
B, LLC 2010-B A 8/15/2036 51,681 59,622 3.73% 54,968 62,977
Structured Receivables Finance 2010-
B, LLC 2010-B B 8/15/2036 13,932 14,000 7.97% 18,360 16,637
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Total
  

$ 3,462,225 $ 3,063,520
 

$ 3,774,902 $ 3,177,409

In connection with its 2014-2 securitization, the Company repaid in September 2014 approximately $6.1 million of long 
term debt issued by 2002-A and recorded a gain on debt extinguishment of approximately $0.3 million. 

Permanent financing facilities
 

The following table summarizes notes issued by permanent financing facilities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively, for which the Company has elected the fair value option and are recorded as VIE long-term debt issued by securitization 
and permanent financing trusts, at fair market value on the consolidated balance sheets:
 

Securitization
VIE Issuer

Maturity
Date Note(s)

Outstanding
Principal as of

December 31, 2014
Stated 
Rate

Fair Value as of
December 31, 2014

   

(Dollars in thousands)
 

(Dollars in thousands)
JGW-S LC II 8/15/2040 2011-A $ 56,114 12.63% $ 56,114
PSS 7/14/2033 — 168,018 Libor + 1% 161,004
Crescit 6/15/2039 — 29,823 8.10% 39,844

Total
  

$ 253,955
 

$ 256,962

 

Securitization
VIE Issuer

Maturity
Date Note(s)

Outstanding
Principal as of

December 31, 2013
Stated 
Rate

Fair Value as of
December 31, 2013

   

(Dollars in thousands)
 

(Dollars in thousands)
JGW-S LC II 8/15/2040 2011-A $ 39,598 12.70% $ 39,598
PSS 7/14/2033 — 184,304 Libor + 1% 172,184
Crescit 6/15/2039 — 33,012 8.10% 42,097
Total

  

$ 256,914
 

$ 253,879
 

In connection with its 2013-3 securitization, the Company repaid in October 2013 approximately $64.0 million of long 
term debt issued by Structured Receivables Finance #6, LLC and recorded a gain on debt extinguishment of approximately $22.1 
million. As a result of the repayment of debt, the Company was required to pay approximately $3.4 million in various prepayment 
fees and approximately $4.5 million for hedge breakage costs that were included in gain on extinguishment of debt, net in the 
Company’s consolidated statements of operations.

On March 18, 2014, the Company amended the terms of its $50.0 million permanent financing facility related to the 2011-
A note issued by JGW-S LC II, LLC to increase the maximum borrowing capacity to $100.0 million.

 
Future repayment of VIE long-term debt issued by securitization trusts and permanent financing facilities is dependent 

on the receipt of cash flows from the corresponding encumbered VIE finance receivables at fair market value (Note 6). As of 
December 31, 2014, estimated maturities for VIE long-term debt issued by securitization trusts and permanent financing facilities, 
at fair market value, for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:
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Year Ending December 31, Estimated Maturities
 

(Dollars in thousands)
2015 $ 301,975
2016 290,784
2017 278,548
2018 257,567
2019 248,368
Thereafter 2,338,938

Total $ 3,716,180
 
Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 related to VIE long-term debt issued by 

securitization trusts and permanent financing facilities, at fair market value, were $136.6 million, $120.4 million and $119.2 million, 
respectively.

17. Term Loan Payable
 

In connection with the Company’s merger with OAC and its subsidiaries on July 12, 2011 (the “OAC Merger”), the 
Company assumed OAC’s term loan payable in the amount of $176.5 million, with interest payable at Eurodollar base rate plus 
applicable and additional margins (8.75% as of December 31, 2012), which was scheduled to mature on November 21, 2013 (the 
“Term Loan”). Interest expense relating to the Term Loan for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 was $0, $1.4 
million and $14.5 million, respectively.
  

On February 8, 2013, the Term Loan was refinanced with a new senior secured credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) that 
consisted of a $425.0 million term loan (the “New Term Loan”) and a $20.0 million revolving commitment maturing in 
February 2019 and August 2017, respectively. Certain of the Company's subsidiaries are guarantors of the Credit Facility. 
Substantially all of the non-securitized and non-collateralized assets of certain of the Company's subsidiaries were pledged as 
security for the repayment of borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility. In connection with the issuance of the Credit 
Facility, the Company paid approximately $15.0 million in amendment, legal and other fees during the three months ended March 
31, 2013.

 
At each interest reset date, the Company has the option to elect that the New Term Loan be either a Eurodollar loan or a 

Base Rate loan.  If a Eurodollar loan, interest on the New Term Loan accrues at either Libor or 1.5% (whichever is greater) plus 
a spread of 7.5%. If a Base Rate loan, interest accrues at prime or 2.5% (whichever is greater) plus a spread of 6.5%. The revolving 
commitment has the same interest rate terms as the New Term Loan. In addition, the revolving commitment is subject to an unused 
fee of 0.5% per annum and provides for the issuance of letters of credit equal to $10.0 million, subject to customary terms and 
fees.

 
The Credit Facility requires the Company, to the extent that as of the last day of any fiscal quarter outstanding balances 

on the revolving commitment exceed specific thresholds, to comply with a maximum total leverage ratio. As of December 31, 
2014 and 2013, there were no outstanding borrowings under the revolving commitment and, as a result, the maximum total leverage 
ratio requirement was not applicable. The Credit Facility also limits the Company and certain of its subsidiaries from engaging in 
certain activities, including mergers and acquisitions, incurrence of additional indebtedness, incurring liens, making investments, 
transacting with affiliates, disposing of assets, and various other activities. In addition, the Credit Facility limits, with certain 
exceptions, certain of the Company’s subsidiaries from making cash dividends and loans to the Company. As a result, approximately 
$79.9 million of the Company’s $253.6 million and $78.2 million of the Company's  $173.4 million in stockholders’ equity as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, was free of limitations on the payment of dividends.

 
In conjunction with the refinancing of the Term Loan, JGW LLC  made a cash distribution to its members in the amount 

of $309.6 million as well as an asset distribution in the amount of $16.3 million to PGHI Corp during the three months ended 
March 31, 2013. The distribution assets were originally acquired by JGW LLC as part of the OAC Merger.
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On May 31, 2013, the Credit Facility was amended to provide for an additional term loan of $150.0 million on the same 
terms as the New Term Loan. In conjunction with this amendment, JGW LLC made a cash distribution to its members in the 
amount of $150.0 million and paid approximately $2.9 million in amendment, legal and other fees.

 
As a result of the distributions by JGW LLC to its members described above, each outstanding preferred interest in JGW 

LLC was converted into one Common Interest on May 31, 2013 in accordance with the Amended and Restated Limited Liability 
Company Agreement of JGW LLC.

 
On December 6, 2013, the Company repaid $123.0 million of its New Term Loan from the proceeds of its IPO and 

amended the terms of the Credit Facility. The amendment, among other things: (i) reduced the applicable margin on the initial 
term loans from 7.50% to 6.00% for Eurodollar loans and from 6.50% to 5.00% for Base Rate loans, and (ii) reduced the interest 
rate floor on the initial term loans from 1.50% to 1.00% for Eurodollars loans and from 2.50% to 2.00% for Base Rate loans. As 
of December 31, 2014, the New Term Loan’s interest rate was 7.0%. In connection with the repayment and amendment of the 
New Term Loan, the Company paid approximately $13.1 million in amendment, legal and other fees. Additionally, as a result of 
the Company’s repayment, the principal amount of the New Term Loan outstanding was $449.5 million as of December 31, 2014 
and 2013. There are no further principal payments due on the New Term Loan until its maturity in February 2019.

 
Interest expense relating to the New Term loan for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was approximately    

$40.4 million and $46.6 million, respectively.
 

18. Derivative Financial Instruments
 

The Company utilizes interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to changes in interest rates related to borrowings on its 
revolving credit facilities. Hedge accounting has not been applied to any of the Company’s interest rate swaps.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company did not have any outstanding interest rate swaps related to its borrowings on 
revolving credit facilities. However, during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 and in connection with its 
securitizations, the Company terminated $46.5 million, $112.9 million, and $179.7 million of interest rate swap notional value, 
respectively. The total gain (loss) on the termination of these interest rate swaps for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 
2012 was $(0.6) million,  $0.2 million, and ($2.3) million, respectively. These gains (losses) were recorded in gain (loss) on swap 
terminations, net in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations. The unrealized gain for these swaps for all three of  the 
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $0 million.

 
The Company also has interest-rate swaps to manage its exposure to changes in interest rates related to its borrowings 

on certain long-term debt issued by securitization and permanent financing trusts (Note 16).  As of December 31, 2014, the Company 
had 8 outstanding swaps with total notional amounts of approximately $237.5 million. The Company pays fixed rates ranging 
from 4.50% to 5.77% and receives floating rates equal to 1-month LIBOR rate plus applicable margin.

 
These interest rate swaps were designed to closely match the borrowings under the respective floating rate asset backed 

loans in amortization.  As of December 31, 2014, the term of these interest rate swaps range from approximately 8 to approximately 
21 years. For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the amount of unrealized gain recognized was $2.4 million,  
$24.5 million and $7.8 million, respectively. These gains were recorded in unrealized gains on VIE and other finance receivables, 
long-term debt and derivatives in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.
 

Additionally, the Company has interest-rate swaps to manage its exposure to changes in interest rates related to its 
borrowings under Peachtree Structured Settlements, LLC, a permanent financing VIE (“PSS”) (Note 16), and PLMT (Note 15).  
As of December 31, 2014, the Company had 154 outstanding swaps with total notional amount of approximately $229.9 million.  
The Company pays fixed rates ranging from 4.70% to 8.70% and receives floating rates equal to 1-month LIBOR rate plus applicable 
margin.

 
The PSS and PLMT interest rate swaps were designed to closely match the borrowings under the respective floating rate 

asset backed loans in amortization. As of December 31, 2014, the term of the interest rate swaps for PSS and PLMT range from 
approximately 1 month to approximately 20 years.  For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 the amount of unrealized 
gain (loss) recognized was $(8.1) million, $26.6 million and $1.1 million, respectively. These gains (losses) included in unrealized 
gains on VIE and other finance receivables, long term debt and derivatives in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.
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The notional amounts and fair values of interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
 

Entity Securitization
Notional as of

December 31, 2014
Fair Market Value as
of December 31, 2014

Notional as of
December 31, 2013

Fair Market Value as
of December 31, 2013

  
(Dollars in thousands)

321 Henderson I, LLC 2004-A A-1 $ 32,628 $ (3,019) $ 40,734 $ (3,745)
321 Henderson I, LLC 2005-1 A-1 58,735 (7,435) 73,269 (8,559)
321 Henderson II, LLC 2006-1 A-1 15,571 (1,509) 20,976 (2,137)
322 Henderson II, LLC 2006-2 A-1 18,859 (2,718) 23,620 (3,202)
323 Henderson II, LLC 2006-3 A-1 21,361 (2,475) 25,902 (3,023)
324 Henderson II, LLC 2006-4 A-1 19,719 (2,056) 23,842 (2,643)
325 Henderson II, LLC 2007-1 A-2 32,994 (5,624) 39,364 (5,159)
326 Henderson II, LLC 2007-2 A-3 37,592 (8,966) 41,544 (8,015)
JGW V, LLC — — — 10,985 16
PSS — 176,943 (31,807) 192,444 (25,120)
PLMT — 52,907 (10,097) 56,942 (8,709)

Total
 

$ 467,309 $ (75,706) $ 549,622 $ (70,296)  

19. Income Taxes
 

The Corporation is required to file federal and applicable state corporate income tax returns and recognizes income taxes 
on its pre-tax income, which to-date has consisted primarily of its share of JGW LLC’s pre-tax income. JGW LLC is organized 
as a limited liability company which is treated as a “flow-through” entity for income tax purposes and therefore is not subject to 
income taxes. As a result, the Company's consolidated financial statements do not reflect a benefit or provision for income taxes 
for JGW LLC for periods prior to the IPO or any benefit or provision for income taxes on the pre-tax income or loss attributable 
to the non-controlling interest in JGW LLC.

 
The Company's provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, 

consists of the following:
 

 

For the year ended December 31,
 

2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Current:
   

Federal $ 107 $ 177 $ 1
State 10 35 —

 

117 212 1

Deferred:
   

Federal 15,313 1,990 (195)
State 5,710 344 (33)

 

21,023 2,334 (228)
Income tax provision (benefit) $ 21,140 $ 2,546 $ (227)

The difference between the Company's effective income tax rate and the United States statutory rate is reconciled below:
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 For the year ended December 31,
 

2014 2013 2012
Federal 35.0 % 35.0 % 35.0 %
Income passed through to Non-Corporate members (18.9)% (35.1)% (35.2 )%
Permanent Items 0.7 % 0.2 % —
State Income Tax 3.4 % (0.1)% —
Valuation Allowance (2.0)% 3.9 % —
Other (0.3)% — —
Effective tax rate 17.9 % 3.9 % (0.2)%

  
The Company’s overall effective tax rate is less than the statutory rate due primarily to the fact that a portion of JGW 

LLC’s income is allocated to the non-controlling interests. Accordingly, a portion of the Company’s earnings attributable to the 
non-controlling interests are not subject to corporate-level taxes.

The increase in the Company’s overall effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year 
ended December 31, 2013 was predominantly the result of the allocation of income from JGW LLC to the Corporation for all of 
2014. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the Corporation was only allocated taxable income for the period after the IPO. The 
Company’s share of JGW LLC’s income also increased as a result of Common Interestholders having exchanged their Common 
Interests for shares of Class A common stock during the year ended December 31, 2014.  The Company’s effective rate increases 
as additional exchanges occur because the portion of JGW LLC’s income attributable to the Corporation increases which 
consequently increases taxable income. The effect of JGW LLC’s Common Interest exchanges is partially offset by the Corporation’s 
repurchases of its Class A Common stock. Anytime the Corporation repurchases shares of its Class A common stock, JGW LLC 
enters into an equivalent Common Interests transaction with the Corporation.  The effect of these repurchases decreases the 
Corporation’s ownership in JGW LLC which accordingly, decreases the portion of JGW LLC’s income attributable to the 
Corporation. 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences that may exist between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes using the enacted tax rates 
for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. A summary of the components of deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabilities follows:

 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
 

(Dollars in thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

 

Swap liability $ 974 $ 840
Net operating loss carryforwards 46,856 5,523

Total deferred tax assets 47,830 6,363
Valuation allowance (216) (2,553)

Total deferred tax assets, net 47,614 3,810

Deferred tax liabilities:
  

Basis difference in partnership 78,842 2,538
Lottery winnings 1,940 164
Lottery fair market value adjustments 1,140 973
Other 178 13

Total deferred tax liabilities 82,100 3,688
Deferred tax liabilities, net $ (34,486) $ 122
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As of December 31, 2014, the Company has federal and state income tax net operating loss carry forwards of $110.8 
million and $110.8 million, respectively, which will expire at various dates from 2032 through 2034.

 
Future realization of tax benefits depends on the expectation of taxable income within a period of time that the tax benefits 

will reverse. The Company assesses available positive and negative evidence to determine if it is more likely than not that it will 
be able to realize its deferred tax assets prior to expiration. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013,  the Company recorded valuation 
allowances in the amount of $0.2 million and $2.6 million, respectively, against the portion of its federal and state net operating 
losses associated with the Company that it has determined are not more likely than not of being realized. During the year ended 
December 31, 2014, the Company reduced the valuation allowance applied against its net operating loss carryforwards by $2.6 
million based on future taxable income resulting from the Blocker Merger (Note 2).

 
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had no gross unrecognized tax benefits. The Company does not expect 

any material increase or decrease in its gross unrecognized tax benefits during the next twelve months.  If and when the Company 
does record unrecognized tax benefits in the future, any interest and penalties related to these unrecognized tax benefits will be 
recorded in the income tax expense line in the applicable statement of operations.

 
The Company files its tax returns as prescribed by the tax laws of the jurisdictions in which it operates. In the normal 

course of business, the Company may be subject to examination by federal and certain state and local tax authorities. As of 
December 31, 2014, the Company and its subsidiaries’ U.S. federal income tax returns for the years 2011 through 2014 are open 
under the normal three-year statute of limitations and therefore subject to examination. State and local tax returns are generally 
subject to audit from 2011 through 2014. Currently, no tax authorities are auditing the Company on any income tax matters.

20. Installment Obligations Payable
 

The Company’s Asset Advantage® program generates income and losses from both the related trust accounts and the 
corresponding installment obligation for each trust account. Income or loss from the trust accounts will be offset in equal amount 
with income or loss from the installment obligations. Each obligation has an installment payment schedule agreed to by the obligee 
prior to the time of issuance of the obligation. An obligee may request an unscheduled installment payment, which must be agreed 
to by the Company, and if so agreed, the Company may generally charge a penalty of up to 20% of the unscheduled installment 
amount. Virtually all of the obligations are guaranteed by corporate guarantees issued by third party financial institutions to the 
extent of assets held in related trust accounts.

 
The actual maturities of the obligations depend on, among other things, the obligees’ designated payment schedules, the 

performance of the obligees’ index choices and the extent to which the obligees have taken any unscheduled installment 
payments. As of December 31, 2014, estimated maturities for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:
 

Year Ended December 31, Estimated Maturities 
 

(Dollars in thousands)
2015 $ 14,515
2016 16,752
2017 14,003
2018 11,591
2019 8,759
Thereafter 37,799

Total $ 103,419  

21. Stockholders’ Equity
 

Refer to Note 2 for a description of the IPO and associated reorganization of the Company.

The Corporations' authorized capital stock consists of 500,000,000 shares of Class A common stock, par value $.00001 
per share, 500,000,000 shares of Class B common stock, par value $.00001 per share, 500,000,000 shares of Class C common 
stock, par value $.00001 per share, and 100,000,000 shares of blank check preferred stock.
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As of December 31, 2014, there were 15,021,147 shares of Class A common stock issued and 14,420,392 shares 
outstanding. Additionally, there were 9,963,750 shares of Class B common stock issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2014. 
There were no shares of Class C common stock issued or outstanding as of December 31, 2014.

 
Class A Common Stock Repurchase Program

On May 2, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the repurchase of an aggregate of $15.0 million of Class 
A common stock (the “Stock Repurchase Program”) under Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Purchases under 
the Stock Repurchase Program may be made from time to time in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, 
accelerated stock repurchase programs, issuer self-tender offers or otherwise in accordance with applicable federal securities laws. 
The Stock Repurchase Program does not obligate the Company to acquire any particular amount of Class A common stock and 
the pace of repurchase activity will depend on factors such as levels of cash generation from operations, cash requirements for 
investment in the Company’s business, repayment of debt, current stock price, market conditions and other factors. The Stock 
Repurchase Program may be suspended, modified or discontinued at any time and has no set expiration date.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company repurchased 458,705 shares of Class A common stock for an 
aggregate purchase price of $4.5 million, or $9.74 per share, pursuant to the Stock Repurchase Program. The repurchased shares 
are classified as treasury stock at cost on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Additionally, in connection the Blocker Merger (Note 2), the Company received 185,561 shares of the Company's Class 
A common stock, 47,440 of which was immediately canceled by the Company. The remaining 138,121 shares are classified as 
treasury stock at cost on the Company's consolidated balance sheet.

Class A Common Stock
 

Holders of Class A common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote 
of stockholders. Holders of Class A common stock are entitled to share ratably (based on the number of shares of Class A common 
stock held) if and when any dividend is declared by the Corporation's board of directors. Upon dissolution, liquidation or winding 
up, holders of Class A common stock are entitled to a pro rata distribution of any assets available for distribution to common 
stockholders, and do not have preemptive, subscription, redemption or conversion rights.

 
Class B Common Stock
 

Shares of Class B common stock will only be issued in the future to the extent that additional Common Interests are 
issued by JGW LLC, in which case the Corporation would issue a corresponding number of shares of Class B common stock.

Holders of Class B common stock are entitled to ten votes for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote 
of stockholders. Holders of Class B common stock do not have any right to receive dividends and upon liquidation, dissolution 
or winding up and will only be entitled to receive an amount per share equal to the $0.00001 par value. Holders of Class B common 
stock do not have preemptive rights to purchase additional shares of Class B common stock.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the operating agreement of JGW LLC, each Common Interestholder has the right 
to exchange their Common Interests in JGW LLC together with the corresponding number of shares of Class B common stock, 
for  shares of Class A common stock, or at the option of JGW LLC, cash equal to the market value of one share of Class A common 
stock.
 
Class C Common Stock
 

Holders of Class C common stock generally are not entitled to vote on any matters. Holders of Class C common stock 
are entitled to share ratably (based on the number of shares of Class C common stock held) if and when any dividend is declared 
by the Corporation's board of directors. Upon dissolution, liquidation or winding up, holders of Class C common stock will be 
entitled to a pro rata distribution of any assets available for distribution to common stockholders (except the de minimis par value 
of the Class B common stock), and do not have preemptive rights to purchase additional shares of Class C common stock.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the operating agreement of JGW LLC, PGHI Corp. and its permitted transferees 
have the right to exchange the non-voting Common Interests in JGW LLC they hold for shares of Class C common stock, or at 
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the option of JGW LLC, cash equal to the market value of Class C common stock.
 
Each share of Class C common stock may, at the option of the holder, be converted at any time into a share of Class A 

common stock on a one-for-one basis.
 

Preferred Stock

 The Corporation's certificate of incorporation provides that the board of directors has the authority, without action by the 
stockholders, to designate and issue up to 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock in one or more classes or series and to fix the 
powers, rights, preferences, and privileges of each class or series of preferred stock, including dividend rights, conversion rights, 
voting rights, terms of redemption, liquidation preferences, and the number of shares constituting any class or series, which may 
be greater than the rights of the holders of the common stock. No preferred stock had been issued or was outstanding as of 
December 31, 2014.

 
Warrants Issued to PGHI Corp.
 

In connection with the IPO and restructuring, the Class C Profits Interests of JGW LLC held by PGHI Corp. were canceled 
and holders received in-exchange warrants to purchase shares of Class A common stock. The warrants issued in respect of the 
Tranche C-1 profit interests entitle the holders thereof to purchase up to 483,217 shares of Class A common stock and have an 
exercise price of $35.78 per share. The warrants issued in respect of the Tranche C-2 profits interests also entitle the holders thereof 
to purchase up to 483,217 shares of Class A common stock and have an exercise price of $63.01 per share.  All of the warrants 
issued are currently exercisable, terminate on January 8, 2022, and may not be transferred. None of the warrants were exercised 
during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.

JGW LLC Operating Agreement
 
Pursuant to the operating agreement of JGW LLC, the holders of JGW LLC Common Interests (other than the Corporation) 

have the right, subject to terms of the operating agreement as described therein, to exchange their Common Interests and an equal 
number of shares of Class B common stock for an equivalent number of shares of Class A common stock, or in the case of PGHI 
Corp., an equivalent number of shares of Class C common stock. During the year ended December 31, 2014, 3,123,517 Common 
Interests in JGW LLC, in addition to an equal number of shares of Class B common stock, were exchanged for 3,123,517 shares 
of the Class A common stock pursuant to the operating agreement. An additional 715,916 Common Interests in JGW LLC and an 
equal number of shares of Class B common stock were exchanged for 715,916 shares of Class A common stock during the year 
ended December 31, 2014 in connection with the Blocker Merger (Note 2).

Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

 ASU 2013-02, Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income requires entities to 
report, either on the face of the income statement or in the notes, the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other 
comprehensive income on the respective line items in net income if the amount being reclassified is required under GAAP to be 
reclassified in its entirety to net income. During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recorded the following 
reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income:
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For the year ended December 31,

Details about accumulated
other comprehensive income

components

Amounts
reclassified from

accumulated
other

comprehensive
income

Affected line item in the
consolidated statement of

operations
(Dollars in
thousands)

2014
Unrealized gains and losses on

available-for-sale securities $ 2,098
Realized gain (loss) on notes

receivable, at fair value

2013
Unrealized gains and losses on

available-for-sale securities $ (1,862)
Realized gain (loss) on notes

receivable, at fair value

In June 2014, a third party repaid its fixed rate note receivable held by the Company. As a result, the Company reclassified 
$2.1 million out of accumulated other comprehensive income during the year ended December 31, 2014. The $1.9 million was 
also reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income during the year ended December 31, 2013 as a result of the note 
receivable maturing during the period. Both notes receivables had been treated as debt securities, classified as available-for-sale, 
and carried at fair value in accordance with ASC Topic 320,  Investments - Debt and Equity Securities. As a result of this 
classification, unrealized gains (losses) on the notes receivables that arose were reflected within accumulated other comprehensive 
gain (loss) in the Company’s consolidated statements of comprehensive income (loss) and consolidated statements of changes in 
stockholders’ equity.
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22. Non-controlling Interests
 

The Corporation consolidates the financial results of JGW LLC whereby it records a non-controlling interest for the 
economic interest in JGW LLC held by the Common Interestholders (see Note 1). Pursuant to an agreement between the Corporation 
and JGW LLC, any time the Corporation cancels, issues or repurchases shares of Class A common stock, JGW LLC cancels, issues 
or repurchases, as applicable, an equivalent number of Common Interests. In addition, any time Common Interestholders exchange 
their Common Interests for shares of Class A common stock, JGW LLC is required to transfer an equal number of Common 
Interests to the Corporation. Changes in the non-controlling and the Corporation’s interest in JGW LLC for the year ended December 
31, 2014 are as follows:

 

Total Common Interests Held By:

 

The J.G.
Wentworth
Company

Non-controlling
Interests Total

Balance as of December 31, 2013 11,216,429 18,344,688 29,561,117

Common interests acquired by The J.G. Wentworth Company
as a result of the issuance of restricted common stock. 8,796 — 8,796
Common interests acquired by The J.G. Wentworth Company
as a result of the exchange of units for shares of Class A
common stock. 3,123,517 (3,123,517) —
Common interests exchanged as a result of the Blocker
Merger. 530,355 (715,916) (185,561)
Common interests repurchased related to Class A common
stock repurchased. (458,705) — (458,705)
Common interests forfeited. — (180,882) (180,882)

Balance as of December 31, 2014 14,420,392 14,324,373 28,744,765

The non-controlling interests include the Common Interestholders who were issued shares of Class B common stock in 
connection with the IPO as well as other Common Interestholders who may convert their Common Interests into 4,360,623 shares 
of Class C common stock.

23. Risks and Uncertainties
 

The Company’s finance receivables are primarily obligations of insurance companies. The exposure to credit risk with 
respect to these finance receivables is generally limited due to the large number of insurance companies of generally high credit 
quality comprising the receivable base, their dispersion across geographical areas, and possible availability of state insurance 
guarantee funds. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, three insurance companies and related subsidiaries, each with "investment 
grade" ratings, comprised approximately 34% and 33%, respectively, of the Company's gross finance receivables balance. The 
Company is also subject to numerous risks associated with structured settlements. These risks include, but are not limited to, 
restrictions on assignability of structured settlements, potential changes in the U.S. tax law related to taxation of structured 
settlements, diversion by a seller of scheduled payments to the Company, and other potential risks of regulation and/or legislation. 
A majority of states have regulated the business by passing statutes that govern the sale of structured settlement payments. Generally, 
the laws require a court approval to consummate a sale. The Company’s earnings are dependent upon the fair value of the finance 
receivables it purchases relative to the value it can obtain by financing these assets in securitization or other transactions. 
Accordingly, earnings are subject to risks and uncertainties surrounding exposure to changes in the interest rate environment, 
competitive pressures affecting the ability to maintain sufficient effective purchase yields, and the ability to sell or securitize 
finance receivables at profitable levels in the future. For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company’s 
structured settlement business accounted for 94%,  88% and 89% of total revenue, respectively. 
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24. Commitments and Contingencies

Arrangements
 

The Company had an arrangement (the “Arrangement”) with a counterparty for the sale of LCSS assets that met certain 
eligibility criteria which expired on June 30, 2012.  Pursuant to the Arrangement, the Company also had a borrowing agreement 
(the “Borrowing Agreement”) with the counterparty that gave the counterparty a borrowing base to draw on from the Company 
for the purchase of LCSS assets.  As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the amount owed from the counterparty pursuant to this 
Borrowing Agreement is approximately $9.7 million and $9.1 million, respectively and is earning interest at an annual rate of 
5.35% and is included in other receivables, net of allowance for losses in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets (Note 8).

 
The Arrangement also has put options, which expire on December 30, 2019 and 2020, that gives the counterparty the 

option to sell purchased LCSS assets back to the Company. The put options, if exercised by the counterparty, require the Company 
to purchase LCSS assets at a target internal rate of return ("IRR") of 3.5% above the original target IRR paid by the counterparty.

Loss on Contingencies
 

In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims. These proceedings and 
claims have not been finally resolved and the Company cannot make any assurances as to their ultimate disposition. It is in 
management’s opinion, based on the information currently available at this time, that the expected outcome of these matters will 
not have a material adverse effect on the financial position, the results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

25. Share-based Compensation
 

 Under the Company’s 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units 
and stock appreciation rights units may be granted to officers, employees, non-employee directors and consultants of the Company. 
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, 1.4 million shares and 2.6 million shares of unissued Class A common stock were available 
for granting under this plan, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had granted non-qualified stock options and performance-based restricted stock 
units to its employees and restricted stock shares to independent directors under the Plan. The Company recognizes compensation 
cost net of a forfeiture rate within the consolidated statement of operations for only those awards expected to vest. The Company 
estimates the forfeiture rate based on its expectations about future forfeitures.

Stock Options
 
Options were granted to purchase Class A common stock at exercise prices equal to the fair value market value on the 

date of grant, have a contractual term of ten years, and vest generally in equal annual installments over a five-year period following 
the date of grant, subject to the holder’s continued employment with the Company through the applicable vesting date. 

 
The fair value of stock option awards was estimated using the Black-Scholes valuation model with the following 

assumptions and weighted average fair values: 
 

 

Year Ended
December 31,

2014

Year Ended
December 31,

2013
Weighted average fair value of grant $ 4.81 $ 6.55
Risk-free interest rate 1.91% 1.87%
Expected volatility 41.6% 45.0%
Expected life of options in years 6.5 6.5
Expected dividend yield — —

 
The Company recognizes compensation expense for the fair value of the stock options on a straight-line basis over the 

requisite service period of the awards. During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized $0.8 million 



Table of Contents
The J.G. Wentworth Company

(Prior to November 14, 2013, J.G. Wentworth, LLC and Subsidiaries)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

F-52

and less than $0.1 million of share based compensation expense in connection with the stock options issued under the Plan, 
respectively.

 

A summary of stock option activity for the year ended  December 31, 2014 is as follows:

 

Shares

Weighted-
 Average
 Exercise 

Price

Weighted-
 Average

 Remaining
 Contractual

 Term (In 
Years)

Aggregate
 Intrinsic

 Value 
(Dollars in
 Millions)

Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 264,047 $ 14.00 9.87 $ 0.9
Granted 1,265,500 10.90
Exercised — —
Forfeited (152,615) 11.32
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 1,376,932 $ 11.44 9.44 $ 0.1

Outstanding, vested and expected to vest as of
December 31, 2014 1,321,056 11.45 9.44 0.1
Vested as of December 31, 2014 43,771 14.00 8.88 —

 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, 43,771 shares of stock options vested with an aggregate grant date fair value 

of $0.3 million. The aggregate intrinsic value represents the total pre-tax value of the difference between the closing price of 
Class A common stock on the last trading day of the period and the exercise price of the options, multiplied by the number of in-
the-money stock options that would have been received by the option holders had all the option holders exercised their options on 
December 31, 2014. The intrinsic value of the Company’s stock options changes based on the closing price of Class A common 
stock. As of December 31, 2014, $6.2 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to the outstanding stock options 
is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 4.4 years.

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units

A summary of performance-based restricted stock units for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Performance-Based
Restricted Stock Units

Weighted-Average 
Grant-Date 
Fair Value

Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 — $ —
Granted 184,000 10.48
Vested — —
Forfeited (53,750) 10.20
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 130,250 $ 10.60
Outstanding, vested and expected to vest as of December 31,
2014 125,835 10.60

Each performance-based unit will vest into 0 to 1.5 shares of Class A common stock depending to the degree to which 
the performance goals are met. Compensation expense resulting from these awards is recognized ratably from the date of the grant 
until the date the restrictions lapse and is based on the trading price of the Class A common stock on the date of grant and the 
probability of achievement of the specific performance-based goals. For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company 
recognized $0.3 million of share-based compensation expense in connection with these performance-based units.

The aggregate grant-date fair value of the performance-based restricted stock units granted during the year ended 
December 31, 2014 was $1.9 million. As of December 31, 2014, there was $1.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost 
relating to outstanding performance-based units that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.0 years. 
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None of the performance-based restricted stock units were vested as of December 31, 2014.

Restricted Stock 

 A summary of restricted stock activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Restricted
Stock Shares

Weighted-Average 
Grant-Date
 Fair Value

Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 3,929 $ 14.00
Granted 8,796 12.40
Vested (3,929) 14.00
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 8,796 $ 12.40

 
Restricted stock granted to directors under the 2013 Incentive Plan cliff vest on the first anniversary after the grant date. 

The fair value of restricted stock is determined based on the trading price of the Class A common stock on the date of grant. The 
aggregate grant date fair value of the restricted stock granted for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $0.1 million 
and $0.1 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2014, there was $0.1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost relating 
to outstanding restricted stock that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 0.3 years. 
 

The Company recognizes compensation expense for the fair value of restricted stock on a straight-line basis over the one-
year cliff vesting period. During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized $0.1 million and less 
than $0.1 million of share based compensation expense in connection with the restricted stock, respectively.

J.G. Wentworth, LLC Class A Management Profit Interests and JGW LLC Class B Management Profit Interests
 
JGW LLC Class B Management Profit Interests (“Class B Management Interests”)
 

In 2011, JGW LLC adopted the JGW LLC 2011 Equity Compensation Plan (the “Compensation Plan”). The purpose of 
the Compensation Plan was to provide eligible participants, as defined in the Compensation Plan, with an opportunity to acquire 
equity interests of JGW LLC designated as common interests and to receive grants of equity interests of JGW LLC’s designated 
as Class B Management Interests subject to the terms and provisions of the Amended and Restated Limited liability Company 
Agreement of JGW LLC. The Class B Management Interests were subject to forfeiture restrictions that lapsed in equal 20% 
installments over a five-year period, subject to the recipient’s continued employment.

 
The aggregate weighted average grant-date fair value of Class B Management Interests granted during the years ended 

December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $1.5 million and $2.6 million, respectively. The aggregate weighted average grant-date fair 
value of Class B Management Interests for which forfeiture restrictions lapsed during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 
2012 was $0.5 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

 
On November 14, 2013 and in connection with the IPO and reorganization (Note 2), each Class B Management Interest 

was converted into newly issued JGW LLC Restricted Common Interests ("Restricted Common Interests") (with a corresponding 
equal number of shares of Class B common stock) in a manner that reflected the percentage of JGW LLC owned by the Class B 
Management Interest holders, and taking into account their current distribution entitlement and the fair value of JGW LLC at the 
time of the IPO based on the IPO offering price. A substantial amount of these converted interests remain subject to forfeiture and 
will only vest if the holder remains employed through the applicable period. 

The following table summarizes the conversion of Class B Management Interests into JGW LLC Restricted Common 
Interests on November 14, 2013 in connection with the IPO and reorganization:
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Outstanding at
November 14,

2013

Derived
Conversion

Factor

Restricted
Common

Interests at
November 14,

2013
Tranche B-1 835,240 1.108223 925,632
Tranche B-1a 217,500 0.426041 92,664
Tranche B-2 653,500 — —
Tranche B-3 573,955 — —
Tranche B-4 495,000 — —

 

2,775,195 — 1,018,296
 
As of November 14, 2013, the B-2, B-3 and B-4 Management Interests had no value and were extinguished. As a result, 

JGW LLC recognized $0.4 million in additional stock compensation expense in 2013 which represented the previously unrecognized 
compensation expense associated with the Class B Management Interests that were extinguished.

 
J.G. Wentworth, LLC Class A Management Profit Interests (“Class A Management Interests”)
 

Prior to 2011, J.G. Wentworth, LLC had granted Class A Management Interests to certain employees that were similar 
in nature to the Class B Management Interests. The Class A Management Interests were subject to forfeiture restrictions that lapsed 
in 20% installments over a five year period, subject to the recipient’s continued employment.

 
No Class A Management Interests were issued in either 2012 or 2013. The aggregate weighted average grant-date fair 

value of Class A Management Interests for which forfeiture restrictions lapsed during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 
2012 was $0.9 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

 
Similar to the Class B Management Interests, each Class A Management Interest was converted on November 14, 2013 

into newly issued JGW LLC Restricted Common Interests in a manner that reflected the percentage of JGW LLC that were owned 
by the restricted Common Interestholders, taking into account the fair value of JGW LLC at the time of the IPO and based on the 
IPO offering price.

Each Class A Management Interest was converted into newly issued JGW LLC Restricted Common Interests at the derived 
conversion factor of 72.0, which resulted in 660,276 Restricted Common Interests being issued and outstanding as of November 14, 
2013.

Restricted Common Interests In JGW LLC

 The following table summarizes the activity of Restricted Common Interests that were issued as a result of the conversion 
of Class A and Class B Management Interests for the year ended December 31, 2014:

Vested and Unvested
Restricted

Common Interests

Weighted-Average 
Grant-Date 
Fair Value

Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 1,661,054 $ 4.95
Granted — —
Converted into shares of Class A common stock (397,058) 4.75
Forfeited (180,882) 3.23
Outstanding as of December 31, 2014 1,083,114 $ 5.32
Outstanding, vested and expected to vest as of December 31,
2014 1,081,992 5.31
Vested as of December 31, 2014 925,971 4.55
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The aggregate grant-date fair value of the Restricted Common Interests in JGW LLC granted during the year ended 
December 31, 2014 was $0. The aggregate grant-date fair value of the Restricted Common Interests that vested and were converted 
into Class A common stock during the year ended December 31, 2014 was $1.5 million and $1.9 million, respectively. As of 
December 31, 2014, there was $1.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to outstanding Restricted Common Interests 
that is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.1 years.

Total share based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 related to the former 
Class A and Class B Management Interests that were converted into Restricted Common Interests on November 13, 2013 was $1.2 
million, $1.3 million, and $1.8 million, respectively. 

26. Employee Benefit Plan
 

The Company maintains a Savings Plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Plan”). The Plan covers 
all employees who have attained 21 years of age and achieved three months of employment. Under the Plan, matching contributions 
are at the discretion of the Board of Directors. During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, the matching 
contributions by the Company were 50% on the first 8% of compensation contributed on a per pay basis. Employee benefit plan 
expense for the year ended December 31, was included in compensation and benefits expense in the Company’s consolidated 
statements of operations and was as follows:
 

 
2014 2013 2012

  
(Dollars in thousands)

 

Employee benefit plan expense $ 520 $ 505 $ 525

27. Restructure Expense
 

In April 2013, the Company announced its intention to close its Boynton Beach office. In connection with the 
announcement, the Company recorded a restructure charge of $3.6 million for primarily severance and related expense. The $3.6 
million charge for the year ended December 31, 2013 was recorded in the following statement of operations line items: compensation 
and benefits, $2.9 million; and general and administrative, $0.7 million. The associated workforce reductions were substantially 
complete as of December 31, 2013.  

28. Earnings per share
 

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) measures the performance of an entity over the reporting period. Diluted EPS measures 
the performance of an entity over the reporting period while giving effect to all potentially dilutive common shares that were 
outstanding during the period.

In accordance with ASC 260 Earnings Per Share, all outstanding unvested share-based payments that contain rights to 
non- forfeitable dividends and participate in the undistributed earnings with the common stockholders are considered participating 
securities. The shares of Class B common stock do not share in the earnings of the Corporation and are therefore not considered 
participating securities. Accordingly, basic and diluted net earnings per share of Class B common stock have not been presented. 
Furthermore, EPS for the full year ended December 31, 2013 is not presented because the Corporation was not a public company 
until November 13, 2013.

In connection with the IPO and restructuring, Class C Profit Interests of JGW LLC held by PGHI Corp. were exchanged 
for a total of 966,434 warrants to purchase shares of Class A common stock (Note 21). For the year ended December 31, 2014 and 
the period November 13, 2013 through December 31, 2013, these warrants were not included in the computation of diluted earnings 
per common share because they were antidilutive under the treasury stock method.   

 During the year ended December 31, 2014 and the period November 14, 2013 through December 31, 2013, 796,413 and 
264,047 of weighted average stock options outstanding, respectively, were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per 
common share because they were antidilutive under the treasury stock method. During the year ended December 31, 2014, 86,904 
of weighted-average performance-based restricted stock units were antidilutive and, therefore excluded, from the computation of 
diluted earnings per common share. None of the performance-based restricted stock units were outstanding in 2013.
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As discussed in Note 2, the operating agreement of JGW LLC gives Common Interestholders the right (subject to the 
terms of the operating agreement as described therein) to exchange their Common Interests for shares of Class A common stock 
on a one-for-one basis at fair value, subject to customary conversion rate adjustments for stock splits, stock dividends and 
reclassifications. The Company applies the “if-converted” method to the Common Interests and vested Restricted Common Interests 
in JGW LLC to determine the dilutive weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding.The Company applies the 
treasury stock method to the unvested Restricted Common Interests and the “if-converted” method on the resulting number of 
additional Common Interests to determine the dilutive weighted average shares of Class A common stock outstanding represented 
by these interests.

In computing the dilutive effect that the exchange of Common Interests and Restricted Common Interests would have on 
EPS, the Company considered that net income available to holders of Class A common stock would increase due to the elimination 
of non-controlling interests (including any tax impact). Based on these calculations, the 15,790,111 weighted average Common 
Interests and vested Restricted Common Interests outstanding and the 568,606 weighted average unvested Restricted Common 
Interests outstanding for the year ended December 31, 2014 were antidilutive. For the period November 13, 2013 to December 
31, 2013, 870,206 weighted average Common Interests and vested Restricted Common Interests outstanding and 807,993 weighted 
average unvested Restricted Common Interests were also antidilutive and excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per 
common share.

The following table is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the basic and diluted EPS calculations 
for the year ended December 31, 2014 and for the period of November 13, 2013 through December 31, 2013:

 

For the year
ended

December
31, 2014

November 14, 
2013

 

through 
December

 

31, 2013
(Dollars in thousands, except

per share data)
Numerator:

 

Numerator for basic EPS - Net income (loss) attributable to holders of  The J.G.
Wentworth Company Class A common stock $ 31,211 $ (5,577)

Effect of dilutive securities:
JGW LLC Common Interests and vested Restricted Common Interests — —
JGW LLC unvested Restricted Common Interests — —
Numerator for diluted EPS - Net income (loss) attributable to holders of The J.G.
Wentworth Company Class A common stock $ 31,211 $ (5,577)

Denominator:
 

Denominator for basic EPS -Weighted average shares of Class A common stock 12,986,058 10,395,574
Effect of dilutive securities:

 

Stock options — —
Warrants — —
Restricted common stock and performance-based restricted stock units 2,723 —
JGW LLC Common Interests and vested Restricted Common Interests — —
JGW LLC unvested Restricted Common Interests — —
Dilutive potential common shares 2,723 —

Denominator for diluted EPS - Adjusted weighted average shares of Class A common stock 12,988,781 10,395,574

Basic income (loss) per share of Class A common stock $ 2.40 $ (0.54)
Diluted income (loss) per share of Class A common stock $ 2.40 $ (0.54)
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29. Subsequent Events
 

On March 6, 2015, the Company entered into a stock purchase agreement to acquire WestStar Mortgage, Inc. ("WestStar"), 
a residential mortgage company specializing in conforming mortgage lending ("WestStar Acquisition"), for $54 million that will 
be paid through a combination of cash and through the issuance of the Corporation's Class A common stock with a minimum of 
75% of the consideration payable in cash. The WestStar Acquisition is subject to customary closing conditions and regulatory 
approvals and is expected to be completed in the third quarter of 2015. 
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Item 9.   Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
 
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
 
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate controls over financial reporting (as that term 
is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)). Our 
management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, conducted an evaluation of 
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the 
Exchange Act), as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and 
principal financial officer each concluded that, as of the end of such period, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective 
in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, 
processed, summarized, and reported on a timely basis, and is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our 
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
 

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding 
internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s registered public 
accounting firm pursuant to the exemption provided to issuers that are accelerated filers and qualify as an “emerging growth 
company,” as defined in Section 2(a) of the Securities Act of 1933, or the Securities Act, as modified by the Jumpstart Our Business 
Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014. In 
making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued in 2013. Based upon the assessments, management has 
concluded that as of December 31, 2014 our internal control over financial reporting was effective to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, conducted an evaluation of 
any changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the 
Exchange Act) that occurred during our most recently completed fiscal quarter. Based on that evaluation, our principal executive 
officer and principal financial officer concluded that there has not been any change in our internal control over financial reporting 
during that quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial 
reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
 
None.

PART III
 

The information required by Part III is incorporated by reference to the information to be set forth in our definitive Proxy 
Statement for the 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement”). The Proxy Statement is to be filed with the SEC 
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act, no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual 
Report.
 
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance
 

The information required by this item will be included in the Company's 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein 
by reference.

 
Item 11. Executive Compensation
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The information required by this item will be included in the Company's 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein 
by reference.
 
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
 

The information required by this item will be included in the Company's 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein 
by reference.
 
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
 

The information required by this item will be included in the Company's 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein 
by reference.
 
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
 

The information required by this item will be included in the Company's 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein 
by reference.

PART IV

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules
 
(a)(1) Financial Statements:
 

 Page
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
The  J.G. Wentworth Company Consolidated Balance Sheets
The J.G. Wentworth Company Consolidated Statements of Operations
The J.G. Wentworth Company Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The J.G. Wentworth Company Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity/Member's Capital
The J.G. Wentworth Company Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
The J.G. Wentworth Company Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

 
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
 
All financial statement schedules have been omitted because the information required is included in the consolidated financial 
statements and notes thereto included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
 
(a)(3) Exhibits:
 

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of The J.G. Wentworth Company. Filed as exhibit 3.1 to The
J.G. Wentworth Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on
September 22, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference.

3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of The J.G. Wentworth Company. Filed as exhibit 3.2 to The J.G.
Wentworth Company 's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on September
22, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference.

4.1 Form of Stock Certificate representing Class A Common Stock, par value $0.00001 per share of The J.G.
Wentworth Company. Filed as exhibit 4.1 to The J.G. Wentworth Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on September 22, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference.

4.2 Warrant Certificate No. 1, issued to PGHI Corp. on November 14, 2013. Filed as exhibit 4.1 to The J.G. 
Wentworth Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on December 
23, 2013, and incorporated by herein by reference.

F-1
F-3
F-4
F-5
F-6
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4.3 Warrant Certificate No. 2, issued to PGHI Corp. on November 14, 2013. Filed as exhibit 4.2 to The J.G. 
Wentworth Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on December 
23, 2013, and incorporated by herein by reference.

4.4 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2013, by and among The J.G. Wentworth Company, 
JLL JGW Distribution, LLC and JGW Holdco, LLC and the other stockholders signatory thereto. Filed as 
exhibit 4.3 to The J.G. Wentworth Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-36170), filed with 
the SEC on December 23, 2013, and incorporated by herein by reference.

4.5 Voting Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2013, by and among JLL JGW Distribution, LLC, JGW Holdco, 
LLC, PGHI Corp., and the other stockholders named therein. Filed as exhibit 4.4 to The J.G. Wentworth 
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on December 23, 2013, 
and incorporated by herein by reference.

4.6 Director Designation Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2013, by and among The J.G. Wentworth Company, 
JLL JGW Distribution, LLC, JGW Holdco, LLC and PGHI Corp. Filed as exhibit 4.5 to The J.G. Wentworth 
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on December 23, 2013, 
and incorporated by herein by reference.

9.1 Voting Trust Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2013, by and among The J.G. Wentworth Company, the 
trustees named therein, and the stockholders named therein. Filed as exhibit 9.1 to The J.G. Wentworth 
Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on December 23, 2013, 
and incorporated by herein by reference.

10.1 Credit Agreement by and among J.G. Wentworth, LLC, Orchard Acquisition Company, LLC, as Parent 
Borrower, the Lending Institutions from Time to Time Parties Thereto, Jefferies Finance LLC, as Administrative 
Agent and Jefferies Group, Inc. as Swing Line Lender and an LC Issuer, dated as of February 8, 2013.  Filed as 
exhibit 4.6 to the J.G. Wentworth Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-191585), filed 
with the SEC on October 7, 2013, as amended to the date hereof, and incorporated by reference herein.

10.2 First Amendment to Credit Agreement by and among J.G. Wentworth, LLC, Orchard Acquisition Company, 
LLC, as Parent Borrower, the Lending Institutions from Time to Time Parties Thereto, Jefferies Finance LLC, 
as Administrative Agent and Jefferies Group, Inc. as Swing Line Lender and an LC Issuer, dated as of May 31, 
2013.  Filed as exhibit 4.6 to The J.G. Wentworth Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 
333-191585), filed with the SEC on October 7, 2013, as amended to the date hereof, and incorporated by 
reference herein.

10.3 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement by and among J.G. Wentworth, LLC, Orchard Acquisition Company, 
LLC, as Parent Borrower, the Lending Institutions from Time to Time Parties Thereto, Jefferies Finance LLC, 
as Administrative Agent and Jefferies Group, Inc. as Swing Line Lender and an LC Issuer, dated as of 
December 6, 2013. Filed as exhibit 4.8 to The J.G. Wentworth Company's Quarterly Report on Form 8-K (File 
No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on December 9, 2013, and incorporated by herein by reference.

10.4 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement, dated as of November 13, 2013, of The J.G. 
Wentworth Company, LLC. Filed as exhibit 10.1 to The J.G. Wentworth Company's Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q (File No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on December 23, 2013, and incorporated by herein by reference.

10.5 Tax Receivable Agreement, dated as of November 14, 2013, by and among The J.G. Wentworth Company, JLL 
JGW Distribution LLC, JGW Holdco, LLC, Candlewood Special Situations Fund L.P., R3 Capital Partners 
Master, L.P., The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC, DLJ Merchant Banking Funding, Inc., PGHI Corp., David 
Miller, Randi Sellari, and Stefano Sola and, to the extent described therein, JLL Fund V AIF II, L.P. and the 
shareholders of PGHI Corp. Filed as exhibit 10.2 to The J.G. Wentworth Company's Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q (File No. 001-36170), filed with the SEC on December 23, 2013, and incorporated by herein by reference.

10.6 Administrative Services Agreement, dated as of July 12, 2011, by and between Settlement Funding, LLC and 
PGHI Corp. Filed as exhibit 10.3 to The J.G. Wentworth Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File 
No. 333-191585), filed with the SEC on October 7, 2013, as amended to the date hereof, and incorporated by 
reference herein.

10.7 Custodial Agreement, dated July 12, 2011, by and between J.G. Wentworth, LLC and PGHI Corp. Filed as 
exhibit 10.4 to The J.G. Wentworth Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-191585), 
filed with the SEC on October 7, 2013, as amended to the date hereof, and incorporated by reference herein.
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10.8# Employment Agreement by and between The J.G. Wentworth Company and Stewart A. Stockdale, dated July
27, 2014. Filed as exhibit 10.1 to The J.G. Wentworth Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File No.
001-36170), filed with the SEC on July 28, 2014, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.9# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement by and between J.G. Wentworth, LLC and Randi Sellari, dated 
July 23, 2007.  Filed as exhibit 10.8 to The J.G. Wentworth Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 
(File No. 333-191585), filed with the SEC on October 7, 2013, as amended to the date hereof, and incorporated 
by reference herein.

10.10 Lease by and between Radnor Properties-201 KOP, L.P. and Green Apple Management Company, LLC, dated 
September 9, 2010, as amended by the First Amendment, dated February 21, 2011, the Second Amendment, 
dated January 9, 2012, the Third Amendment, dated August 23, 2012, and the Fourth Amendment, dated March 
29, 2013. Filed as exhibit 10.10 to The J.G. Wentworth Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File 
No. 333-191585), filed with the SEC on October 7, 2013, as amended to the date hereof, and incorporated by 
reference herein.

10.11# Form of The J.G. Wentworth Company 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan. Filed as exhibit 10.11 to The J.G. 
Wentworth Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-191585), filed with the SEC on 
October 7, 2013, as amended to the date hereof, and incorporated by reference herein.

10.12# Form of The J.G. Wentworth Company 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement (Employees). 
Filed as exhibit 10.12 to The J.G. Wentworth Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 
333-191585), filed with the SEC on October 7, 2013, as amended to the date hereof, and incorporated by 
reference herein.

10.13# Form of The J.G. Wentworth Company 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement (Non-
Employee Directors). Filed as exhibit 10.13 to The J.G. Wentworth Company’s Registration Statement on Form 
S-1 (File No. 333-191585), filed with the SEC on October 7, 2013, as amended to the date hereof, and 
incorporated by reference herein.

10.14# Form of Director Indemnification Agreement. Filed as exhibit 10.14 to The J.G. Wentworth Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-191585), filed with the SEC on October 7, 2013, as amended 
to the date hereof, and incorporated by reference herein.

21.1 Subsidiaries of The J.G. Wentworth Company.

23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Exhibit 31.1 Chief Executive Officer—Certification pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a)
Exhibit 31.2 Chief Financial Officer—Certification pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a)
Exhibit 32.1 Chief Executive Officer—Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C

Section 1350.
Exhibit 32.2 Chief Financial Officer—Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C

Section 1350.
101 Interactive Data File
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Document
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
  
# Indicates management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 

 THE J.G. WENTWORTH COMPANY

  
 By: /s/ Stewart A. Stockdale
 Name: Stewart A. Stockdale
 Title: Chief Executive Officer

 
SIGNATURES

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 

following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
 

Name
 

Title
 

Date

     
/s/ Stewart A. Stockdale

 

Chief Executive Officer, and Director
  

Stewart A. Stockdale
 

(Principal Executive Officer)
 

March 13, 2015
     
/s/ John R. Schwab

 

Chief Financial Officer
  

John R. Schwab
 

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
 

March 13, 2015
     
/s/ Alexander R. Castaldi

    

Alexander R. Castaldi
 

Chairman, Director
 

March 13, 2015
     
/s/ Robert C. Griffin

    

Robert C. Griffin
 

Director
 

March 13, 2015
     
/s/ Kevin Hammond

    

Kevin Hammond
 

Director
 

March 13, 2015
     
/s/ Paul S. Levy

    

Paul S. Levy
 

Director
 

March 13, 2015
     
/s/ William J. Morgan

    

William J. Morgan
 

Director
 

March 13, 2015
     
/s/ Robert N. Pomroy

    

Robert N. Pomroy
 

Director
 

March 13, 2015
     
/s/ Francisco J. Rodriguez

    

Francisco J. Rodriguez
 

Director
 

March 13, 2015



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPEDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-192359) pertaining to 
The J.G. Wentworth Company 2013 Omnibus Incentive Plan of our report dated March 13, 2015, with respect to the 
consolidated financial statements of The J.G. Wentworth Company (prior to November 14, 2013, J.G. Wentworth, LLC 
and Subsidiaries), included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2014.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
March 13, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

 
CERTIFICATION

 
I, Stewart A. Stockdale, certify that:
 
1.       I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The J.G. Wentworth Company;

 
2.      Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading 
with respect to the period covered by this report;

 
3.      Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all 

material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report;

 
4.      The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 

(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in the 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 
(a)    Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under 

our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is 
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 

designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions 
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based 
on such evaluation; and

(d)     Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5.       The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 

financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons 
performing the equivalent functions):

 
(a)   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting 

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial 
information; and

 
(b)   Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the 

registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
 

Date: March 13, 2015  

 

 Stewart A. Stockdale
 Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)



                     EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION
 

I, John R. Schwab, certify that:
 
1.       I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The J.G. Wentworth Company;

 
2.      Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 
3.      Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, 
and for, the periods presented in this report;

 
4.      The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls 

and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial 
reporting (as defined in the Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 
(a)    Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period 
in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting 

to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles;

(c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report 
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period 
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)     Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual 
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control 
over financial reporting; and

 
5.       The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 

over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors 
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 
(a)   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize 
and report financial information; and

 
(b)   Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role 

in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2015

John R. Schwab
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. 1350

(SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002)
 

I, Stewart A. Stockdale, Chief Executive Officer of The J.G. Wentworth Company (the “Company”), certify, pursuant 
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to the best of my knowledge:

 
(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended December 31, 2014 (the “Report”) 
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

 
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results 
of operations of the Company.
 

Date: March 13, 2015
Stewart A. Stockdale
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be 
retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. 1350

(SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002)
 

I, John R. Schwab, Chief Financial Officer of The J.G. Wentworth Company (the “Company”), certify, pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that, to the best of my knowledge:

 
(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended December 31, 2014 (the “Report”) 
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

 
(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results 
of operations of the Company.
 

Date: March 13, 2015
John R. Schwab
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be 
retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements which reflect management’s expectations regarding our future growth, 

results of operations, operational and financial performance and business prospects and opportunities. All statements, other 

than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements. Although the forward-looking statements contained in this 

Annual Report reflect management’s current beliefs based upon information currently available to management and upon 

assumptions which management believes to be reasonable, actual results may differ materially from those stated in or implied 

by these forward-looking statements. Additional details are provided in the Company’s Form 10-K. 



(Prior to November 14, 2013, J.G. Wentworth, LLC and Subsidiaries)

Reconciliation of Net Income to Adjusted Net Income – Unaudited
(Dollars in thousands)

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS  
ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2013 2014

Net Income (loss) attributable to J.G. Wentworth, LLC $61,818 $96,613

/8(17#,%&#7�#��*%62%+#�8%+�&7�2:8/#:�& 
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Elimination of unrealized gain (loss) on finance receivables, 

long-term debt and derivatives form past securitization due to 

changes in interest rates 

(42,358) (84,955)

Elimination of interest income from securitized finance receivables                       (150,945) (166,888)

Interest income on retained interests in finance receivables                                             18,709 20,315

Servicing income on securitized finance receivables                                                            5,548 5,129

Elimination of interest expense on long-term debt related to 

securitization and permanent financing trusts 
128,226 142,907

Professional fees relating to securitizations                                                                            6,198                  6,161

�#$%*�/8(17#,%&#79 

Share base compensation                                                                           1,452                  2,384

Income tax provision                                                                                                 2,546                21,140

Severance, M & A and consulting expenses                                                                              5,416                  3,736

Impact of 2014-3 prefunding on unsecuritized finance receivables — (1,566)

Other non-recurring items                                                                                                  10,004                (1,383)

/8(17#%8�&%#�:&+�,%                                                                                  $46,614              $43,593  

Other Data:

Securitized Product Total Receivables Balance (TRB) Purchases1                           $946,413 $939,050

Other TRB Purchases2       178,618        138,745

Total TRB Purchases     $1,125,031     $1,077,795

Adjusted Net Income $46,614           $43,593

1 Securitized product TRB purchases includes purchases during the period of assets that will be securitized 

(guaranteed structured settlements, annuities, and lottery payment streams)

2 Other TRB Purchases includes receivables purchased from life contingent, structured settlements and the 

purchase price of pre-settlement fundings during the period

�	
��/&&1/2�*%-�*#  |  /�<



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Alexander R. Castaldi
Chairman of the Board

������������!��
Director

Kevin T. Hammond
Director

Paul S. Levy
Director

William J. Morgan
Director

Robert N. Pomroy
Director

Francisco J. Rodriguez
Director

Stewart A. Stockdale
Director

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Stewart A. Stockdale
Chief Executive Officer  
and Director

John R. Schwab
Executive Vice President  
and Chief Financial Officer

Stephen A. Kirkwood
Executive Vice President,  
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Greg A. Schneider
Executive Vice President  
and Chief Information Officer

Randy R. Parker 
President, Annuity and  
Structured Settlement Payments

Sean P. O’Reilly
Senior Vice President  
and Chief Marketing Officer

William A. Schwartz
Chief Human Resources Officer

�1*�$%/8]1/*#%*7
201 King of Prussia Road, Suite 501

Radnor, PA 19087

%O+$/&)%�2:7#:&)
The company shares trade on the 

New York Stock Exchange under the 

symbol “JGW.”
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Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc.

1981 Marcus Avenue

Lake Success, NY 11042 

Phone: 516.472.5400
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Ernst & Young LLP

5 Times Square

New York, New York 10036-6530 
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